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regulars // FROM THE PRESIDENT

The spring edition of this new Quarterly prompted much comment,
most of it favourable. While there are those who support all
communications being online it seems sensible to adjust the
medium to fit the message. The Incorporation’s increasingly useful,
snappy e-bulletins and digital practice notes lend themselves to
electronic communication. A magazine is altogether a more reflective
document, heavily illustrated with photographs and drawings,
which are somehow easier to peruse on the page than on the screen.
The Incorporation is managing, I feel, to strike the right balance.
We have commissioned a new website and our forthcoming practice
directory will be available both online (for practices to update
themselves as projects come to fruition) and in printed form. The
latter is aimed at that increasingly rare beast, the architectural client,
to riffle through and (hopefully) make their selection.
All these endeavours are what our Secretary refers to as
“house-keeping” but it is the website and our productions
which connect us both with members and the outside world.
Maintaining quality and lively, engaging content will help to
enhance public and client understanding of what architects do. The
necessity of demonstrating the role of the architect and the huge
benefits which can be delivered through appropriately architect
focussed procurement is a key issue for our profession but, more
importantly, for society as a whole.
Architects, perhaps inevitably, tend to focus inwards when the
issue of procurement is raised. There is any number of practices
very willing to testify to countless lengthy pre-qualification
questionnaires. Each PQQ is different so all demand bespoke
answers to questions which, though often remarkably similar,
contain nuances of difference, just to trip people up. Practices
will willingly quantify the cost of each failure and highlight hit
rates which, for all but a fortunate few, are remarkably low. To
demonstrate the inadequacy and inappropriateness of this PQQ
approach they will further reel off a list of successful projects,
highly satisfied clients and awards which demonstrate the high
quality of the work they could deliver if the pre-qualification
quagmire had not fouled them up en-route.
Public procurement has always been cited by architects as
a significant issue. The late Jack Coia’s comments from 1968,
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mike wilkinson

procurement
quoted in the spring Quarterly, emphasised both the predation of
“package deals and project management firms” and the need to
influence and educate public and private patrons. Post Latham and
Egan, whose lofty ambitions for partnering spawned the monster
of Design and Build, there has never been a greater need for the
architectural profession to shout loudly about what we can deliver.
The benefits of traditional local sourcing of expertise in providing
appropriately contextual, well made, reliable and attractive
architectural solutions are all too obvious to architects, yet too
many politicians and senior civil servants seem oblivious.
Europe is often painted as the great ogre, whose regulations
require a horrible regime of box ticking in the interest of fairness.
But Europe is not the only culprit. In their eagerness to please
and comply, governments, local and national, have spawned a
whole new procurement profession, very few of whom have any
background in architecture or related disciplines. The outcome is
a regime fixated on short-term cost where quality and the longterm cost benefit are overlooked. It is the approach of the crass
developer who will produce something adequate to the moment
with just enough surface gloss to lure the client in. It’s about an
immediate return which squanders the future.
We have now gathered a large file of evidence and our Select
Committee is coming to terms with recessional distortions, the
Futures Trust, Hubs, Constructionline, European regulation,
international comparators and the whole plethora of other
factors which affect this hugely complex conundrum. We plan to
demonstrate to Government that a simplified regime could save
a great deal of money and benefit not just our profession - but
Scotland.

david dunbar, president, rias
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regulars // FROM THE secretary

When this second volume of the RIAS Quarterly was in planning, it
was agreed that the President would write about procurement. My
own column was destined to review the progress of our accreditation
schemes, CPD and the technical content of our new online provision.
I also proposed to argue, with brazen effrontery, how even in the
current economic climes, after tax, the joint RIAS/RIBA offer is the
best professional membership deal currently available in the UK.
However on all of these counts I have failed, opting instead to expend
my limited word count on an angry diatribe, against a particularly
extraordinary piece of back-of-the-envelope architectural analysis
by the Scottish Futures Trust.
There is a problem at the heart of much contemporary public
commissioning where clients are disengaged from the societal
goals of architecture, merely focussing upon a functional and
financial equation. This problem was exemplified in The Herald piece
(Business Section, 5 July 2010) describing the Trust’s advocacy of
standardisation. In highlighting “fit-for-purpose” and “iconic” as the
only alternatives in their approach to the schools programme the
Trust indicates an underlying lack of understanding.
Architects are well used to providing attractive and appropriate
bespoke buildings for restrictive budgets, providing long-term comfort
and even delight for users. The implicit rejection of such architectural
attributes also confounds the ‘PLACE’ agenda which has always
been central to declared Scottish Government priorities, through
successive administrations. The denial in the Futures Trust’s thinking
of the contribution which generations of Scottish architects have
made to the distinctiveness and quality of our small nation, is also
a fundamental contradiction of our current Government’s aspiration
for a Scottish economy based upon knowledge and creativity.
This thinking begs the question of whether educational battery
farming is the right agenda for Scotland. Much of the rest of
Europe has already acknowledged that a stimulating educational
environment delivers major dividends. In Germany new schools
are the subject of mini competitions. Despite tight budgets these
bespoke places of learning provide environmental stimulus.
Ironically none of these schools would be considered “iconic”, just
contextual, distinctive and special. This is surely what Scottish
children also deserve.

neil baxter

education
and art
The Futures Trust’s focus is on ‘value for money’. The Government
has assumed that by placing responsibility in the hands of a custom
designed procurement organisation, it can achieve best value.
However the complexities of delivering high quality architecture
demand something other than a financially fixated one-stop-shop.
Ironically in the current climate, reverting to traditional, architectled procurement, is demonstrably cheaper and undoubtedly achieves
better long-term solutions.
Our schools estate needs the leadership of enlightened
politicians and civil servants who understand that architects spend
seven years in tertiary education for very good reason. We won’t
deliver a sustainable future for Scotland if control is left to the
accountants.
Diatribe vented, a little reflection on more elevated matters.
In addition to sticking to my brief in the next issue there will be a
detailed review of recent gifts to the Incorporation in the form of
signed works from Tadao Ando, Lord Foster, Sir Nicholas Grimshaw,
Richard Meier, Ian Ritchie, Lord Rogers, Moshe Safdie, Alvaro Siza
and Robert Venturi. These drawings will decorate the route to our
new dedicated meeting room (available, free of charge to RIAS
members).
Lightening this page up a little is the image of Bernat Klein,
revered elder statesman of international fashion design and one
of the Incorporation’s most renowned Honorary Fellows. He is
depicted in June 2010, sitting outside his home, itself a monument
to his architect of choice, the late Peter Womersley. Klein’s generous
donation to the RIAS collection is a heavily impasted oil painting
of vibrant amaryllis flowers, on a ground of one of his own printed
polyester textiles. Every so often, even in the most difficult financial
climate, the focus reverts to art – a crucial component of all true
architectural endeavours (but try telling that to the Futures Trust!).
Neil Baxter, Secretary & Treasurer
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REGULARS // ARCHIVAL
50 Years Ago
In the midst of the 1960’s building boom
architects advocate the ‘synoptic view’ in the
shaping of towns and cities as the profession
seems likely to have to embrace more
diversification and specialisation.

FROM
OUR
ARCHIVE
IAN STUART CAMPBELL,
A FORMER EDITOR OF THE
RIAS MEMBERS’ JOURNAL AND
THE CURRENT COVERNOR OF
THE RIAS COMMUNICATIONS
AND EVENTS COMMITTEE,
CONTINUES HIS REGULAR
SERIES.

patrick geddes portrait
© Scottish National Portrait Gallery /
The Artist’s Estate.
Licensor www.scran.ac.uk
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‘Comment’, RIAS Prospect,
Spring 1960
Someone a little while ago remarked
that Britain is rapidly becoming the Old
Curiosity Shop of Europe. All around
us, one momentarily felt, are progress
conscious countries, vividly accumulating
the material culture of the 20th century,
alert for innovation and invention, making
clean sweeps in the post war spring cleaning
of the cobwebbed continent.
…. In our passion for self abasement,
we assume that here in Britain we are
marching backwards to confusion with the
sun glinting on our brass helmets and our
historic plumes waving in the breeze – the
whimsical delight of tourists from the New
World.
For the ground is thick with
preservationists. There are societies for
preserving more or less everything from
footpaths to the Church of England and
every year more people join together under
the banner of amenity. Last year the Civic
Trust called many of them to a conference
in part of the Festival Hall, provoking a
nice contrast between the emotionless

clarity of that building and the passionate
enthusiasm and faith of the preservers.
It is not surprising that the battles
between them are becoming more frequent
and bitter. We’ve never had it so plentiful.
And now private developers, under the
blessing of free enterprise are concentrating
their credit on the centres, often the historic
centres, of cities and towns.
The pity is that preservation and
progress are so often regarded as opposed
when really they are complimentary. In the
major crises of our times there is surely an
urgent need for both.
For architects and planners the two are
resolved by taking what Sir Patrick Geddes
called a ‘synoptic view’ of our towns and
cities. It will probably become more and
more difficult to take big synoptic views of
things as we get ever more specialised in
our vocational activities.
Fortunately perhaps, despite pleas from
some technical sources, architects have not
yet gone far in that direction. In a few years
we might find ourselves the only profession,
which is not specially skilled in anything in
particular.
If that helps us to retain synoptic views
we might also see more clearly than most,
the evolving shape of places, not just in
terms of efficiency on the one hand or
sentiment on the other but of humanity as
a whole – with the Old Curiosity Shop in its
proper and valuable, niche.

25 Years Ago
In the uncertain economic climate of 1985
the RIBA published a survey of Employment
and Earnings, which noted that 15% of
all architects, and over 30% of private
practice principals, had experienced “under
employment” in the previous year. Amid
regularly aired concerns that there were
simply “too many architects”, the RIAS
rejected formal proposals to merge the two
Edinburgh Schools of Architecture.
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Robin Webster, Andy MacMillan, and the
late Edwin Johnston, argued in Prospect for
increased diversity in architectural education
to respond to the changing technical and
professional landscape. While each envisaged
differing ways in which the course structures
could be broadened they were all anxious
to emphasise the core design skills and
sensitivity which remained essential to the
profession. The following are excerpts from
their articles.
“… more than mere training”:
Edwin Johnston
In recent years, courses in architecture
have tended to drift away from formerly
allied disciplines, such as painting and
sculpture. A few decades ago, for example,
it was common practice in education for a
young architect to learn about perception,
observation, and manual drawing skills by
attending life class. But then modernisation
seemed to intervene, when the digital
keyboard and its illuminated screen was
somehow wheeled in to take the place of
the nude model.
One of the interesting aspects of
architecture in recent times is the closer
collaboration between the work of architects
and structural engineers. In the evolution of
high-tech buildings the structure has become
a prominent, if not dominant element in
the visual language of architecture. In the
teaching of courses in structures in our
schools today, however, it is not uncommon
for the mechanical and behavioural aspects
of structures to be emphasised, in the
absence of aesthetic considerations. And
given its importance, should not history be
taught for more than three years; and since
it is a source of ideas, become more closely
related to design work in the studio?
Roles and Training: Robin
Webster
The need to train the eye is still not
being adequately met and there are

many students being let loose today who
though intellectually capable are visually
undisciplined, and who cannot distinguish
between the urn and the chamber pot.
The role of the architect in the building
industry ranges at present from lawyer to
artist. The industry must be design led, but
it may be right to reduce the number of
people we formally recognise as really good
architectural designers (in my experience
not more than half a dozen in any year.)
The others may specialise in a tremendous
variety of fields, and schools must promote
suitable courses and degrees for new ‘hybrid’
professionals to help heal the present rifts
and divides in the industry.
The Recent Past and Possible
Future: Andy MacMillan.

The rapid growth of knowledge in the
construction industry and the need for new
vocational and managerial skills make it
clear that the concept of an initial formation
process at one stage in an architectural
career is no longer adequate if professional
competence is to be maintained. A life
long approach to education is needed and
this has been the direction towards which
recent RIBA thinking has been directed in
relation to education. Thus the reduction of
resources in the initial sector of professional
training must be offset by an impetus to
growth in the provision of continuing
education on a regular basis if gain is to
emerge from the situation.

1 Year Ago
The following is an extract from the RIAS
Salary and Benefits Survey 2008/2009
Chartered Architect, Winter
2009
“... (the profession) remains male dominant,
with a split of 74% male and 26% female. As
expected the vast majority of respondents
work in the central belt of Scotland, mostly
in Glasgow and Edinburgh. It also comes as
no surprise that 87% of respondents work
in private practice. Less than 6% work in
local authorities.
About half of the respondents work
in practices with 10 or less technical staff
(architects and technicians) and 32% in
practices of five or less technical staff. The
majority of architects work on domestic
and residential projects (over 39%) with
22% employed on commercial / retail
projects. In the ‘other’ category (24.4%), the
majority worked on healthcare or education
projects.
Top of the benefits offered to staff is
pension provision (21.3%) and training
(20.5%) However, final salary pension is
now offered to only 3.1% compared to 15%
of respondents to the 2006 survey. Private
health care is received by only 5.6%, a
marked fall from two years ago when this
was a perk enjoyed by 20%. A car or car
allowance is offered to 8.5% of staff overall
but this figure rises to 11.2% for architects
with 10 years or more experience. Overall
only 6.9% receive a performance related
bonus.
The average hourly charge out rate for
a sole principal is £60, rising to £75 for
Partners / Directors. The maximum charge
out rate is £150.”

9

RIA
DON S MEMB
’T
E
CLAI FORGETRS
M YO
T
UR O

TICK
PLUS ETwo
rth
pur

£10
disco chase sp
un
e
tickets ted adva cially
nce
for

only £
6

www.silverofthestars.com

Tony Singh

SCOTLAND’S
LEADING SHOW
DEDICATED
TO QUALITY
INTERIORS

FREE

EXCLUSIVE INTERIOR DESIGN SHOWCASE
PACKED PROGRAMME OF FREE TALKS
INCLUDING TIM GOSLING
SUPERB COOKERY DEMONSTRATIONS
BY TONY SINGH
INTERIOR INSPIRATION AREA
FANTASTIC ATTRACTIONS
WINE TASTING, SHOW GARDEN
NEW! SILVER OF THE STARS
NEW! CHOCOLATE TASTING SESSIONS
OVER 100 FABULOUS EXHIBITORS
DEDICATED ART GALLERY

homes&interiors

Scotland Exhibition2010
Fri 27th August to Sun 29th August
10.00am until 5.00pm

Free ticket admits one person on any one day. To claim your free ticket and
purchase advance discount tickets, please call the number below quoting ref: RIAS

0141 567 6025

Organised by

&INTERIORSSCOTLAND

Sponsored by

Media Partner

S U M M E R 2 010 R I A S Q U A R T E R LY

riba awards 2010 // scottish winners

RIBA AWARDS

photos: mike wilkinson

mckenzie strickland associates

allan murray architects

Earlier this year the Royal Incorporation of
Architects in Scotland (RIAS) announced
the Scottish winners of the 2010 Royal
Institute of British Architects (RIBA)
Awards. An unprecedented eight projects in
Scotland received awards.
Announcing the awards at a ceremony
in The Lighthouse in Glasgow on 20th
May David Dunbar President RIAS said,
“There are practices throughout Scotland
– of scales varying from sole practitioner
to multi-disciplinary / multi-director –
producing award-winning work which
can compare favourably with the best
elsewhere in the UK and indeed in Europe.
It is extraordinary, given the rigorous and
at times absurdly complex procurement
processes imposed upon our profession,
that architects still manage to devote so
much energy and care to the creation of
buildings which contribute to the wellbeing
of communities and individuals.”
The winning projects range from private
housing to hospitals and include a city
centre hotel and a major new sports facility
in Aberdeen.
The eight buildings in Scotland by seven
practices that have won RIBA Awards are
(listed alphabetically):
1. Aberdeen Regional Sports Facility,
Reiach and Hall Architects

archial architects

2. Balnearn Boathouse, McKenzie
Strickland Associates
3. Hotel Missoni, Edinburgh, Allan
Murray Architects
4. House on the Hill, Aberdeenshire,
Paterson Architects
5. Infirmary Street Baths, Edinburgh,
Malcolm Fraser Architects
6. New Stobhill Hospital, Glasgow, Reiach
and Hall Architects
7. Small Animal Hospital, Glasgow,
Archial Architects
8. Trongate 103, Glasgow, Elder + Cannon
Architects
This year’s Scottish awards were judged
by a panel comprising the multi-award
winning, London based architect Simon
Conder, the RIAS Lifetime Achievement
Award-winning Professor Andy MacMillan
OBE and David Dunbar PRIAS. The panel
was advised by the RIAS Secretary, Neil
Baxter. An exhibition featuring the winning
and shortlisted projects is currently at The
Lighthouse and will be open to the public
until the end of summer.
Ninety-three buildings in the UK and
nine in the rest of the EU won RIBA Awards
for architectural excellence.
RIBA President Ruth Reed said about
the 2010 RIBA Award winners: “The RIBA
Awards reflect not only the state of British

elder + cannon architects

reiach and hall architects

architecture but also that of its economy. In
the midst of the deepest recession in the 45
year history of the RIBA Awards this year’s
winners demonstrate that although times
might be hard for architects, there are still
great buildings being built throughout the
country and overseas. The RIBA Awards
always give an opportunity for gem-like small
projects and less established practices to
shine through and this year is no exception.
Far from being a size prize, the RIBA Awards
are for buildings that offer value to people’s
lives. I am looking forward to seeing an
exciting RIBA Stirling Prize shortlist.”
Each RIBA Award-winning project is
presented with a plaque sponsored and
produced by the Lead Sheet Association.
The association has been supporting the
RIBA Awards since 1989 by producing the
plaques, which are individually numbered
and recorded, and can be seen on buildings
all over the country. RIAS President David
Dunbar presented the plaques to the
Scottish RIBA award winners at a reception
at the RIAS headquarters in Rutland Square,
Edinburgh in June (pictured above and on
page 106).
The following pages feature
the judges’ citations for the
winning and shortlisted
buildings.
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Aberdeen Regional Sports Facility, Aberdeen
Reiach and Hall Architects

This building was designed to
both increase community participation
in sport and help elite athletes to
maximise their performance. It boasts
the only indoor, straight 135m-long
running track in Scotland, a nine court
multi-purpose games hall, an indoor
athletics training facility, football/
seven-a-side pitches, squash courts,
changing, offices and a cafe.
The building’s external structural
elements are deliberately minimal
and understated. However its huge
scale, particularly notable from the
shore promenade, is mitigated by the
polycarbonate cladding in sectional
lengths of variable sky tones. This
external

skin

reduces

both

the

perceived and actual mass of the
building.

Lightweight,

strong

and

durable the cladding also contributes
to energy efficiency and insulation.
Internal services and lighting are
particularly well handled, contributing
unobtrusively

to

its

extraordinary

range of facilities. This is a lively
and welcoming building and a major
new amenity for all the citizens of

PHOTOS: Ioana Marinescu

Aberdeen.
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Balnearn Boathouse, Perthshire
McKenzie Strickland Associates

This lochside retreat is simple
in its function and highly expressive
in its design. It elegantly reflects its
landscape setting. The boathouse sits
upon a spit of land at the foot of a steep
slope at the loch’s edge. The timber
lining of the exterior is an appropriately
natural outer skin for a building within
such a rural location. The rubble
base and hewn rock underbuilding
are further acknowledgement that,
while the building’s form is powerfully
individual, its materials are very much
of their place.
A series of screens enables the
owners to open the building out
onto its decked platform and to the
magnificent views over the loch. In its
materials and particularly through the
drama of its roofscape the boathouse
makes an architectural statement well
beyond its scale. This is a simple and

PHOTOS: keith hunter

joyful building, full of delight!
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Hotel Missoni, Edinburgh
Allan Murray Architects

Hotel Missoni sits at a pivotal
location on the cross axis of the Old
Town. At ground floor level the bank
and restaurants ensure that this
new structure is very much part of
the public life of the city. The design
philosophy embraces ‘unity through
diversity’ - creating a strong identity
for the new building but responding
to three radically different contexts the medieval Lawnmarket, George IV
Bridge - a 19th century improvement
street - and bohemian Victoria Street.
A new loggia addresses each
separate

streetscape,

sheltering

entrances to the hotel, the bank, and
Victoria Terrace. The scale of the
building is mitigated by the carefully
contextual address of each elevation
on its three separate streetscape
frontages. This major new structure
on a crucial urban site reinterprets a
lost Edinburgh tradition of hard-won
public spaces, exemplified by the rare
17th century survivor and its near

PHOTOS: keith hunter

neighbour, Gladstone’s Land.
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House on the Hill, Aberdeenshire
Paterson Architects

This new home was created by
the restoration and extension of the
existing, traditional farm steading
on the site. The original house has
been restored to give an appropriately
vernacular

external

appearance

with an open plan interior which
accommodates the owner’s business.
A connecting corridor extends the
building in a long low range which
provides new living accommodation.
Large windows embrace the views
along the coastline to the south and
the Angus glens northwards.
Built from a locally fabricated
timber frame with larch cladding and
a combination of fixed and sliding
windows, the simple palette and
understated form of the building create
an elegant new home whose impact
upon the landscape is minimal. In fact,
only the original steading is prominently
visible within long views. This is a
seductive

and

welcoming

building

which takes maximum advantage from
its setting through an architecture of

PHOTOS: keith hunter

consummate understatement.
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Infirmary Street Baths, Edinburgh
Malcolm Fraser Architects

Infirmary Street Baths has been
transformed into a new, large and
exciting centre for tapestry weaving
in Edinburgh. The complex includes
exhibition spaces and an adjoining
residential block.
The former main pool area now
accommodates a tapestry workshop
with the large, top-lit, open plan space
lending itself well to this activity. A new
heavy-duty floor over the pool basin
provides a constant level. The existing
upper gallery around the perimeter
has been retained. All the changing
cubicles have been removed, providing
a clear view over the workshop as well
as additional floor area for activities
related to the workshop: temporary
exhibitions and areas dedicated to
educational and training purposes,
working to promote the medium of
tapestry.
The offices, design room, storage
and ancillary spaces for the studios
are arranged in cellular rooms to
the perimeter of the main pool area
under the gallery. Glazed screens
and colourful yarn libraries define the

PHOTOS: malcolm fraser architects

separate zones.
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New Stobhill Hospital, Glasgow
Reiach and Hall Architects

The new Stobhill Hospital was
designed with the aim that all medical
tests and consultations will be carried
out on the same day and on the same
site if possible. Upon entry the patient
enters a full height, glazed, public
arcade, awash with natural light with a
visible exit ahead, easing the transition.
The reception is immediately visible,
and from it any department can be
pointed out. The arcade is the civic
heart of the hospital. Its cafe has
become a place for local people to
meet and visit.
New Stobhill has a deceptively
simple diagram – two blocks of
accommodation, the north treatment
block

and

the

south

consulting

block. The design delivers flexible
and

adaptable

clinical

and

staff

environments and uses construction
capable of alteration and extension.
The entire top floor is devoted to staff
accommodation – generous changing
areas, bright offices, staff canteen with
a roof terrace and stunning views to

PHOTOS: andy mcgregor

the Campsie Fells.
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Small Animal Hospital, Glasgow
Archial Architects

Located at the entrance to the
grounds of Garscube Estate, the new
Small Animal Hospital, part of the
University of Glasgow’s Faculty of
Veterinary Medicine, provides state of
the art services for animal owners and
referring practitioners. Although the
structure is large its form is cut into
the landscape, its roof creating a new,
angled, grassed hillside and effectively
marrying the building into its parkland
setting.
Internally the building is simply
organised

both

horizontally

and

vertically with a clear division of
public and private hospital space.
The working hospital held within
the gabion wall pinwheels around a
central treatment hub which acts as
the heart of the building offering clear
and unrestricted views toward daycare, intensive care, operation suites,
diagnostics and oncology.
The teaching and office spaces
occupy the upper level with views over
the estate and access onto the grass

PHOTOS: andrew lee

roof.
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Trongate 103, Glasgow
Elder & Cannon Architects

As

the

first

phase

of

a

redevelopment programme to create
an Arts Quarter, Trongate 103 has
been formed as a new creative hub,
giving access to linked galleries,
a restaurant, exhibition areas and
workshops. The site consisted of
3 B-listed buildings which needed
substantial restorative repair work
both internally and externally. The
complexity of the interior, a marriage
of disparate structures and levels has
been delivered with great elegance, an
extraordinary achievement.
At street level, the building has
been opened up with the introduction
of full height shop front glazing on
all elevations to allow a much more
accessible

relationship

with

the

streetscape and to encourage public
interaction with the building. A new
formal “unified” entry has also been
created on the Trongate elevation
to allow visitors a focal point prior
to entering the building. The whole
complex transforms a run-down area
into a new centre of life, art and vibrant

PHOTOS: elder+cannon, keith hunter

activity for Glasgow.
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Deepstone, Castle Douglas

The Long House (private
residence), Isle of Skye

Reiach and Hall Architects

Simon Winstanley Architects

Rural Design with Roy Milne

keith hunter

simon winstanley

Collier Place - New Shared
Campus Primary School and
Housing, Edinburgh

this

Carved out of a cliffside, the site

Embracing superb views to

new school and housing within a

The

combination

of

commands dramatic views over the

the island of Harris to the north,

carefully designed mews streetscape

Solway Firth to Cumbria. Emerging

the Cuillins southward, and Loch

is a significant contribution to the

from a stone plinth which contains the

Dunvegan which sits directly in front

regeneration of Edinburgh’s Craigmillar

bedrooms, the kitchen and living spaces

of this new home, this deceptively

area. The school combines both the

on the upper floor are contained within

simple house has been designed as an

non-denominational primary and the

a contrastingly lightweight, glazed

appropriate addition within an historic

Roman Catholic school in a building

pavilion. This is set back to create a

croft. It acknowledges the sensitivity of

whose large scale is punctuated by a

sun terrace and reduce the impact

its setting within the Skye landscape

series of large geometric forms.

of the building within its landscape

in its traditional form, which is akin to

setting.

that of farm buildings in the area. Its

While the individual homes, set
across the streetscape from the school,

The conceit of creating a stone block

construction is similarly unassuming.

are of significantly more modest scale,

for the bedroom accommodation gives

Its plan is a supremely modern take on

their materials echo those of the

this building a powerful impression of

the Skye croft.

school. Their combined mass and

being wrought from its setting. The

A timber frame with large window

articulation serve as an appropriately

technical challenges of a narrow site

openings to all the views has been

scaled foil to the larger structure

fronting a steep rock-face are robustly

clad in vertical timber boarding. The

opposite. The houses themselves vary

addressed in this project. Its stonework

corrugated roof is a further reference

from detached two and a half storey

is superbly detailed. Although the

to traditional, quasi-industrial forms

individual homes to larger four-in-

construction is, in the main, substantial

of the historic farm and industrial

a-block models and terraces. This

and solid, Deepstone’s materials are so

buildings of the Scottish islands.

contributes to a legible streetscape of

much of their context that this unusual

Internally, timber detailing and a

great integrity while emphasising the

new home appears as a thoroughly

predominantly open plan public space

separate private domains. The whole

appropriate

enhance the impression of warmth

development creates a lively and

enhancement of its place.

welcoming impression of community
within clearly defined public and
private spaces.
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Roseisle Distillery, Elgin

Scottish Ballet @ Tramway,
Glasgow

Allan Murray Architects

Austin-Smith: Lord LLP

Malcolm Fraser Architects

david morris

gareth pugh

keith hunter

Merchiston Villa, Edinburgh

Set within an urban Victorian

This very large new distillery

villa landscape, this elegant new

is the first to be built in Scotland for

incorporates

home connects with this context in

30 years and marks a significant

important

both its scale and it’s, predominantly

departure in approach. It cleverly avoids

within one substantial building. Set

stone, external finish. However, it is

the temptation to create a pastiche or

manufacture, costume making and

uncompromisingly

and

even an update on traditional distillery

spacious rehearsal rooms are set

contemporary in form, signalling a bold

forms. Instead the distilling process

alongside

departure from the more traditional

dictates a carefully articulated large

facilities around a central core lined

aesthetic adopted in other recent

industrial

structure

with

with natural timber and infused with

individual houses within the area.

expressed

divisions

marking

rectilinear

Within, the house achieves the
client’s aspiration of being “full of light”.

clearly
the

Scottish Ballet’s new home
all

touring

office

aspects

of

this

company’s

role

and

green-room

light. Set within the former stables

separate processes of the complex

block of the Tramway building, this

distilling operations within.

new artistic asset for Glasgow is linked

Its public rooms, set to the rear of the

A timber clad structure with a

to the adjoining Tramway performance

ground floor, embrace the garden view.

full-height glazed gable is the first

and exhibition spaces contributing to a

The lower floor is predominantly open-

impression upon arrival. This block

new creative hub for the south side of

plan although concealed partitions

holds the mash tuns and the highly

the city.

allow for subdivision and enhanced

automated control centre. The building

The building combines the physical

privacy. Thus the ground floor area

extends into a metal clad structure

and climate control requirements

can serve as shared family space

which contains the fourteen copper

of studio and rehearsal rooms with

or provide separate compartments

fermentation stills, with long views

technical facilities for stage building,

for different work, study or leisure

celebrating their sculptural forms. By

set-testing

activities. The stairs are a central and

adopting energy recycling and adapting

Wardrobe and music departments are

strong feature aligned with the main

the manufacturing process the building

positioned within easy access of the

entrance and connecting with the

is significantly more energy efficient,

administration area, which itself is

upper public rooms and generously

with a much lower carbon footprint,

set within the welcoming entrance to

scaled bedrooms which, like all the

than its historic predecessors.

the building. While all these aspects

and

transportation.

spaces within the house, enjoy large

are interconnected and visible from

windows and glorious light.

the central circulation space, the
separation of elements within the plan
acknowledges the diverse needs of all
its users.
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projects

EXHIBITION

Stanley Mills, Bell Mill & Mid
Mill, Perthshire

The Suttie Centre for
Teaching and Learning and
Healthcare, Aberdeen

RIBA Awards 2010: Scotland

LDN Architects

Bennetts Associates

The Lighthouse, Mitchell Street,
Glasgow, G1 3LX

keith hunter

ldn architects

ACCESS Gallery, Level 2, TO 28 Aug 2010

This
Stanley

project

Mills,

significant,

one

large

has
of

conserved
the

scale,

The

Suttie

Centre

brings

most

together NHS Clinical Skills Training

historic

and the University of Aberdeen’s

industrial complexes in Scotland into a

Department of Anatomy in a building

visitor attraction for Historic Scotland.

which is set within the historic hospital

The process has been as much about

campus where teaching and practice

preserving the robust character and

have always been combined. The

patina of these powerful mill buildings

building is an attractive place to learn.

as the careful introduction of a visitor

Elegantly contemporary in form, it

route, safety and ongoing conservation

nestles well within its campus setting.

measures. Although the mill wheels

The entrance atrium itself displays

and much of the machinery are long

historic artefacts and substantial,

gone this new facility gives visitors

specially commissioned new artworks

tremendous access and understanding

on an appropriately anatomical theme.

of a major component of Scotland’s

The ground floor also contains a

industrial history.

220 seat lecture theatre designed to

Materials throughout have been
kept deliberately simple, replacing

welcome national and international
conferences.

and replicating only where absolutely

The separation of the various

necessary. New infill materials are in

teaching activities, some requiring

appropriately robust style, retaining

highly secure space, is unobtrusive

the industrial aesthetic. However the

while

emphasis is on salvaged materials

performance

and appropriate patching, only where

credentials were a particular focus in

absolutely necessary. Historic service

its briefing and execution. The external

pipes and switchgear have also been

form, combining boldly articulated

conserved and retained, standing as

metalwork with red cedar cladding,

reminders of the huge scale of the

contrasts with the prevailing granite

industrial process which these massive

of Aberdeen and lends the building a

buildings embraced.

strong individual identity.
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the

building’s
and

energy

sustainability

This exhibition, which opened on the 21st
May, is a collaboration between Architecture
+ Design Scotland and the RIAS and features
the eight 2010 RIBA Award winning and the
eight shortlisted buildings. The exhibition
features a fantastic list of very varied
projects and geographical spread, including
a masterplan, housing, major conservation
work, hospital and education provision and
even a distillery.
At a time when life has been challenging
for the architectural profession and
construction industry these projects truly
demonstrate that good architecture can
have a huge positive impact on peoples’
lives and Scotland’s economy.
The Scottish Government is the
principal
sponsor
of
Architecture
and Design Scotland’s programme of
architecture and outreach activities based
at The Lighthouse.
Exhibition and Graphic Design
DO-Architecture
Exhibition fabrication
Joachim King
Exhibition Illustration
Matt McPhee

Architecture + Design Scotland

Level 2, The Lighthouse, Mitchell Street, Glasgow, G1 3LX

WHAT’S ON
RIBA Awards 2010: Scotland
ACCESS Gallery, Level 2, 21 May-28 Aug
2010
See opposite for details.
Natural Factory
Sust. Gallery, Level 2, early July-early Oct
2010

This exhibition showcases the past,
current and future uses of indigenous
Scottish timber – from tree to paper - but
in particular the potential to use timber
as a building material. It is the first in
a series of exhibitions investigating
sustainable construction products, which
will ultimately form the core of the Scottish
Government funded Sust. Materials
Library. The exhibition and the resultant
Library will operate on a number of levels,
and should appeal to young people, the
public and professionals alike – whether as
a resource for school and student projects,
for those building or upgrading their homes
or for designers working on large scale
architectural projects.

career in architecture and urban planning.
The exhibition presents the processes
and outcomes of a series of six city workshops (Liverpool, Manchester, Sheffield,
London, Birmingham and Glasgow) that
engaged 90 teenagers examining the
theme of designing for sport and leisure.
The material shown is derived from the
participants working with leading specialists
in the field of architecture, street sport,
video and sound and inspiration taken
from the London 2012 Olympic Games and
Glasgow 2014 Commonwealth Games sites.

exhibition via email to lynne.cox@ads.org.
uk with subject title ‘where we play’.
A+DS and RIAS Scottish Student
Awards for Architecture
Circulation space, Level 2, Fri 27 Aug
2010-Sat 15 Jan 2011

www.architectureforeveryone.org.uk

Our Urban Playground
Gallery 2, Level 2, Fri 10 Sept 2010-Sat 15
Jan 2011

Commonground: Glasgow 2014
Commonwealth Games
Review Gallery, Level 1, Fri 17 Sept 2010Sat 15 Jan 2011
Glasgow is hosting the Commonwealth
Games in 2014. This major regeneration
project aims to leave a lasting legacy of not
only new homes, facilities and transport
systems but also a healthier, fitter nation.
The new and expanded facilities will be
spread throughout Glasgow and include
an athlete’s village, an indoor sports arena,
an indoor velodrome, a 12,500-seater arena
and an international hockey complex.
This exhibition will show this
regeneration project in relation to the
whole of Glasgow by showing mapped
routes from community venues to proposed
commonwealth venues.

This nationwide project is part of the
‘Architecture for Everyone’ campaign - a
partnership between the Stephen Lawrence
Charitable Trust and architectural firm
RMJM - which encourages young people
from Britain’s inner cities to consider a

Where We Play 		
Alcove, Level 2, Fri 10 Sept 2010-Sat 15
Jan 2011
From hopscotch, skipping and leapfrog to
parkour, skateboarding and wheelies, to reimagining landscapes of abandoned odds
and sods. This mini exhibition will feature
both historical and contemporary visuals of
where children can (and can’t) play.
Visitors are invited to submit their own
images and comments for inclusion in the

The Scottish Government is the principal sponsor of Architecture and Design Scotland’s
programme of architecture and outreach activities based at The Lighthouse

This annual exhibition offers a rare
opportunity for the public and profession to
see the best work of students from all six of
Scotland’s Schools of Architecture together.
The single focus and high profile of the
awards provides an excellent chance for the
public and profession to view the standard
of student work and ideas from Scotland’s
most talented, emerging young architects.
Categories of Awards are: RIAS Rowand
Anderson Silver Medal for best 5th year
student, A+DS Award for best 3rd year
student, A+DS Urban Design Award, Sust.
Award for Sustainable Design and the RIAS
Drawing Award.
My Perfect Space
Circulation space, Level 2, Mon 23 Aug
2010-Sat 15 Jan 2011
The results of a national competition which
offered Scotland’s children and young people
under 18 the chance to inform international
architects, planners, policymakers and
designers about their perfect place and
its importance to them, through drawing,
painting, collage or photography.
This competition is part of Making Space
2010, a programme of events focusing on
the importance of creating innovative and
inspiring environments in which children
and young people can learn and live.
www.childreninscotland.org.uk/makingspace
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masterplan images by cadell2

Scotland’s Housing Expo in Inverness will
showcase the winning designs submitted by
architects across the country who entered
a competition which was organised by the
RIAS in 2007. The whole process of creating
this ambitious project for the first time
in the UK has been a significant learning
curve for everyone involved, including the
architects, and the result will be on public
display throughout the whole month of
August. The challenge for the architects was
to create design-led homes with a wholly
sustainable philosophy. The result has
been the creation of 52 diverse, unique and
visionary interpretations of future living,
all set in an overall vision for community
living created by masterplanner Johnny
Cadell of Cadell2.
During the month-long Expo event
the houses and their contents will form
a platform for showcasing the wealth
of Highland and Scottish design talent,
including interior and product design. The
initiative itself also provides a ‘test bed’ for
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construction and technological innovation,
which will inform Scottish house building
in the future. The houses will inspire
developers to learn new skills and source
fresh ideas to incorporate into future
designs, while demonstrating how new
building standards can be met on energy
efficiency and carbon reduction.
As you would expect, each architect
approached the brief differently, with a vast
range of materials and techniques used to
demonstrate sustainable home design.
For example, Inverness-based Keppie
Design’s challenge was to create a threestorey building of ‘affordable housing’
flats for Albyn Housing Society. All the
rooms in the flats had to meet Albyn’s
design guidance, which insists on generous
proportions to make for comfortable
living. The design uses commonly available
materials and understood construction
techniques in a way to create a building
that aims to perform ‘passively’ to reduce
the reliance on energy consumption for

heating the spaces. All the hot water and
any heating requirements for the flats are
met using one central wood pellet (biomass)
boiler, situated adjacent to the building. As
a method of water heating, this significantly
reduces carbon emissions compared to
traditional oil, gas or electricity.
‘The Gem’, designed by Trevor Black,
also supports a mainly passive approach,
with both roof walls and floors insulated to
a standard approximately 60% higher than
the current onerous requirements of the
Building Regulations. Windows and doors
have been triple glazed to achieve similar
standards. Considerable care was taken in
the detail design to ensure that the timber
frame house is well draught proofed, which,
together with well controlled ventilation,
allows the house to achieve further energy
efficiency improvements. A Terra Air Source
heat pump system, designed by Invisible
Heating Systems, provides the main
heating by producing around four times as
much energy as it uses to heat the house
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scotland’s

housing expo
and is supplemented with a wood burning
stove, which can use renewable local energy
supplies. The house also has solar panels
and a large hot water buffer storage tank, so
that for much of the year the solar heating
will provide the majority of the hot water
and space heating requirements.
During August there will be a range of
stimulating, entertaining and inspiring
activities in and around the homes to
attract all ages to the Expo, many with an
eco-friendly and sustainable living theme.
The month-long event also aims to educate
visitors about the ethos of the Expo and
the concepts and building methods for each
property.
There will also be a series of professionally
orientated seminars organised by one of
the Expo partners, Sust. The seminars will
run every Tuesday and Wednesday around
linked themes in order that those delegates
who wish to have time to explore the Expo
fully will have a reason to stay in Inverness
for more than one day.

Themes include:
• Week 1: Contextual Planning and
Architectural Responses,
• Week 2: Design Frameworks and
Lessons from Europe,
• Week 3: Sustainability, Materials and
Energy,
• Week 4: Ecological Design – Where
next? and The Future for Scottish
Timber in Construction
The seminars will be run in association
with various organisations including RIAS
and the IAA, Homes for Scotland, SEDA, the
Forestry Commission Scotland (Scotland)
with the Centre for Timber Engineering and
will include contributions from the Expo
masterplanner, the house designers and
developers, local architects, the Scottish
Government and Local Authority Planners,
with further contributions from other
European experts and the people behind
bringing the Expo to Scotland. There will be
no additional charge beyond the standard
daily ticket price to attend these seminars

and for those wishing to attend more than
one day can opt for the £10 multi-pass.
After August the Expo houses will
become homes and the development at
Milton of Leys will take shape as a living
and breathing community. This is when the
design and living concepts are really put to
the test and provide important findings that
will help shape and influence the future of
housebuilding in Scotland.
Fiona Hampton, Project Manager,
Scotland’s Housing Expo
Lori McElroy,
Sust. Programme Director

rias and the iaa are hosting a
seminar at the expo on wed 4th
aug. more info at
www.rias.org.uk
more info on the full seminar
programme at
www.scotlandshousingexpo.com
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plot

01

plot

02

plot

03

Stealth Terrace
jm architects

the stone house
nord architects

The Shed-House
The Highland Council

A terrace of 4 family homes wrapped in
a skin of black rubber and black stained
larch cladding. Climbing ivy is planted
along the south elevation which will grow
and envelope the facade transforming the
building into a living structure.

As the name suggests the building is designed
as an object like volume made of Caithness
stone. The ‘Stone House’ is a terrace of four
family sized houses. Each house has three
bedrooms and kitchen on the ground floor
level orientated around a private garden,
open plan living areas are on the upper level
with access to a private terrace.

A low cost, low energy family house, which
will be a comfortable and enjoyable place to
live. The west facing living room and kitchen
open out into the gardens.

House type Terrace of four houses

House type Terrace of four houses

Internal floor area Two bed houses

Internal floor area Each 148m ,

103m ; three bed houses 104m
2

2

House type Terrace of three houses
2

three bedrooms

Key design feature Innovative use

Key design feature Plot 2 is

of an exposed synthetic rubber
membrane as a sustainable solar
thermal absorbing cladding system to
both walls and roof.
Construction system Prefabricated
JJI joist timber frame roof and wall
construction with rubber cladding to
south, east and west elevations and
timber cladding to north elevation.
annual heating cost £92

characterised by its outer skin of
‘Riven’ Caithness Stone
Construction system The Stone
House is constructed of an internal
timber framed structure with outer
skin of Caithness Stone, slate and
larch.
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Internal floor area Houses 109m2
Key design feature The simple/

adaptable floor plan, with its
generous natural daylighting and
standard construction is designed to
encourage the view that good design
need not be radical or expensive.
Construction system Light timber
cladding on a standard 140mm
timber frame with trussed rafters
and a concrete slab foundation.
annual heating cost £213
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plot

04.1

plot

04.2

plot

04.3

The Timber House
John Gilbert Architects

The Healthy House
Andrew Black Design

Lios Gorm (Green Place to Live)
David Blaikie Architects

A contemporary reworking of the
Highland vernacular, constructed with
energy efficient cross-laminated timber,
sheathed in profiled metal cladding. High
thermal mass retains heat and it is entirely
breathable, creating a healthy low allergen,
low-carbon home.

A rational but ambitious approach to the
future of sustainable, healthy, stimulating
and affordable housing design.

Affordable housing driven by sustainable
sourcing of local materials, advanced offsite construction techniques and passive
systems. These homes are restful, versatile
and instinctive, designed to promote
micro-community and personal well being.

House type Two semi-detached houses

House type Two semi-detached houses

House type Two storey house, upper

Internal floor area Each house

Internal floor area Each house

flat and fully accessible lower flat
Internal floor area House 126m2;
upper flat 52m2; lower flat 52m2
Key design feature Pragmatic
sustainability achieved by off-site
construction and pre-fabricated
central service cores, built with
Scottish timber.
Construction system Timber framed
closed panel wall, floor and roof
cassettes with load bearing central
service cores.
annual heating cost House £112;
upper flat £52; lower flat £47

78m2

90m²

Key design feature Cross laminated

Key design feature Open plan living

timber construction makes for an
attractive, healthy, easy to heat
home.
Construction system Cross
laminated timber construction
energy performance 122kWh/m2
annual heating cost £194

offering a naturally lit environment
and interaction between public areas
Construction system Timber-frame,
with timber cladding externally
Annual heating cost £64

95mm Martinsons cross laminasolid
timber panel ted
200mm hemp batts
soft wood timber bearers
tyvek breather membrane

euroclad sinusoidal mill ﬁnish
aluminium cladding
25 x 45 timber battens

33 x 75mm timber counterbattens
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05

The Corner House
jm architects

plot

06

Woodrock
AIM Design

A 3 bedroom live-work unit which uses
simple design to create a sustainable
modern approach to living. The live-work
units are positioned at either end of the
plot and are connected by a ‘garden wall’
which provides privacy and protection to
the courtyard garden.

e l e v a t i o n!

A bold house of two boxes of honest
h i g h l a
industry, one in timber skin floating above
the other in white, penetrations into each
skin from balcony and window.

House type Detached house & workshop

House type Detached house

Internal floor area House 140m ;

Internal floor area House 143m ;

2

workshop 22m

2

07

House No 7
David Somerville Architects

south
!

A modest house full of warmth and light.
n

d

h o u s i n g

f a i r

p l o t

4 .2

House type Detached house with office
2

workshop 22m

2

Key design feature Passive solution

Key design feature A site responsive

to promote natural ventilation and
heating through the house by means
of large south facing windows and a
double height void in the living space.
Construction system Prefabricated
structural insulated timber panel
roof/wall construction with facing
brick, larch wall cladding and exposed
synthetic rubber roofing membrane.
annual heating cost £136

design that takes full advantage of
orientation to assist in heating the
house and maximize available views.
Construction system Cellulose
insulation within a traditional
timber frame that is also clad with
Diffutherm Wood Fibre insulation to
achieve optimum thermal efficiency.
annual heating cost £250
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plot

Internal floor area 124m2
Key design feature To create a

house full of light and sun using the
structure of the house to absorb and
store the free heat which results from
this
Construction system Double
dense block wall with a fully filled
cavity masonry internal walls and
engineered joist roof with 300mm
insulation
annual heating cost £384
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plot

08

plot

09

plot

11

The Apartment Building
Keppie Design

Three on Nine
Graham Mitchell Architects

The Passive House
HLM Architects

An innovative design using responsibly
sourced, commonly available materials and
well understood construction techniques.
The building performs ‘passively’, regulating
the internal environment and creating a
series of enjoyable dwelling spaces.

Analysis of home, family and community
within the Highland context informed the
succinct terrace creating a distinct sense
of place. Simple environmental strategies
provide well-lit healthy spaces incorporating
water recycling, heat recovery, solar water
heating and air source heat pump.

An innovative, modern, contextual terrace
demonstrating the future of low energy
housing. Through careful orientation,
compact form, an air-tight super-insulated
building fabric and a basic mechanical
ventilation system this house achieves an
80% reduction in energy consumption.

House type Six flats
Internal floor area Each flat 76m

2

Key design feature Solar buffer

space at the front of each flat, central
biomass (wood pellet) boiler, highly
insulated thermal envelope.
Construction system Structural
timber frame with masonry
construction on steel frame to
sunspace and communal stair.
annual energy use 99-113 kWh/m2
annual heating costs £153-169

House type Terrace of three houses

House type Terrace of three houses

Internal floor area Each house

Internal floor area Each house

110m2

107m²

Key design feature Generously

Key design feature A house that

planned spaces animated by natural
light and a diversity of internal
spaces to inhabit
Construction system Highly
insulated timber frame on solid
insulated floor construction.
annual energy use 138kWh/m2
annual heating costs £362

requires little or no energy use for
heating or cooling
Construction system ‘PassiveWall’
Prefabricated Closed Timber Panel
System including Wall, Floor and
Roof Cassettes by RTC (Elgin)
annual energy use 109 kWh/m²
annual heating costs £107
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12

plot

14

plot

15

The Gem
Trevor Black Architects

The Skylight Home
Richard Murphy Architects

The Modular House
Bracewell Stirling Architects

A distinctive super-insulated reinterpretation of a Highland cottage, which is
spacious, bright and cosy with generous
south facing windows, constructed of
locally sourced indigenous materials.

A healthy, breathing home, centred around
a dynamic living space which adapts to suit
the time of day. Generous and light filled
during the day then cosy and intimate at
night.

A state-of-the-art, carbon neutral living
space as natural as the environment, which
considers carbon reduction from every
angle.

House type Detached house

House type Detached house

House type Detached house with office

Internal floor area 143m

Internal floor area 134m²

Internal floor area 169m2

Key design feature Bright, spacious

Key design feature A dynamic

rooms, with generous south facing
windows opening to balconies and a
secluded garden
Construction system Timber frame,
with innovative double stud for super
high insulation and with masonry
thermal store.

breathing permeable insulated roof,
drawing fresh air directly through the
insulation and in the process heating
and cooling the air passively.
Construction system Timber frame
construction, dynamic energyflo
insulated roof, standing seam zinc
roof covering, natural larch clad
walls.
annual heating costs £278

2
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Key design feature High thermal

performance air tight external
structure with complementary
heating/ventilation system. Factory
assembled long panel construction,
high quality finish, quick assembly,
minimised waste during construction.
Construction system

Pre-insulated long panel factory
assembled high performance
(Supawall) timber frame
annual energy USE 102 kWh/m2
annual heating costs £611
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White House
Graeme Massie Architects

The Hebridean House
Rural Design

The Whole Life House
Brennan and Wilson Architects

The White House exploits the potential of
new construction technologies to develop
a new house-type – ‘the suburban loft’ –
appropriate for modern living.

A simple design that reinterprets
traditional Highland houses and gardens,
and reinforces the role that outside space
can play in a modern sustainable lifestyle.

The whole life house – designed for the long
term, to change and adapt to the complex
ways that families now live and work. The
house features an adaptable ground floor
annex.

House type Detached house

House type Detached house

House type Detached house with annex

Internal floor area 155 m²

Internal floor area 137m

Internal floor area 160m2

Key design feature Large, open plan

Key design feature The outwardly

Key design feature Flexible

loft area containing kitchen, dining
and living areas.
Construction system Crosslaminated timber panel structure
with a resin based external coating
on walls and roof.
annual heating cost £426

simple form containing a rich
arrangement of internal spaces that
create strong connections to the
outside world.
Construction system Timber frame
with JJI joists and insulation up to
350mm thick
annual heating cost £320

accommodation, highly insulated,
thermal mass floor, solar panels,
zoned heating, passive solar gain.
Construction system Timber kit
with insulation. Finished with
Scottish larch cladding and render.
Zinc metal sheeting to roof.
annual energy use 83kWh/m²
annual heating costs £315

2
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Twin Peaks
Joseph Thurrott Architects

Plot 20
Keppie Design

Black House
Graeme Massie Architects

A double volume design that creates a
flexible family living space.

This house takes a simple traditional
aesthetic and sustainable approach and
adapts it for a modern lifestyle.

In seeking to develop an innovative spatial
language appropriate to the Scottish
Highlands in the twenty-first century,
the Black House utilises innovative
construction methods to redefine the
relationship between house, garden and the
wider landscape.

House type Detached house

House type Detached house

House type Detached house

Internal floor area 150 m²

Internal floor area 163 m²

Internal floor area 116m²

Key design feature Enhanced

Key design feature Each room has

thermal performance through:
heavily insulated external walls, roof
and floor with triple glazing.
Construction system Timber
frame construction containing high
performance insulation boards which
achieve a BRE Green Guide A Rating.
annual energy use 109 kWh/m2
annual heating costs £333

a large fully glazed external wall to
establish a close relationship between
inside and out.
Construction system Crosslaminated timber panel structure
with a resin based external coating to
walls and roofs.
annual heating costs £388

Key design feature Comprises two

primary volumes: a ‘closed’ north
volume provides an environmental
buffer whilst giving privacy. An ‘open’
south volume provides maximum
passive solar gain and a direct
connection with the garden.
Construction system Timber stud
frame breathing wall construction
wrapped in a proprietary insulated
render system.
annual energy use 125kWh/m²
annual heating costs £435
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HOUSE HS
Malcolm Fraser Architects

The Skewed House
Oliver Chapman Architects

RED Homes
McLean Architects

A simple envelope, a rich interior - a
sustainable, adaptable, flexible home.

The Skewed House embraces the benefits
of courtyard living and offers an attractive
mix of affordable, energy-efficient
accommodation. Wrapped in cedar shingles,
it avoids the monotonous, ‘one-size-fits-all’
approach which often generates anodyne,
anonymous accommodation.

The concept for RED Homes – Responsive
Environmental Design homes is based on
promoting eco-minimalism by integrating
sustainable design strategies with
contemporary architecture, using ecological
materials and solutions to minimise energy
consumption.

House type Two semi-detached houses

House type Two detached houses

House type Two semi-detached houses

Internal floor area House one

Internal floor area Each house

Internal floor area Each 90m2

109m²; House two 114m²
Key design feature A highly
insulated “breathing” envelope using
materials that can be recycled or from
natural sustainable sources. A flexible
internal layout.
Construction system Timber
frame structure with Scottish larch
cladding, zinc cladding and roofing.
annual heating costs £263

86.8m²
Key design feature The skewed ridge

of the roof generates unexpected
forms for the rooms below.
Construction system The building is
single storey with a heavily insulated
timber frame structure, over-clad in
cedar shingles.
annual energy use 85 kWh/m2
annual heating costs £528

Key design feature Minimised

heat loss through building envelope
by utilising high levels of thermal
insulation & triple-glazed windows.
Construction system Timber
I-joist construction with sheep wool
insulation, untreated larch cladding
& a single-ply membrane roof.
annual energy use 101 kWh/m2
annual heating costs £126
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The Flower House
a+j Burridge

The Hardcore Softhouse
studioKAP Architects

House NS
Malcolm Fraser Architects

A vibrant and innovative design with a
distinctive identity, the Flower House
tackles environmental issues head on but
remains delightful and user-friendly. The
outcome is a home that is both joyful and
serious.

The Hardcore Softhouse offers a
contemporary vernacular that carefully
considers the appropriate use of sustainable
construction materials in a solar orientated
design.

A simple building envelope, a rich interior
- a sustainable, adaptable, flexible family
home.

House type Detached house

House type Two semi-detached houses

House type Detached House

Internal floor area 133m²

Internal floor area Each house

Internal floor area 109m²

Key design feature Sunspace,

solar panels, natural light, water
conservation, prefabricated, draftproof, natural renewable materials,
minimised wastage, whole-house
ventilation, energy conservation &
flowers.
Construction system Precisionengineered cross-laminated timber
panel system, wood fibre insulation
with horizontal timber cladding.
annual energy use 123 kWh/m2

113m²
Key design feature Planned

around south facing double height
wintergardens with galleries above.
Construction system The external
envelope is constructed from a timber
clad highly insulated timber frame,
while a central masonry core houses
and passively recovers energy from
daily cooking and bathing.
annual energy use 106 kWh/m2

Key design feature A highly

insulated ‘breathing’ envelope using
materials that can be recycled or from
natural sustainable sources. A flexible
internal layout.
Construction system Timber frame
structure with Scottish larch cladding
and zinc roofing
annual heating cost £274
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feature // speirs and major associates

the illuminati
Sharon McCord talks to Jonathan Speirs and Keith Bradshaw about peer respect, glocalisation and
the award-winning success of Speirs and Major Associates

Within the well-ordered, open-plan room which is Speirs and
Major Associates’ design studio in Edinburgh’s Dean Village there
is one chaotic space, a deep window shelf which is littered with an
array of, mostly shiny, objects. These are some of the many awards
the practice has garnered in recent years.
It seems typical of Speirs and Major Associates’ style –
considered, thoughtful and often understated – that they eschew
a trophy cabinet celebration of their success. The practice may be
famous for illuminating some of the world’s most famous buildings
but they tend to sidestep the spotlight themselves. Nonetheless,
this relatively small company (only 34 employees between the
Edinburgh and London studios) has a global reach, is involved in a
diverse range of international projects and commands unparalleled
peer respect, as demonstrated by the fact that they recently won the
International Association of Lighting Designers’ (IALD) Radiance

Award, the highest accolade in their profession, for their exterior
lighting of the Sheikh Zayed Bin Sultan Al Nahyan Mosque (Grand
Mosque) of Abu Dhabi.
Indeed, the 2010 IALD Radiance Award takes its place on
the cluttered Edinburgh windowsill alongside the 2009 and
2008 Radiance awards. It’s a hat trick which speaks volumes
about Speirs and Major Associates’ dominance in the field of
lighting design and is testament not only to the creative flair
and ingenuity of the directors, Jonathan Speirs, Mark Major
and Keith Bradshaw, but also to the talent of the teams they
have nurtured. When they picked up the Radiance Award at
a ceremony in Las Vegas in May they also collected additional
awards, for the stunning and involving lighting of the Infinity
Bridge in Stockton-on-Tees and for the illumination of the Sands
Bethworks Resort in Bethlehem, USA.
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james newton

sands bethworks, bethlehem, usa

alyssha eve csuk

city of durham light and darkness strategy

Speirs, charismatic, affable and highly articulate, may claim it is
difficult to describe “this intangible material called light” but he is
actually very adept at getting across the value of its transformative
power. The practice, from its origins, has been innovative in the
way it presents ideas. He concedes: “One of the things we have
evolved very successfully is incredibly good communications skills
in terms of how we sell the story or present an idea to a client. It’s
very rare for us to present a fully considered, organised concept
and then have the client turn around and say no. Normally it is
rubber stamped with minor, if any, adjustment, because we have
thought it through, we’ve considered all the pros and cons. In
fact we’ve done a few presentations where we actually list all the
negatives first and deal with them.”
Speirs co-founded Lighting Design Partnership in 1984 then left
to form Jonathan Speirs and Associates in Edinburgh in 1992. The
following year he formed a working relationship with the Londonbased Mark Major which subsequently developed into Speirs and
Major Associates. As Speirs moves into a consultancy role the
day to day management of the Edinburgh studio will be driven
by fellow director Keith Bradshaw, a dynamic individual who, like
Speirs and Major (who runs the London studio), originally trained
as an architect.
While the practice staff is drawn from diverse fields, including
theatre, event management and product design, it is the
architectural background of the directorial trio which has shaped
Speirs and Major’s approach. “It’s really important to us that we
build collaborations properly,” stresses Bradshaw. “We do have a lot
of repeat collaboration where we build on the experience of what
we have learnt, specifically when it comes to fields like selection
of materials.”
Speirs agees. “Being able to speak exactly the same language
as the architect is incredibly valuable. We know how materials
work with light in terms of eye adaptation and contrasts.” He
also believes the three directors share another important quality.
“We are all abnormal. Seriously, we don’t think in the normal
way. We’ve been lucky enough to travel a lot around the world,
for instance, Keith and Mark are off to China tomorrow for a
couple of days. We are travelling all the time, we see stuff, we meet
people, we are exposed to theatre and museums, we are exposed
to so many different influences on a regular basis so we do have
a huge experience and knowledge base of projects, circumstances
and situations.”
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jonathan speirs

mark major

keith bradshaw

They’ve collaborated on numerous projects with Henning
Larsen Architects and Louis Becker, the Design Director there,
comments from Copenhagen; “Working with Speirs and Major on
the Danish National Opera gave new meaning to design excellence
in lighting design. Their pro-active approach and the qualified
inputs created a unique lighting completely integrated with the
building design.”
Bradshaw describes their approach as “glocal” (think globally
and act locally) but while they embrace new technology and
are diehards of video conferencing they still put in a lot of air
miles. Working on lighting specifications from under £10,000 to
£20 million their activity spans Europe, the Middle East, North
American and Asia. They won the 2008 Radiance award for their
lighting of the Richard Rodgers’ designed Barajas International
airport in Madrid and a year later for their work on Foster and
Partners’ 3 More London. They’ve collaborated on five Stirling
Prize-winning projects; Magna Science Adventure Centre,
Rotherham, the Gateshead Millennium Bridge, 30 St Mary Axe,
London, Barajas Airport and the Maggie’s Centre in London.
With such international activity why has Speirs chosen to
remain rooted in Edinburgh? “First and foremost we started
here,” he explains. “As a place to be based we are very lucky. We
have a fantastic studio and there is something about the sanity of
Edinburgh which, with all of the travelling that we do, gives a very
good base from which to think. The quality of life is considerably
higher than many of the other places we have had the ability to
experience.” Bradshaw nods his agreement and adds “We’ve also
built up a really strong team, we have an incredible skills base.”
While they clearly relish the stimuli of world travel they are
rueful about the fact that invitations to work in Scotland are rare.
They are heavily involved in plans for the London Olympics but, to
date, have not been asked to provide input to the Commonwealth
Games. They’d like to work on more Scottish buildings – indeed,
they recently provided early concepts for Brisac Gonzalez’s illfated proposal for the Peacock arts centre in Aberdeen – and are
concerned that perhaps they are perceived as only interested in big
budget projects.
“We lit a very simple sphere for Virgin as part of their upper
class lounge. We lit that very carefully, very simply and very
inexpensively and wow, what an effect! I think we are as pleased
with the result of that as of some of the massive overseas projects,”
notes Speirs.
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“Some of our most creative solutions have been on modest
budgets – in fact the Infinity Bridge wasn’t that expensive for the
impact it has,” points out Bradshaw.
It certainly has a significant impact and is enjoyably interactive.
At night handrail sensors trigger a change from blue to white LEDs
as pedestrians cross the bridge. “The more people there are on the
bridge, the more it is used as a link, the more it feels safe. Suddenly
you have more and more reasons to develop the other side of the
river,” Bradshaw explains.
They’ve been reasonably cushioned from the effects of the
recession, primarily, Speirs suspects, because they resisted the
temptation to expand during heady times. “We maintained a tight
team, turned work down and were very selective.” The decision
to keep the focus on quality has stood them in good stead, with
award-winning projects effectively opening the door to ever more
exciting work.
The Grand Mosque project offered an unrivalled opportunity
to create a particularly bold narrative. Sensitive to sense of place
they did a huge amount of research. “We’d never lit a mosque
before so we had to learn about Islam and that was fascinating,
educational and interesting,” says Speirs. The result was a lighting
scheme which chimes with the lunar cycle, one which acknowledges
the moon’s importance in the Islamic calendar. In full moon the
massive structure is suffused with white light which, as the moon
wanes, grows gradually bluer to signify darkness. Technically
complex, the scheme involves hidden projectors which create the
impression of clouds drifting, from the direction of Mecca, across
the surface of the mosque. The scale of the $545 million complex
is awe-inspiring – St Paul’s Cathedral could easily be tucked
into the courtyard. In an absorbing short video the practice has
posted on You Tube Speirs admits that the energy consumption is
phenomenal but argues that this is appropriate for such an iconic,
national monument.
Ironically, a growing appreciation for lighting design over
the past decade has been accompanied by heightened concerns
over energy use and light pollution, which in France has seen
a particularly extreme manifestation in the formation of the
‘Eteigneurs de neon’ (‘Neon-light switcher-offers’), with ecoguerillas disabling the lighting of buildings in a protest against
energy consumption.
In fact Speirs and Major Associates take the issue of night time
energy expenditure very seriously. Speirs points out that there have
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the Sheikh Zayed Bin Sultan Al Nahyan Mosque, Abu Dhabi
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after dark will appreciate is not right! Our HBoS client was very
open to the debate about reducing the visual impact of their building
and becoming a better civic neighbour. We were able to reduce the
total power consumption by almost 40% by reducing the number
of fixtures being used and, in combination with changing to a
more appropriate, warmer lamp, we were able to reduce the overall
brightness of the building by a similar percentage.”
With an attention to detail which is legendary – they will hire
Edinburgh theatres to create huge mock ups of proposals – Speirs
and Major Associates’ influence on global lighting design looks set
to continue but they’re careful not to rest on their laurels. “You are
only as good as your last job and it doesn’t matter where you are in
the planet. The flipside to the ‘glocal’ thing is that if we do a bad job
in Timbuktoo people are going to know about it,” says Speirs. “We
care about that immensely and it drives us in terms of making sure
that it doesn’t matter where in the world we are working we deliver
the best, the absolute best that we can for our clients.”

for more information, visit
www.samassociates.com

james newton

been several projects where they have actively lobbied the client
not to light up their building, as they did with 30 St Mary Axe,
discouraging the client from external illumination. “We believed
that the internal illumination created form and character and that
to apply a further layer externally was inappropriate,” he explains.
Their acclaimed strategic work for the City of Durham had at
its essence the belief that the city shouldn’t become overlit. “It
must be said that we were able to balance current technology,
safety issues with this attitude to keeping things controlled and
allow the darkness to inform”, says Speirs.
Last year, when masterminding the spectacular lightshow for
the official opening of Burj Khalifa in Dubai, the tallest building
in the word, they achieved maximum impact but low power
consumption and no apparent light pollution or sky glow though
utilising programmable strobes creatively and for short periods of
time.
Speirs also has an example closer to home; “When we worked
with Malcolm Fraser on the HBoS Mound HQ we were asked to
examine the existing external lighting to the building which had
been installed eight to ten years previously. The intensity and cool
appearance made the building far more dominant than the castle
in terms of visual hierarchy, which for those who know Edinburgh
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of rome
in the first of an occasional

feature, ian stuart campbell
offers some ‘snaps’, sketches
and personal reflections on
the eternal city.

Visitors almost always arrive in Rome with
a huge list of ‘must see’ attractions. Flocks
of walkers follow their flags, dragging heavy
legs from fountain, to basilica, and on. It is
unlikely that anything more than a slight
understanding of the complex layers of this
city can be gleaned this way, and for some,
that may be enough.
Rome is distinctive however in so
many ways. You will never need to spend
time editing road signs, barriers, yellow
lines or traffic detritus, which so despoil
your photographs of other beautiful cities.
The `Jeremy Clarkson school’ of traffic
management works remarkably well,
passing huge volumes of indecently large

cars, and clouds of Vespas quickly through
often narrow, chaotic central streets. Free
form haphazard parking is another latin
art-form, which operates with surprisingly
little aggravation, and sometimes even
displays ‘sprezzatura’ – an Italian word that
defines a certain nonchalance, which makes
difficult tasks seem effortless.
Likewise, the dead hands of cost
consultants seem totally absent over the
2,000+ years of construction and ongoing
adaptation, which has created this Eternal
City. Why build one stair where bi-parting
risers could add symmetry? Huge floor to
ceiling heights give gigantic, but beautifully
proportioned, three or four storey palaces.

Face to face they challenge each other
across a Via clearly designed to allow only
an Imperial Chariot and one horse to pass.
Buildings for worship can, and do, go higher
still. Casual exploration behind tall porticos
is to be recommended. Everywhere in Rome,
the visitor is rewarded with magnificent
frescoes, sculptures, and design, each with
provenance to match the world’s best
museums.
Every inch counts in Rome. No space
lies unused, or under-used. Wherever your
gaze falls there is tremendous evidence of
human effort. Graffiti-ed shutters rise to
reveal stunning, bright, high fashion display
windows and stylish, expensive shops.
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Leather, glass, or furniture work-benches
spill out from packed stockrooms, while
bistros and cafes daily colonise those parts
of the streets, which lesser cities reserve only
for traffic wardens. ‘Hole in the wall’ retailing
throughout the centre, gives an impression
that Rome blossoms as the day emerges
towards its highlight – ‘passegiatta’, that
evening ritual where young Italians dress in
style, and promenade to see and be seen.
The energetic bustle, which creates a
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busy market each weekday morning around
the statue of Giordano Bruno in Campo dei
Fiori, is matched by the efficient dismantling
and barrowing back early each afternoon.
This huge task eventually gives way to a
ballet performed by rotating petite cleansing
vehicles, who quickly remove bulk waste,
squish water, and restore the piazza for more
sophisticated al fresco evening uses.
The centre of Rome has few modern
buildings. One notable exception however

is the Ara Pacis Museum by Richard Meier.
Evocative of his MACBA in Barcelona, Ara
Pacis sits well on its prominent riverside
site. The white travertine and glass gives
a sparkling and airy Roman home for the
rebuilt and restored Altar to Peace, dedicated
to Augustus in 12bc.
While contemporary architects show
exemplary innovative skills in reuse and
adaptation of historic buildings, it can be
engrossing also to explore the extent of
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previous layers of architectural interventions.
The removal of gilded bronze roof tiles from
the Pantheon in 663ad, and later reuse of
further melted bronze ceilings from the
porch, by Bernini in 1634, may appeal to
green philosophy but it also seems a bit like
vandalism. Part of the Baths of Diocletian
(dating from 298ad), were also reconfigured
to form a basilica, S.Maria degli Angeli, in
1563 by Michelangelo; further works created
a transept in 1749 to a design by Vanvitelli,

but still the mighty groin vaulting gives
some idea of the appearance of the original
Baths in antiquity. Across the road, Piazza
Della Repubblica, was formed by extensive
rebuilding, in 1887, of two semi-circular
palaces, over the previous Esedra. The ancient
walls and floors are again visible through
glass floors installed in 2006 for the new
Exedra Hotel, along with an innovative roof
top leisure pool facilities.
The Eternal City cannot stand still,

and mercifully thus far, refuses to become
a ‘theme park’ setting. Innovative modern
design compliments, enlivens and
reinvigorates genuine world heritage sites
but this requires ‘sprezzatura’ – do we
have an equivalent sentiment in Gaelic or
Scots?
if you would like to contribute
to this slot, contact the editor
smccord@rias.org.uk
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Free ticket for
Homes and Interiors
Scotland 2010

RIAS members can claim a free ticket worth £10 for this popular
show, which is at Glasgow’s SECC from Friday 27th August to
Sunday 29th August. Members can also purchase discounted
advance tickets for only £6.
The show features an Interior Design Showcase, a
trendsetting show garden and a Design Theatre with a
programme of talks and demonstrations. More than 100
exhibitors will be present at the show and more info can be
found at www.homesandinteriorsscotland.com/exhibition/
To claim your free ticket and purchase advance discount
tickets call 0141 567 6025 and quote RIAS.

Advisory Service –
Volunteers required!
RIAS will have a stand at the exhibition and will be
offering members of the public an Advisory Service - the
opportunity to have a brief consultation with an architect.
If you would like to participate please contact Sonja
Rosendahl on srosendahl@rias.org.uk or call 0131 229 7545
indicating your availability between 9am and 5pm on Friday
27th, Saturday 28th or Sunday 29th August 2009.
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Scottish Government
Sustainable Housing
Ideas Competition
As part of the Scottish Government’s Scottish Sustainable
Communities Initiative (SSCI) the RIAS is managing a design
competition based around the SSCI exemplar site at Whitecross,
near Linlithgow. The competition sought housing and urban
design proposals that combine high levels of sustainability and
reductions in carbon emissions with a sensitive response to
place and context.
It is expected that design proposals will reflect a ‘new
vernacular’ for Scottish architecture that demonstrates how
environmentally-sensitive designs might influence both the
architecture and urban layout of contemporary development.
Culture Minister Fiona Hyslop said “The design and development
of sustainable housing is at the heart of what this Government
wants for communities across Scotland. This Design Competition
is an exciting opportunity for practices to come forward with bold
and challenging architecture that can contribute to sustainable
development and the fight against climate change.”
The SSCI design competition is a restricted competition, split
into two stages. The initial stage of the competition, launched
in June, invited expressions of interest and the completion of
a pre-qualification questionnaire (PQQ). The second stage will
involve the release of more detailed information to a maximum
of five shortlisted parties. These parties will then be invited to
submit design proposals to be judged by a specialist panel.
A key objective of the competition is the development
of designs that combine innovative responses to sustainable
lifestyles with commercial viability. Architect teams invited
to develop design for stage two of the competition will be
required to have a developer involved in the team to provide
information of costs and marketability.
Honoraria of £3,000 will be awarded to unsuccessful
shortlisted bidders taken forward to the design proposal stage.
The winner will receive £10,000. Following the announcement
of the competition winner, the architect/developer team behind
the winning entry will be expected to work with Morston Assets
to develop the designs further.
Brian Moore
Director of Consultancy
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The Prince’s Regeneration Trust
The Prince’s Regeneration Trust has launched new materials for
heritage-led regeneration - a comprehensive new guide for anyone
wanting to improve the environmental performance of historic
and listed buildings and an online toolkit designed to assist local
authorities and other public bodies in the asset management of
historic buildings.
In June at an event at the Palace of Holyroodhouse HRH The
Prince Charles Duke of Rothesay launched the new publication,
The Green Guide for Historic Buildings, to an audience of historic
building and environmental practitioners, funders, public and
private sector bodies, building preservation trusts and property
specialists.
Well designed and easily accessible the guide offers practical
step-by-step advice on improving the environmental sustainability
of historic and listed buildings, expert opinion on sympathetic
adaptations and crucially, how effective they are likely to be in
saving money and reducing carbon emissions. It summaries key
legislation and policy and takes the reader through the major
steps, from planning to completion, There are practical ‘hints and
tips’ from leading heritage regeneration specialists and a quick
reference FAQ section on how to obtain statutory consents. Cost
comparisons are given on the move to cleaner energy, together
with schemes and initiatives that can save money when it comes
to adapting a building. The guide also uses 13 exemplar case
studies, including two Edinburgh projects – the redevelopment of
the Category B listed Norton Park by Burnett Pollock Associates
and Changeworks’ project in energy reduction measures at

Laurieston Place – to show where environmental efficiency has
been successfully achieved in the UK.
The Trust, which operates in partnership with communities,
developers, local authorities and other public bodies, works to help
underused or redundant historic buildings perform a new function,
unlocking a regeneration of the wider community, particularly in
areas of social and economic deprivation. Successful collaborations
in Scotland include working with Renfrewshire Council on Anchor
Mills in Paisley and with Perth & Kinloss Council on Stanley Mills.
At the launch event for the guide Tom Morton, Principal of ARC
Architects, spoke of the practice’s award-winning restoration
and refurbishment of the Old Logie Schoolhouse in Angus, as an
example of a successful low carbon project.
Sustainable Heritage Toolkit
Following research which demonstrates over 8% of the historic
buildings at risk in the UK are in the ownership of local authorities
the Prince’s Regeneration Trust has launched an online toolkit
which provides valuable information about how to ensure
historic buildings remain commercially viable and contribute
positively to the local community when their current use comes
to an end. It is available online at www.princes-regeneration.org/
sustainableheritage
The Green Guide for Historic Buildings (£24.99) may be purchased
online at www.tsoshop.co.uk
Sharon McCord
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yamaguchi square, pamplona

a room
in
the
city
the fragility of public space
This article is adapted from a talk prepared
by david mackay hon frias for a proposed
conference on Glasgow’s George Square.
Sadly the conference has been postponed,
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perhaps indefinitely. however, as one of
europe’s most respected urbanists, david’s
views are a hugely important contribution to a
crucial, continuing debate.
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diagram of the links between the
shopping centre and the sea, plymouth

In considering the future of our public
space, in current jargon ‘place making’ I
have identified at least two questions that
may be worthwhile considering beyond the
more obvious challenges when we focus our
attention to the network of public spaces
in the city. Considering a civic square as a
room in the city is an excellent start, but if
we do not consider these two more general
problems, we could well come to inadequate
or inappropriate conclusions.
For me personally these two conundrums are: firstly that the architectural
profession has an uncertainty about the
form of urban culture, and secondly, that
there is a growing awareness of the inability
of our democratic political structure to
respond to that uncertainty. There is no
clear consensus or shared understanding
about the crucial importance of the built
form of the city. So there are moments
when architecture and politics seem merely
frivolous or self indulgent.
If we go back a few decades in history
we find that doctors, engineers and
architects together created the modern city.
At this moment architecture changed from
an academic to a rational pursuit through
concerns for health and sanitation.
However, some architects, politicians
and planners took this rational approach
to its seemingly rational conclusion in
proposing the functional city. The early
twentieth century masters insisted upon
fresh air and the car, and the carving up of
the city into four functional areas: living,
working, recreation and circulation. The
pursuit of this skewed logic eventually
destroyed the historical form of the
European city. The late 1960s riots in the
suburbs of Paris finally signalled the death
of this functional city.

Urban form, now an orphan of academic
and functional failures, joined to a growing
public mistrust of the professions, has led
us into our contemporary uncertainty on
which direction we should head. One way
out of this impasse is to observe the city,
then reflect on what we see.
In periods of uncertainty we need time
and space to reflect on what we know of the
past. There we can advance our thinking. We
must separate past success from failure. At
the same time, we must be careful not lose
all that has been achieved in recent times.
It is not a question of revivals. It is a
question of aligning the lessons of the past
with the demands of the present. One must
be simultaneously aware of our times and
the evidence before our eyes of how our
cities have successfully supported change
in the past. We must leave our desks and go
out into the streets and observe how people
act on the city stage.
For the moment, we should refer to
“repairing the city” rather than “urban
design” as it better indicates that you start
from what exists.
But where does the political client come
in? This brings us to the second question.
At present both the public and private
sectors seem to be as lost as the architects.
Public clients are demanding and getting,
the appalling “wow” factor or insisting
that everything is about the magic word
“sustainability”, which has always been
a part of our historical architecture. No
wonder we are in uncertain times.
Now just a word or two about what
some of us may think about the failure of
our democratic structure to respond to this
uncertainty about urban form. Again we
must turn to the past to understand the
future.

The futility of the Great War of 1914-18,
which at the time was labelled “the war to
end all wars” provoked a collective guilt for
the wasted deaths on the killing fields of
Flanders. In an effort to mitigate the errors,
a huge effort was made to make homes fit
for heroes and their families. Rows upon
rows of housing with gardens extended
cities and towns into the surrounding
countryside. This post-war moral crisis
led to a suburbanisation on a scale never
intended by the founders of the Garden
City.
In the past, the former aristocracy
toured Italy to acquire an urban culture,
which gave us their formal Palladian
houses, crescents and squares, later
followed by the new rich of the Industrial
Revolution, eager to demonstrate their
cultural qualities, with magnificent Town
Halls and Railway Terminals. These cultural
concerns were ignored by the post-war
governments, leaving planning to unelected
officials in the administration to meet the
demands of the market. With the building
industry becoming more powerful, and the
administration poorer, the quality of public
space was bound to suffer.
As a result, the architecture of the
public space became an orphan without
a client. The tiny Modern Movement in
architecture could not hope to fill the gap.
Fortunately, not all unelected officials lack
an urban culture. Many have the moral and
intellectual capacity to doubt and question
current fashionable ideas, create time to
think and reflect and observe their city;
away from their desks.
One of those was Thomas Sharp, whose
book Town Planning, was published in 1940,
a year into another Great War. He later
became Senior Research Officer for the
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Ministry of Town and Country Planning.
It’s a Pelican book that I have kept near my
bedside since I was 17.
In a representative democracy the
elected politicians of a town or city are
the natural client for the architecture of
the public space. Advised by professionals
it is they who have the responsibility to
understand urban space and to creatively
participate in its evolution. It is they, the
elected mayors and councillors, who should
write the brief.
In my experience over half a century
and across Europe, I have encountered a
few politicians who have understood the
crucial role of representative democratic
leadership in the built environment,
but unfortunately far too few. Too often
ignorance, a lack of engagement or poor
advice results in frivolous attempts to just
‘brighten-up’ public spaces. However, today
there are a growing number of informed
political leaders who understand their
responsibility to both the heritage of the
city and the necessity to create a heritage
for future generations.
Our lifetime is like a drop of water
compared to the ocean of time that
belongs to the city itself. One must look
well beyond current market values and
economic conditions. The long term
cost benefit analysis is crucial. More
important still is the long term human
benefit analysis - that is what should
drive our political leaders - and determine
their electability!
Learning From Cities
This article began by questioning what
urban design is about. There are perhaps
some insights in MBM’s experiences of
working in Spanish and other European
cities.
First of all - a warning! You cannot
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simply transfer ideas from one city to
another. You must translate ideas between
one culture and another. Europe is rich in
diverse cultures which must be understood
in detail before appropriate interventions
can be determined. On the other hand, the
problems are very similar.
These reflections arise from building in
cities where every construction not only
responds to a specific programme but is also
responsive to being part of that particular
city. This has led us to observe how the form
of the city is the key to any intervention, in
either repairing the existing city or, more
difficult, extending it.
It seems sensible to begin with the
street itself, the backbone or our urban
society. Streets give a recognisable form to
public space. People structure their social
relationships within the neighbourhood
and through recognised itineraries, through
the city to which they belong.
The principal function of the street
is to connect. It has to be imagined as a
place, an itinerary and a variable, even
spontaneous, unpredictable opportunity
for personal and collective events. It is
the collective instrument for information
and accessibility, which are often enriched
through casual encounters with other
people.
The street also carries the weight of
history. We tread in the footsteps of the
past. Here the individual memory mixes
with the collective memory to form and
inform our sense of the place. When the
street broadens into a large space it marks
a stage in the itinerary through the village,
town, or city. These stages in the network of
streets, which might be a special building, a
park or a bridge, provide the links between
time and space. For a sense of familiarity
or wellbeing, in our perception of time
and space, we should be able to count on a

recognisable punctuation along our urban
itinerary every 500 m or so.
Two notable MBM projects illustrate
the contemporary urban conundrum. In
both the role of the architect helped in
reaffirming the identity of places where it
was in danger of being lost.
The first illustration is not the Olympic
Village in Barcelona, arguably MBM’s best
known and certainly our most quoted work,
where we were able to bring the city to the
sea. Rather it is from the famous city of
Hemingway, San Fermín and the bull-fights
– Pamplona.
The first elected Pamplona City Council,
after the dictatorship of Franco, realised
that there was still a chance to save a
somewhat chaotic high-density suburb of
the city through the careful development
of the last remaining building sites in the
area. They called in the various developers
involved, together with their architects and
proposed that a new public square should
be created, involving an adjustment of the
existing town plan, but in a way that none
of them would loose their rights over the
total built floor areas.
We were invited by the City Council to
be the architects of the new public square
-- the Plaza Yamaguchi -- and to reach an
agreement with the different architects and
developers involved. Meanwhile the city
suspended building licenses for one year
but guaranteed that they would be granted
immediately after the design of the square
had been agreed to by all parties.
This was probably not a strictly legal
procedure but a powerfully pragmatic
political intervention. If the developers had
gone to court that would have delayed their
investment opportunity into an uncharted
future. Besides, it was an exciting political
moment. The citizens once again had their
own elected democratic local government
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yamaguchi square, pamploma;
vision for the centre of plymouth,
revitalising abercrombie’s plan and
reconnecting it to the waterfront,
millbay and sutton harbour

and a Council which everyone was willing to
support.
Our first stipulation was that the design
of a public square would mean nothing if
limited to the horizontal surface. Therefore
the surrounding façades of the buildings
should also be designed by one hand, like
Glasgow’s Park area by Charles Wilson.
In this case it was agreed that it could be
ourselves, as architects commissioned
to design the square. This was in fact just
dipping into history and repeating the
circumstances that produced the Rue de
Rivoli in Paris, Bloomsbury in London or
the New Town in Edinburgh.
The four different developers and their
architects followed our design process
carefully. We were able to reach an agreement
on the design and the costs which had to
be covered by the developers. The square is
now completed and has rapidly become a
lively and popular centre. All the flats were
sold in record time and at prices above the
normal range because the new square gave
the neighbourhood a recognisable identity.
It is odd that, as an Anglo Irishman, I
am writing in a Scottish journal suggesting
a new approach to urban design from an
experiment in Spain based precisely on
what England and Scotland did, not too
long ago. Coal to Newcastle?
The other example I wish to quote is the
repair of Abercrombie’s radical plan for the
city centre of Plymouth after its destruction
in the war. It concerns his famous Armada
Way, across the dip between the railway
station and the famous Hoe.
At some time during the rebuilding
of the city centre it had been decided to
fence off pedestrians from walking over
the Kingsway that cut across Armada
Way. Instead they were taken through an
underpass. This cut the commercial centre

off from the formal administrative centre
and the walk up to the Hoe.
We suggested to the planning
department and the leader of the Council
that the two sides of Kingsway should
be joined at pedestrian level to recover
the continuity of Abercrombie’s original
plan. Eliminating the underpass allowed
the city to acquire a spacious paved
square that linked the commercial with
the administrative centres, allowing the
easy continuity of the pedestrian Armada
Way. At the same time, this created the
perception that the buildings on both sides
belonged to the same public space.
Thinking of history, there was a certain
irony that Armada Way was restored by
architects from Spain. The decision to go
ahead, in spite of strong opposition from the
car lobby, was a political risk. The fact that
we had compared the underpass with the
Soviet underpasses in Moscow enlivened the
debate. This was a particularly challenging
analogy for the largely conservative car lobby.
However Plymouth had no civic square to
accommodate public events celebrations, so
this was a major enhancement of the City.
With great skill the planning department
itself carried out the project and supervised
its construction after the removal of the
railings and underpass. Now the streets are
reinstated and the conflict of traffic with
pedestrians, has been resolved through
the execution of the excellent design of the
architects and planners in the city’s own
planning department.
Sadly the Council was later hijacked by
an offer from the BBC to install a giant TV
screen that blocks part of the view. This is
a minor error. Sometimes you take a risk
and have to admit errors. But then, without
risks, city life would be very dull.
David Mackay, May 2010

david mackay’s ‘a life in cities’,
rrp £20 is now available for
only £10 inc P&P from the rias
bookshop. call 0131 229 7545.
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convention 2010

review

Gordon G Smith, President of the Aberdeen Chapter offers a personal take
on the RIAS Convention 2010.
all convention photography by wattie cheung.
convention images at www.flickr.com/photos/royalincorporationofarchitectsinscotland
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Richard Murphy’s refurbished Stirling
Tolbooth, a building of stair-filled
eccentricity, hosted this year’s RIAS
Convention on the theme of Cultural
Regeneration. The highlight of the
Incorporation’s annual calendar was
attended by (a now fitter) 165 delegates.
Architects attired in black proudly donned
the orange shoulder bags, a thoroughly
appropriate colour combo for the weekend
of Dundee United’s glory in the Scottish
Cup Final.
The event, wisely scaled back to
acknowledge the current financial climate,
was a sell out. In the week after the General
Election, many delegates were sympathetic
to Dominic Papa’s amusing reflection that
he had had to travel north to get away from
the Tories!
The opening day, was chaired by Iain
Docherty, Professor of Public Policy and
Governance at the University of Glasgow. The
theme ‘The Gateway to the North’, opened
with presentations on the redevelopment
of the Raploch, a sprawling estate which
sits in the shadow of Stirling’s castle rock.
Bob Laverty, CEO of Raploch URC Ltd,
and Eugene Mullan of Smith Scott Mullan
Architects explored the work of the Raploch
Urban Regeneration Company. With
community collaboration they plan to deliver
900 new homes and 225 job opportunities
through infrastructure and public realm
regeneration over the next decade.
Summing up after Bob and Eugene’s
detailed expositions on process and
progress, Iain Docherty stressed the social,
economic, environmental and cultural
impact architecture has on our quality of life
and its relevance to policy. “We need to be
more radical in the way we make decisions
about how we make communities. Only
through effective partnership working,

can we rebuild communities where people
choose to live, work and visit, with new
homes, education and health facilities,
within an economically sustainable
environment.”
The afternoon was opened by Fiona
Porteous with an introduction to Scotland’s
Housing Expo. In August the Expo site, just
outside Inverness, will showcase innovative
architectural solutions and sustainable
building techniques. Trevor Black of
Trevor Black Architects, John Gilbert of
John Gilbert Architects, and Alan Pert of
Nord Architecture each presented their
approaches to the Expo.
‘The Gem’ is a super-insulated reinterpretation of the archetypal Highland
house by Trevor Black. Its chunky masonry
walls are firmly rooted in the ground. A
simple, highly efficient layout and building
profile utilise passive solar heating to the
maximum.
The 2001 Malmo Expo inspired John
Gilbert’s use of solid timber construction.
The Scandinavian system he has employed
has the advantage that no glue or nails are
used in the construction. Initially costed
at 20% over budget, John admitted to
compromises, but the end result bears out
his faith in applying techniques originally
developed for a climate prone to extremes
- and Inverness would seem a thoroughly
appropriate location for introducing this
system to Scotland. The performance
benefits are demonstrable.
Alan Pert’s ‘Stone House’ alludes to
the stone black-houses of the Highlands.
Set at the entrance to the Expo site, it
uses traditional Scottish stone building
techniques. The building resonates
Scotland’s archaeology, appearing as a stark
monolith of stone, creating a navigational
marker for the site.

The keynote speaker for the Thursday
session was Stuart Bagshaw of Stornoway
based SBA Architects Ltd. Having moved
to the Hebrides 35 years ago to become a
crofter and live the alternative dream, he
found that it was not through crofting but
in an alternative exploration of architecture
that he would find a renewed raison d’être,
“The character of the highlands and
islands is defined not only by its natural
forms but also by its buildings and how
these buildings fit into the landscape. We
have inherited a landscape rich in history
and most recently defined by crofting which
is in danger of being lost”.
His self deprecating allusion to his
work as ‘Hobbit houses’ recalls Tolkien’s
description of The Shire as; “a small but
beautiful and fruitful land, beloved by
its inhabitants”. Stuart’s philosophical
approach creates buildings which enhance
local identity, helping maintain and create
a sense of place. His work uses vernacular
forms and traditional materials to produce
buildings which seem to grow out of the
landscape and which succeed despite
planners, engineers and impossible budgets,
truly reflecting their surroundings with a
strong sense of identity and place.
Predictably, Stuart has had no end
of difficulty squaring his projects with
planners. He recounted that Argyll and
Bute Council once argued for refusal on
the grounds that his plans were drawn freehand! Bagshaw is a truly artistic architect
and his self deprecating style gives hope to
all the ‘little people’.
Day two, on the theme of ‘Cultural
Regeneration’ featured contributions from
an array of architects, designers and even
an engineer, all of international repute and
acknowledged experts on the role of cultural
buildings as catalysts for regeneration. Each
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talked with passion about their current
work, giving real insights into place making.
A change in the line up was brought about
by the cancellation of Jan Gehl due to the
Eyjafjallajokull ash cloud. However rather
than drafting in a late replacement, the
organisers sensibly loosened up an already
busy programme.
RIAS President, David Dunbar, chaired
the morning’s events, introducing a series
of collaborative speakers and projects
with his characteristically Glaswegian
aplomb. In his welcome to Stirling, Sandy
Dawson, President of the Stirling Society
of Architects, referred to the new chapter
awards as the ‘Stirling Prizes’ declaring,
with Ruth Reed, the RIBA’s President,
taking it in good part, that “we were here
first!”. The odds of a ‘Scottish’ winner for
this year’s RIBA Stirling Prize may have
been irrevocably damaged.
Ruth Reed, President of the RIBA,
gave a kaleidoscopic review of architecture
regeneration and recession, from around
the UK. Ruth reflected that, in the current
economic climate, the architectural
profession is in a very long queue at the
door of government. However her hopeful
message was that downturns provide an
opportunity for reflection and planning
which can leave the profession in a stronger
position when recovery starts.
The narrowness of the view that the
historic environment is a hindrance to
progressive thinking was brilliantly exposed
by Malcolm Cooper, Chief Inspector of
Historic Scotland. His thesis was that,
rather than being a constraint, heritage is
the repository of multi-faceted narratives of
culture, architecture and heritage, helping
to strengthen and reinforce national
identity (see page 60 for feature by Malcolm
Cooper).
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Continuing
the
theme,
Karen
Anderson, the new Chair of A+DS, linked
her presentation to the previous day’s
debate (she was the masterplanner for
the regeneration proposals for Raploch)
exploring how we can create better places.
Karen reinforced the fundamental
importance of politicians and our planning
system understanding the imperative
of creating places of real and enduring
quality. There were many in the room
who felt that the visual of school children
working on design proposals was a pretty
good metaphor for the planning system
at work and the final image of a séance
just highlighted that currently it might be
the only way to find out what planners are
thinking!
Lifting any traces of recessional gloom,
Dr Anne Lorne Gilles took to the stage.
In a distinguished career Anne has been
musician, writer, illustrator and publisher.
She has promoted Scottish culture both
at home and abroad. As a judge on the
Regeneration of Scotland Awards she
brought specific and valuable insights.
As the only non construction industry
speaker, Anne provided one of the highlights
of this, or any, Convention with her rousing
presentation. When, without prompting or
backing, she burst into song with a moving
Gaelic lament, it stood the hairs on the
back of my neck and there were a few tears
shed in the room by grown-up architects!
Someone so eloquent, not only for her own
Gaelic heritage, but the arts and the built
culture of architecture, enthused the room.
Dominic Papa, of S333, took up the
baton like an Olympic athlete and sprinted
through visions of contemporary design
conditions that have influenced the
successes, and failures of urbanism. He
answered his own question; “Does the icon

building do anything for the City?” with a
perceptive “probably not”.
Edgar Gonzalez, of multi award winning
practice Brisac Gonzalez, offered further
inspiration. He spoke about his troubled
Peacock Visual Arts Centre in Union Terrace
Gardens, Aberdeen. Despite it having
planning permission, a commercial scheme,
big business money and politics have now
destroyed his visionary new centre. A
straw poll of Convention delegates failed
to find any architects willing to support
the alternative ‘idea’ of the City Square
championed by Aberdeen businessman
Sir Ian Wood. Unfortunately, after much
politicking and intelligent representations,
including from the RIAS, only one poll
mattered: Aberdeen City Council’s. It is easy
to make comparisons to the Liverpool 4th
Grace, a scheme which the public did not
want and that was eventually abandoned. We
can but hope. History will judge Aberdeen
Council harshly in letting the Peacock’s gem
of a proposal fail because of the misguided
imperative of mega-development!
After lunch, the programme continued
with formal award presentations, including
an RIAS Fellowship to Willie Watt, current
President of the Dundee Institute of
Architects and Partner of Nicoll Russell
Studios Dundee. The Incorporation also
presented an Honorary Fellowship to Tom
McCartney, who spoke at the Dundee
Convention in 2009 in a way that only
a sharp witted Glaswegian QS could get
away with. One of the too few QS’s with an
understanding of the architect’s focus upon
creating work which contributes positively
to society, Tom was recognised for his work
in implementing much of the Crown Street
project in Glasgow and further work as CEO
of the Sunderland ARC and the Stoke-onTrent Regeneration Company.
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The RIAS Lifetime Achievement
Award – the highest accolade in Scottish
Architecture – was awarded to Lerwick based
architect Richard Gibson, in recognition
of his restoration and conversion projects
throughout the Shetland Islands.
Gracious in his acceptance speech,
Gibson, a young 75 year old and still
working, demonstrated just why architects
of his quality still command real respect
amongst their peers. He commented; “Does
this mean it’s time to move over and make
room… or just clean my desk?” and added
his personal mantra “Think local, act local.”
Presenting the award, President David
Dunbar added; “There are many prizes for
architecture which recognise the qualities
of an individual building but very few
which celebrate the lifelong commitment to
excellence in design, which is acknowledged
in this award” (see page 58 for feature on
Richard).
After all this pathos the tone was
brought back down by the presentation of
the prizes from the ABS raffle…….which
raised £290 on the day. The Incorporation
has come to rely on our Secretary Neil
Baxter to introduce a note of bathos to
proceedings. Tongue planted, firmly, in
cheek he took over the Chair from the
President and continued the Glaswegian
commentary on events.
Tim Macfarlane of Dewhurst Macfarlane
and Partners captured the real measurable
value of design with a fabulous insight to
his work. An engineer of international
repute, originally from just down the road
at Falkirk, he captivated the audience in
the ingenuity of his use of structural glass.
His work has helped realise architectural
aspiration through structural innovation
and industrial development. Tim’s ‘can do’
attitude was a refreshing change from the

deadening caution which is the stock-intrade of too many engineers.
George Ferguson, of Ferguson Mann
Architects, and Past President of the RIBA,
jokingly referred to the Royal Institute
BEYOND Architecture! Real regeneration
“it’s the people stupid!” should be full of ‘joie
de vivre’. He commanded; “take a stand. Go
back to your offices, break the rules and
fight the philistines”. Perhaps however the
pre-requisite to such boldness is to be the
maverick innovator in red trousers that
George so famously is.
Louis Becker, Design Director of Henning
Larsen Architects is seen worldwide as a
driver of complex and sustainable designs.
Taking a real Scandinavian approach, his
context driven inspiration goes well beyond
the brief.
The Convention was overrunning by
now but no one was leaving. In a change to
the programme the Q+A session included
ALL the speakers from the day. The table
was just long enough to accommodate
everyone, excluding the ‘ringmaster’ so Neil
Baxter introduced an ebullient quick-fire
style of Pecha Kucha (Japanese for chatter)
from the podium. Given the richness of
the fare served up during the Convention,
it was perhaps inevitable that this session
would deliver more insight, inspiration and
humour - to nicely round off the day.
The after-conference party started with
a reception in the Great Hall of Stirling
Castle hosted by Historic Scotland. This
was an opportunity to gather, unwind
and recharge after a long day. Strolling
back downhill from the Castle in the early
evening sun was a real delight. Dinner and
live music from ‘No Shame’ till the early
hours at the Barcelo Highland Hotel was a
fitting close. The traditional auction in aid of
ABS of ‘postcard’ sketches by the speakers,

raised an impressive £725.
There was a ‘healthy’ turn out for the
Saturday’s walking tour, conducted by Jane
Nelson of the Stirling City Heritage Trust,
which provided insights into Stirling’s
hidden architectural gems.
This quirky, lively, but refreshingly lowkey event was somehow different from
previous conventions. The eclectic mix
of speakers and delightful presentations
were, as always, stimulating and thought
provoking. However, the essence that
pervaded the three days of this Convention
was a real community spirit. The traditional
format of the RIAS Convention does not
demand that its guests absorb new ideas
before going forth to create for a higher
purpose, though some might well. It is
simply there for you to sit back and enjoy
the journey.
Mention has to be made here of the
generous sponsorship from Velux, Select
and Historic Scotland. It is one thing to have
the formal thanks of the Incorporation but
mine are on behalf of my fellow delegates making this fantastic event more affordable,
particularly for those who have to bear
travel and accommodation costs is real and
tangible support for the profession. The
RIAS Convention in 2010 was a special and
memorable event and the approach taken by
Sharon McCord and her RIAS team helped
make it so. If you want to rediscover why
you became an architect in the first place,
the RIAS Glasgow Convention 2011 will be
the place to be.
From an Aberdonian; “Bon-Accord”
‘Happy to meet, sorry to part, happy to
meet again’
2010 was brilliant. Glasgow 2011 has a
lot to live up to!
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lifetime achievement award:

wattie cheung

RICHARD GIBSON

At the Stirling Convention the RIAS presented
the distinguished Shetland-based architect
Richard Gibson frias with a Lifetime Achievement
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Award, the highest accolade within Scottish
architecture.
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Richard’s practice Richard Gibson Architects has produced many
well known restoration and conversion projects throughout the
Shetland Islands. President David Dunbar commented “There
are many prizes for architecture which recognise the qualities
of an individual building but very few which celebrate a lifelong
commitment to excellence in design, which is acknowledged in
this award. Recognition from your peers is perhaps the greatest
accolade anyone can receive.”
Richard who travelled from his home in Lerwick to Stirling
to attend the RIAS’ annual convention told delegates he was
“staggered” by the award. Previous recipients of the RIAS Lifetime
Achievement Award include Robert Steedman, of Morris and
Steedman, and the architectural partnership Professors Andy
MacMillan and Isi Metzstein of Gillespie, Kidd and Coia.
The citation for Richard’s Lifetime Achievement Award was
delivered by Neil Baxter, RIAS Secretary & Treasurer and follows:
“Richard Gibson was born in London in 1935. His father was
an architect as was his father-in-law. As a youth he visited the
Festival of Britain when it was under construction. He cites this
extraordinary and important exhibition as the inspiration for his
subsequent career in architecture. After study at the Architectural
Association, he was employed as an Architectural Assistant
variously at British Railways and subsequently Middlesex County
Council. From 1963 he was a Housing Architect in Hampstead
Borough Council and from 1965 the Principal Architect of Camden
Borough Council.
In 1968, inspired by holidays on Barra and the flower-power
ethos of the time, Richard took what some might have considered
a demotion, to become the Depute County Architect of Zetland
County Council. The discovery of North Sea oil at that time
prompted a mini building boom and encouraged him to establish
Richard Gibson Architects in 1972.
Since its foundation, Richard Gibson Architects has been
responsible for numerous important restoration and conversion

projects throughout the Shetland Islands. Its new-build projects
range from a, perfectly crafted, little artist’s studio to the RIBA
Commended Hamnavoe Primary School. The latter acknowledges
the scale of its village setting in a loose plan arrangement and in
the low range of shallow glazed bays which form the classroom
block.
Richard Gibson Architects seems equally at home dealing
with the careful and accurate restoration of eighteenth century
Merchants Houses, the Hanseatic Trading Booth, at Symbister
Harbour or the reworking of Symbister House, Shetland’s most
outstanding Georgian building. They have also converted a mill to
a museum and an ex manse to an outdoor centre.
Their awards are many, including a plethora of Shetland
Amenity Trust Awards, Saltire Awards, Civic Trust
Commendations and RIAS Regeneration and Dynamic Place
Commendations. John Jamieson Closs in Lerwick, new-build
housing from 1982, is deftly worked into the weave of the
Lerwick lanes. A similar later development at North Road,
Lerwick, works the familiar lane pattern of the place into
parallel terraces stepping down a steep slope.
From 1994 Richard Gibson Architects has been a member of
Acanthus - a recognition of the practice’s very particular expertise
in the restoration of historic buildings and the creation of sensitive
new-build development within historic places.
For over forty years, Richard Gibson has contributed to the
process of repair and restoration in all of Shetland’s communities.
His work is always contextual but never slavishly traditionalist.
Whether it is in the restoration of historic buildings in the vastness
of the Shetland landscape or in the inspired commercial buildings,
which relieve the predominant sheddery of Shetland’s harbours
and industrial areas, this practice has continuously striven to
enhance some of Scotland’s most precious landscapes. In much of
the architectural delight to be found amid the weave of Shetland’s
communities can be traced the hand of Richard Gibson.”
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the baltic,
gateshead

cultural
regeneration
Malcolm Cooper, Chief Inspector of Historic Scotland, explores architecture and heritage as a
character in the narrative in this article, a development of a paper he originally presented at the
RIAS Convention in Stirling 2010.
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malcolm cooper, rias convention 2010

In this article I want to take a brief look at
cultural regeneration, but from a perspective
of architecture and in particular the historic
environment. That is historic buildings,
monuments and landscapes.
Some eight years ago now, when
I was working for English Heritage in
the northwest of England, I attended
a conference in Salford about cultural
regeneration. The first three keynote
papers were given by various Government
Ministers at Westminster and for an
hour they covered a wide variety of new
institutions and buildings such as Michael
Wilford and Partner’s The Lowry (in Salford
where the conference was being held),
presenting an impressive range of statistics
about the number of jobs created, about
the improvement these new institutions
made to the image of an area, and the
broader contribution they made to the local
and national economy. Underlying these
presentations there seemed to me to be a
firm belief in the positive impact that an
iconic building used for cultural purposes
could have on the wider regeneration of an
area.
This discussion seemed particularly
pertinent in the northwest of England
not only due to the success of the Lowry
in Salford, opened in 2000 and seen as
‘an international landmark arts complex’,
but also because of the arrival shortly
afterwards of the Imperial War Museum
of the North by Daniel Libeskind. There
was also the heated debate subsequently
around the creation of a ‘fourth grace’ on
the waterfront at Liverpool. Will Alsop’s
scheme, chosen following a well-publicised
architectural competition, had not received
the support of parts of the local community
and the proposed iconic building was seen

by some at that time as jeopardising the
city’s ultimately successful bid for world
heritage status.
However my point in this article is not
to enter the debate about iconic buildings
and cultural regeneration. During opening
conference papers I could not help but
notice that while a number of the successful
cases used involved the adaptation of
exceptionally characterful historic buildings
including, for example, Tate Modern (the
former Bankside power station) on the
banks of the Thames in London and The
Baltic, a former flour mill in Gateshead.
And yet not one of the first three speakers
acknowledged this nor was there any
reference as to whether the re-use of these
historic buildings had made any positive
contribution to the success of the individual
projects. Nor was there any discussion more
broadly about the flexibility or otherwise of
historic buildings or their potential role in
wider regeneration.
It was only the fourth speaker, Tom
Bloxham, the Chairman of Urban Splash,
who explicitly recognised and stressed the
opportunities presented by the adaptive
re-use of historic buildings for cultural
regeneration and who also saw the building
themselves, not as benign containers, but
as very significant in adding value in their
own right. Urban Splash had of course
been active in a wide range of adaptive
reuse schemes ranging from Victorian
cotton mills and terraced housing, through
to early 20th century factories and an Art
Deco seaside hotel – the Midland Hotel
in Morecambe. Tom was absolutely clear
of the existence of a discerning market
which seeks out the interest of historic
buildings, the sustainability inherent in
re-use of historic buildings, and also the

importance of preserving of local character
and identity.
This is of course something that we do
well in Scotland, for example at Stanley
Mills in Perthshire, where The Prince’s
Regeneration Trust and Historic Scotland
came together with a number of other
organisations and funding bodies to find
highly successful mixed use for the former
mill buildings. However I am not going to
use this paper to list and analyse specific
projects but to look at a broader problem
which has troubled me for many years now.
I was then, and to some extent still
am, mystified as to why so frequently the
role of the historic environment both in
regeneration and in cultural regeneration
is so little mentioned and so frequently
underplayed. For the talks in Manchester it
could of course have been simply that the
civil servants who had written the opening
presentations had not grasped the potential
of historic buildings and monuments in the
scheme they were writing about. But I sense
that this remains something of a broader
problem for the historic environment
sector. Why might this be? There are a
number of possibilities perhaps:
• Is it because for many people cultural
regeneration has become associated
with new?
• Is it at scale issue – cultural regeneration
is about bold and challenging
architectural statements?
• Is it because cultural regeneration is
associated with the cult of the celebrity
– a big name architect or a big name
sponsor – a brand that has international
currency?
• Is it because cultural regeneration is
often focused on ‘culture’ in the narrow
sense of collections of things – art,
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•

•

•

artefacts, plants or events – music and
opera, plays, concerts?
Is it because frequently when old
buildings are brought back into use they
have been ‘rescued’ rather than taken
advantage of (i.e., tolerated rather than
exploited)?
Is it because the historic environment
is seen as backward looking and
regeneration is forward looking so the
two are incompatible (mentally if not
physically)?
Is it because the cultural institutions
and the design team themselves play
down the importance and contribution
of a historic building in their project
and their literature?

I should stress here that I can think
of many successful projects which involve
bold new buildings and collections or
events, involving celebrity architects and
sponsors. But equally I can think of many
other cultural regeneration projects which
are really rather different from this formula
and many successful projects which might
not be recognised as cultural regeneration
projects at all.
Now, I must not give the wrong
impression here. I have nothing against new
buildings. Indeed, Historic Scotland has
recently taken over the maintenance and
development of David Walker’s Dictionary
of Scottish Architects from the University
of St Andrews and we are working hard with
the help of Miles Glendinning, his students
and others, to update the dictionary for the
1940-1980 period. We also recently held a
day school on the statutory protection of
post-War Scottish buildings introduced by
our then Minister, Mike Russell MSP. This
was accompanied by a Historic Scotland
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book introducing post-War Architecture
and we are shortly to publish the conference
proceedings. Both are downloadable from
our web-site incidentally.
However it seems to me that cultural
regeneration has benefited hugely from
the active use of historic buildings
and monuments, in some cases, with
significant schemes of adaptive re-use, and
in some cases combining new buildings
with important historic sites. Scotland
has some 37,000 listed buildings, 8,000
monuments, 636 conservation areas and
c. 200,000 traditional buildings and it is
difficult to avoid the conclusion that many
of these are already quietly getting on
with the business of contributing to the
quality of people’s lives, to the character
and local distinctiveness of our places,
contributing to sustainability and reducing
our carbon footprint, and playing their
part in employment, tourism, cultural
regeneration, health and many other of the
Scottish Government’s priorities.
The potential of the historic
environment to be a key part of cultural
regeneration arises for a number of reasons.
Tourism is probably the most accepted and
well-known. It contributes £4.2bn to the
Scottish economy and many tourists cite
the historic environment as a key reason for
visiting. Historic Scotland earns c£27million
from visitors to its sites and there is
of course a significant multiplier effect
arising from this. But it seems to me that
to think of the role of heritage as simply a
tourism narrative is to restrict ourselves
unnecessarily and to limit the potential of
the historic environment to contribute far
more broadly to our culture.
We know that places and spaces hold
a fascination for people and it is clear that

they have over centuries, indeed millennia.
Whether Gothic novels from Gormenghast
to Northanger Abbey, historical novels from
Scott to Stevenson, or detective novels
from Conan Doyle to Rankin, the set, the
atmosphere, the character is frequently
provided by places and spaces. Travel more
widely through our literary heritage and
time after time buildings, monuments
and landscapes provide anchors, points of
reference, metaphors, and personalities for
key narratives in the book – and this works
because they do in our day-to-day lives
and in wider society. For many following
their enthusiasm for a novelist or a poet
and their works, the key attraction will be
the places that inspired the writer, and the
places they wrote about. We have Dickens
trails, Steinbeck trails and in Scotland
a resurgence of interest in authors and
literary figures including Stevenson, Scott
and Burns.
But my point here is not to speak
about literary tourism – although literary
tourism could not exist without buildings
and places - but to stress how important
place is to people – individuals, families,
communities, and nations. When English
Heritage did their first thematic review for
listing of a certain building type – cinemas
– and this included public consultation, the
level of support, enthusiasm, and passion
that came back was astonishing. People care
about historic places and invest significant
amounts of meaning and importance in
them.
At Historic Scotland we have found
similar enthusiasm in our own thematic
surveys ranging from Scottish theatres
and cinemas through to hydro-electric
power, and our area-based work studies of
architecture such as in Scotland’s National
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Parks generate similar levels of interest.
In Manchester a study of sports heritage
unleashed unsuspected levels of passion
about the importance of sporting places
– whether players, facility managers,
audiences or people simply living near
sports venues. Again a recent study of
sporting heritage in Glasgow in the same
series and sponsored by Historic Scotland,
has shown the very significant levels of
interest in places, in this case associated
with sports.
It seems to me that despite the current
association between cultural regeneration
and new-build, cultural regeneration does
not necessarily depend on the creation of
something new in terms of place. It can
equally can involve the rediscovery or recreation of a narrative around something
old. There are some key points here:
•

•

•
•

Our historic places – individual
buildings, monuments landscapes have the potential to be invested with
meaning – indeed this ongoing process
of writing and re-writing meaning onto
our built landscape.
Those meanings can and will be
multiple - cultural regeneration is about
both releasing and helping to lock down
narratives between places and people.
Historic places frequently have meaning,
the potential of which is untapped.
While some historic places can have
negative associations, such as the
former mill buildings in Lancashire’s
Industrial towns or Scottish towns
such as Dundee, these meanings can
be changed towards the positive as
part of regeneration without simply
demolishing them.

•

Cultural regeneration is as much about
rediscovery and creating narratives
as it is about new construction – but
sometimes the two work successfully
hand-in-hand.

To me, Manchester illustrates a very
wide spectrum of cultural regeneration –
and a very real tussle between competing
approaches to cultural regeneration. It has
its Lowry, Imperial War Museum, Museum
of Science and Industry and Urbis. It also
has its Ancoats and Castlefields suburbs
where regeneration was focussed on
historic buildings and places, key sites for
understanding the Industrial Revolution as
both Marx and Engels knew.
It seems to me, that cultural
regeneration, if it is about anything, it
is about authenticity – that is, about
recognising and working with emerging
narratives around existing places as well
as creating new narratives. The latter
frequently have trouble rooting and
frequently wither away if they make no
reference to or replace existing positive
narratives. I remember looking at a key
text on urban regeneration published in
2000 with some despair for any reference
to the historic environment. It included a
flow diagram on the urban regeneration
process where heritage appeared as an
output of regeneration under the heading
of physical improvements. No wonder in
some cases regeneration has failed to meet
the needs of local communities and failed
to take advantage of the narratives that
the historic environment had to offer.
Thankfully we have a rather more
informed
debate
around
cultural
regeneration and cultural planning,

although it is still frequently tempting to
see terminology relating to the historic
environment such as ‘revitalisation of
historic urban quarters’ or ‘conservation
of historic buildings’ as if this is separate
to cultural regeneration. This is probably
unhelpful and we may need in the
heritage sector to speak more confidently
about cultural regeneration rather than
conservation or preservation.
In conclusion I want to make a small
number of very simple points:
•

•

•

•

•

I believe that cultural regeneration
is amongst other things about
foregrounding and releasing narratives.
I believe that the historic environment
embodies a multiplicity of narratives
and is a rich source to be mined by
anyone seeking to undertake cultural or
other forms of regeneration.
I believe that in days of sensitivity to
carbon footprints and sustainability,
the historic environment has a
large contribution to make – it is an
opportunity not a constraint.
I believe all regeneration is ‘cultural’.
Or at least if it isn’t cultural it probably
won’t succeed as regeneration.
Therefore it seems to me that
cultural regeneration and the historic
environment are and should be very
comfortable bedfellows.

As I frequently say, if you treat the
historic environment as a constraint you
will always turn it into one. Treat it as an
opportunity and it will add value not just
for those interested in tourism, heritage
and history, but it will add value to your
broader regeneration goals.
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matt steele

the hippodrome

In Bo’ness, on September 2nd 2010, the RIAS
will host the launch of the latest in its
architectural monograph series, generously
supported by Falkirk Council. Roger Emmerson
and Mary Tilmouth have produced a fascinating
exploration of the work of Matthew (Matt)
Steele whose architecture drew on the Arts
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and Crafts but also anticipated modernism.
Details of the free launch seminar will be
announced shortly but please email
events@rias.org.uk if you wish to secure a place in
advance.
The following extracts give a flavour of the
book (all photography by alan crumlish):

kelty avenue

On the historical context...
“The architectural history of Scotland has tended to focus on
the four great urban centres of Edinburgh, Glasgow, Dundee
and Aberdeen and on the works of country house architects. For
sure, series like the Pevsner books or the Royal Incorporation
of Architects in Scotland’s architectural guides have identified
buildings and architects the length and breadth of the country.
However, due to their gazetteer format they have been unable to
give more than passing attention to architectural development in
the areas under study and none at all to the careers of the architects
mentioned. The biographies that have emerged reflect this overall
structure with monographs, on the likes of William Chambers,
Robert Adam, David Bryce, Alexander (Greek) Thomson, Robert
Rowand Anderson, James Miller, Robert Lorimer, Charles Rennie
Mackintosh and Basil Spence.
Nonetheless, in small towns away from the cities or country
houses, clients still required buildings to satisfy their needs and
aspirations and architects worked to satisfy them. One such
community was Bo’ness and one particularly notable small town
architect was Matt Steele.”

shop, south street

Buildings at Corbiehall with a catalogue of buildings startling in
its modernity.”

On Steele himself...
“Matt Steele, Architect, was an interpreter, innovator, creator, avid
motorist and obsessively bad golfer. He lived through a period of
enormous change in social structure, in commerce, in technology
and in architectural design. He was not simply a passive bystander
but, in his architecture and in his home town, an agent of that
change. The origins of such change, and reactions to it, lie deep
within the nineteenth century, within the world in general and in
Bo’ness in particular.”

Kelty Avenue, Bo’ness...
“A much more substantive commission was provided by George
Cadell Stewart for a group of six, two-storey, houses planned as
a double cottage and a terrace of four at Kelty Avenue, a tiny lane
off Erngath Road, easily missed, to all intents and purposes a
driveway to a private house. At this time Steele was resident at
1 Jane Terrace, a group of houses now forming part of Braehead,
and working from the Masonic Hall Buildings at Corbiehall where
he maintained his office throughout his career.
Jane Terrace presents to the street an image of a row of
substantial two-storey villas. The villas are in fact lower and upper
flats, the latter accessed by an outside stair to the rear, a very
common device in Bo’ness houses of this period. We may assume,
then, that Steele’s accommodation was modest. Following changes
in his domestic circumstances later in that year he was to move to
one of the houses at Kelty Avenue in 1907.
The houses at Kelty Avenue are a development of the Double
Cottage plan, still based on squares and double squares. The
elevations, however, are radically different to the Double Cottage:
stone and slate have been replaced by render and rosemary tiles. A
simple, close-eaved, double-pitched roof has given way to a complex
gambrel roof with a distinctive gablet truss and oversailing and
exaggeratedly bracketted eaves on exposed rafters. The chimney
stacks soar and taper with pronounced projecting coved copes. The
timber entrance porches are tucked into the corners of the plan,
a device that Steele will return to again and the stair balustrades
have Art and Crafts-inspired heart-shaped cut-outs.”

On the launch of his career...
“There is a photograph of a young Matt Steele, tall, confident,
dashing, even vaguely Scandinavian, looking directly at us and at
the future which must date from around the end of his sojourn
in Glasgow. Sometime between June 1905, when he received
the engraved mahogany presentation box from his colleagues at
the Glasgow Corporation Telephone Company, and September
1905, when he lodged his first application with Bo’ness Town
Council Dean of Guild, Matthew Steele returned to Bo’ness. He
set up in independent architectural practice in the Masonic Hall

A shop at South Street, Bo’ness...
“Still in a Free-style mode Steele’s next work of May 1907 was the
bakery and shop for John Paris at 11 South Street, not far from the
Steele family grocers. The development consisted of Paris’s stone
clad premises on the ground floor with, at the rendered upper
floors, two small flats, accessed from the rear by external stairs.
The work to the rear connects effectively with the adjacent C18
tenement.
The shop has an arched display window and entrance as at
Voysey’s Vodin, Surrey, 1902 or Leonard Stokes’s London Telephone
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Exchange, 1904. One might also speculate on the so-called “Boberg
doorway” of similar format, familiar throughout Scandinavia and
Russia at the time, or the traditional arcade or piazza of sixteenth
century Scottish towns such as central Elgin or at Gladstone’s Land,
Edinburgh, and indeed the overall parti, with the strongly expressed
rendered upper floors and central dormer as at Dean Road over the
masonry ground floor, has a certain Scottishness about it.
An exaggerated coved eaves supports the over-sailing pantiled
roof, mimicking in solid construction Voysey’s use of curved castiron brackets to perform a similar function. Paris did not like the
shopfront, as originally designed by Steele and it was not built
at the time. Three quarters of a century later, in 1984, the local
architect, William Cadell, had Paris’s substitute replaced by Matt
Steele’s original design. The building is all the better for it.”
The Masonic Lodge, Bo’ness...
“The most striking aspects of the Lodge design, however, are
the entrance and the Hall interior. The entrance comprises a
staggering ensemble of eight capless and baseless, compressed and
squat pillars on exaggerated plinths supporting at the outer edges
prodigious single slabs of stone. The act as part lintel, part soffit,
and at the centre a deep, vertically oriented and extended cyma
recta moulding not unlike the bell-cast chimney mouldings of the
Burnett flats, almost an entablature, surmounted by a perfunctory
ca. 53o gable with incised tympanum.
Robust entrances are a feature of Free-style architecture but
there seems little British precedent for Steele’s composition at the
Masonic Lodge. Links with Russia have been postulated above and
it is to Russia, or more accurately, the Grand Duchy of Finland,
that attention could be directed. We have been careful to avoid idle
speculation and have looked always to find corroboration of our
views even if circumstantial. The Finnish connection seems strong
for reasons we have already adduced.
The main entrance of Lars Sonck’s Helsinki Telephone Company
Building shares a generic similarity with Steele’s Lodge entrance
in the capless and baseless squat pillars sitting on exaggerated
plinths which is just too persuasive to ignore. The Hall interior,
while obviously reflecting aspects of Freemasonry, particularly
the Egyptian connection, is decorated to Steele’s design in a
dramatic and colourful scheme, white, red, yellow, and black – the
colours of the cardinal points of the Egyptian compass – clearly
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anticipating aspects of 1920s Art Deco and confirming Steele’s
questing intelligence in matters of design. The final cost for the
works was £1,328-5s-2d and Steele’s fee, £60-17s-6d. The Lodge was
formally opened by the Provincial Grand Master Robert Kirk on 9
February 1910. The building has been much mutilated since with
chimney removals, poor quality and inconsistent roof repairs and
a ‘domesticated’ interior by a Lodge which seems to have fallen on
hard times.”
The Hippodrome, Bo’ness...
“Dickson had acquired an irregular site in the heart of the lower
town, formerly occupied by Hamilton Lane, a group of slums
which had not escaped the attention of reformers in nineteenth
century Bo’ness. Steele’s masterstroke was to occupy the widest
part of the site with the auditorium and distribute the ancillary
accommodation round it. Circle and square, hemisphere and cube
motives are employed both as an overall planning device and as
decorative detail and to create a seemingly free-standing building
within a tight urban setting.
The circular drum of the auditorium is clasped at the cardinal
points by generally cubical accommodation. This is clearer in an
early postcard where the later entrance and office with perfunctory
dome by another architect, are missing. These additions drastically
compromise Steele’s original composition and tend to cast it in the
mould of an undifferentiated seaside architecture.”
And more on the Hippodrome...
For sheer, equivalent virtuosity of an architectural image we are
drawn to the unbuilt explorations of constructive form conducted
by Iakov Tchernikhov in the late 1920s, though there can plainly
be no connection. It is difficult to think of another British building
of this period which is so clearly expressive of modernity as this
little cinema.”

the rias monograph on Matt steele will be
published in september priced £9.99.
to pre-order a discounted copy for only £6 inc
p&P call the rias bookshop on 0131 229 7545.
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Saltire Housing Design Awards Shortlist
After a major re-vamp of the awards, which included enlisting
world architect of the year John McAslan as the inaugural
guest chairman, The Saltire Society Housing Design Awards has
announced its shortlist for the 2010 competition, noting a 100%
increase in submissions.
Inaugural guest chair of the awards John McAslan welcomed
the increase in submissions, and was keen to note the extremely
high quality of work on this year’s Saltire shortlist, commenting; “I
am absolutely delighted that the Saltire Awards have managed to
increase their entry numbers so dramatically over previous years;
and also with the exceptionally high standard of work submitted
this year.
“There are some really fine examples of contemporary housing
design represented on the shortlist, particularly in the new
build and renovation/alteration sections. As a Scot, I am greatly
encouraged to find that even in difficult times this kind of work is
still being commissioned and built throughout Scotland.”
The full 2010 Saltire Society Housing Design Awards Shortlist
is as follows:
Large Scale Housing Development
• Ravelston Terrace Apartments, Edinburgh (Allan Murray
Architects)
• Inglis Point, McEwan Place, Edinburgh (Oberlander Architects
LLP)
• Wauchope Square Phase One, Craigmillar, Edinburgh (Page\
Park Architects)
• Queen Elizabeth Square, Rutherglen, Glasgow (Anderson Bell
Christie)
• Wauchope Square Phase Two, Craigmillar, Edinburgh (Elder
and Cannon Architects)
• Queen’s Gate, Clydebank (Elder and Cannon Architects)
• Microloft, Cellar Bank, Edinburgh (Studio DuB)
• Lochrin Development, Edinburgh (Michael Laird Architects)

Small Scale Housing Development
• Tigh-na-Cladach (House by the Shore), Dunoon (Gokay Deveci
Architect)
Private Dwelling – New Build
• Merchiston Villa, Edinburgh (Allan Murray Architects)
• Rock House, Kenmore, Perthshire (Colin Andrew Smith
Architect)
• Japanese House, Edinburgh (Konishi-Gaffney Architects)
• 15 Fiscavaig, Fiscavaig, Isle of Skye (Rural Design)
• The Long House, Husabost, Isle of Skye (Rural Design)
• Bookend Cottage, Tobermory (Roxburgh McEwan Architects)
• Tigh Na Dobhran, Arduaine, Argyll (Studio KAP Architects)
• Tigh Na Gcearc, Lochwinnoch (Nord Architecture Ltd)
• Frisealach, Lochailort (Helen Lucas Architects)
Alterations, Renovations and Extensions
• Russell Place, Edinburgh (Arcade Architects)
• Circus Lane, Edinburgh (WT Architects)
• Clocktower, Dundee (Archial Architects Ltd)
• Bulloch House, Dungoyne (Studio KAP Architects)
• Sutherland Avenue, Pollocksheilds (Studio KAP Architects)
• Auchoish Steading, Lochgilphead (Studio KAP Architects)
The Saltire Society Housing Design Awards seek to recognise
and reward excellence and innovation in the best house-building,
master-planning, and housing-design in Scotland.
The awards have been existence since 1937, and are supported
by the Scottish Government, Homes for Scotland, The Chartered
Institute of Builders, and Architecture and Design Scotland –
which will sponsor two awards categories. The awards will be
announced at a ceremony in the Dovecot Studios in Edinburgh on
13th September.

For more information on the awards, the Saltire Society and the judging panel please visit www.saltiresociety.org.uk
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Parliament at Night
Neil Forrester of Smith Scott Mullan Associates

CPG on Architecture and the Built Environment
The Cross Party Group on
Architecture and the Built
Environment was established in

“Too bad the only people who know
how to run the country are busy driving
cabs and cutting hair” – George Burns

May 2000 thanks to the efforts
of the RIAS and the RTPI and has
held 48 meetings since then. The
convenors of the Group have
been Rhona Brankin MSP, Robin
Harper MSP and the current
convenor is Linda Fabiani MSP.
Patricia Ferguson MSP is the
Depute Convenor, Eugene Mullan
FRIAS of Smith Scott Mullan
Associates is the Secretary and
Veronica Burbridge, National
Director of the RTPI in Scotland,
is the Treasurer. In this article,
the first of a new regular
column, Eugene Mullan provides
some background to the group
and an update on recent and
forthcoming activity.
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Maybe we should be encouraging more cab
drivers and hair dressers to come along to
the Group meetings... If my experience is
anything to go by they are certainly not
short of an opinion on our wonderful
parliament building!
The Cross-Party Groups (CPGs) provide
an opportunity for members of all political
parties, outside organisations and members
of the public to meet and discuss a shared
interest in a particular cause or subject. In
total there are some 77 different groups on
a very varied range of subjects including
International Development, Sexual Health
and even Golf. In order to get recognition as
a Group there is a registration and approval
process, requiring the support of at least
one MSP from each main party within the
Parliament.
The purpose of the Group is as follows:
“The establishment and maintenance
of a forum of MSPs and others to discuss
the economic, social, environmental and
cultural contributions that architecture

and the built environment can make to
the maintenance of the highest standards
of design, the promotion of architectural
excellence, and to improving the quality
of life of Scotland’s citizens within the
responsibilities devolved to the Scottish
Parliament,
• Influencing the quality of architecture
and design in Scotland.
• Developing the debate on architecture
and the built environment in which it is
placed.
• Sustaining a dialogue on Scottish
architectural design in a European and
World context.”
The membership and people who
attend are a very varied group including
representatives of the planning, surveying,
development and archaeology professions.
This rich mix of people not only adds to the
quality and breadth of the discussion but
also provides a very effective networking
opportunity. Meetings are typically held
four times a year, covering a wide variety
of topics, ideally based on areas likely to
be of interest to MSPs and, in particular,
the current legislative or consultation
programme. Brief notes of the meetings

are uploaded to the parliamentary web page
and approx 10 key points from the meeting
are circulated to all MSPs in order to raise
the profile of the Group and to disseminate
the relevant information.
Past meetings of the Group have
included:
• 2014 Commonwealth Games – Glasgow’s
Bid – Regeneration Opportunities from
International Sporting Events,
• Wind Turbines in Our Cities,
• Long Life, Loose Fit – Reuse Of Old
Buildings,
• Scotland’s Unique Historic Environment
- Managing change and protecting for
the future,
• Why all Politicians need a Designer
Around – the Role of Design
Champions for Government, Cities &
Organisations.
Our most recent meeting, on 26nd
May 2010, was on the thorny topic of
Procurement – a Means to an End?
On the evening we had three excellent
presentations
‘Procurement – The Rules,’ from
Michael McAuley of Dundas + Wilson,
‘The Local Authority Client Perspective’,
from Frank McDonald of Fife Council and
‘The Practitioner Perspective’ from Richard
Murphy of Richard Murphy Architects.
Based on the presentations and the
subsequent discussion the following key
points were distilled for circulation:• the application of the procurement
process
is
undermining
other
government policy such as design
policies,
• prominence of design and architectural
quality in information required and
assessment criteria is critical,
• the risk averse manner in which
the Scottish Regulations are being
interpreted is making the process much
more onerous for all parties,
• concern about the significant amount
of time required of clients, contractors
and consultants in this process, relative
to the actual value of the contract,
• concern that the process discriminates
against small local organisations,
• significant concern about the Hub

initiatives, the influence that gives the
lead organisation and the ability to
ensure quality at a reasonable cost over
a substantial contract period,
• the existing centralised information
systems, such as Construction Line and
CHAS, are not working effectively,
• significant misunderstanding that the
assessment of technical capability can
only be part of the “selection” criteria
and not the “award” criteria,
• standardisation of the marking
approach and the calculation of the final
score would assist in the transparency
of the process,
• importance of having an architect on
the assessment panel.
The information gathered at this
meeting will be passed to the new RIAS
Committee on Procurement to assist
them in establishing the key issues for the
profession in this respect.
The parliament holds a Festival of
Politics each year in August which presents
a diverse programme of events bringing
together politics, media and the arts through
performance, discussion and debate. The
CPG was successful in obtaining a slot in
the 2009 Festival and held a very popular
event titled ‘Architects & Politicians – Clash
or Love in?’ We have again been successful
for this year’s Festival and are hosting an
event on the topic of ‘New Towns – who
needs them’. These events provide valuable
profile for the RIAS with MSPs, Scottish
organisations and the public in general,
through both the event itself but also
the Festival programme and web based
information.

Anyone wishing to attend a
meeting of the Group or simply
looking for more information
should contact Eugene Mullan
on 0131 555 1414 or e.mullan@
smith-scott-mullan.co.uk
Further details on CPGs in
general can be found by
visiting:
http://www.scottish.parliament.uk/
msp/crossPartyGroups/list.htm

Paul Hackett
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The new chair of the Cross Party Group,
Linda Fabiani MSP was presented with
an Honorary Fellowship of the RIAS
in 2009. A member of the Scottish
Parliament for Central Scotland since
1999 she was the Minister for Europe,
External Affairs and Culture from 20072009, a portfolio which included the
architectural remit.
She was unusual as a Minister of
Architecture in that her background
in the housing association movement
gave her a very particular understanding
of how high quality architectural
design can contribute to the health of
communities.
During her tenure of her Ministerial
role, Linda Fabiani brought a particular
focus on architecture and dedicated
significant effort to the Incorporation,
including participation in RIAS Crossparty meetings, personally supporting
the Andrew Doolan Award and presiding
at the 2008 Award in the Scottish
Parliament. She also met with senior
office bearers of the Incorporation
on several occasions, recognising the
Incorporation’s autonomy and its crucial
role as the Membership organisation
for Scotland’s architects. Given the
breadth of her cultural remit, Linda’s
contribution of time and consideration
to the Incorporation was impressive.
Linda continues to offer critical input
to the Incorporation and is currently
participating in the RIAS Committee on
Procurement.
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R I A S Q U A R T E R LY S U M M E R 2 010

PLANNING AID FOR SCOTLAND (PAS) IS AN
INDEPENDENT CHARITY WHICH ‘HELPS PEOPLE
UNDERSTAND, ENGAGE WITH AND BENEFIT FROM
THE PLANNING SYSTEM.’ IN RECENT YEARS THE
ORGANISATION HAS FLOURISHED, ACHIEVING AN
ENHANCED VISIBILITY WHICH IS IN NO SMALL PART DUE
TO THE INNOVATIVE APPROACHES FAVOURED BY IT’S
CHIEF EXECUTIVE, PETRA BIBERBACH.
SINCE TAKING UP THE POST IN 2005 SHE HAS
SUBSTANTIALLY INCREASED THE VOLUNTEER BASE AND
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IS CREDITED WITH FURTHERING THE REACH OF THE
CHARITY THROUGH INITIATIVES LIKE SUPERMARKETBASED PUBLIC ROADSHOWS, THE USE OF NEW MEDIA,
SUCH AS FACEBOOK AND TWITTER, AND A HIGHLY
NOVEL PILOT PROJECT WITH PRIMARY SCHOOLS. PETRA,
WHO HAS A SELF DECLARED “PASSION FOR PLANNING”
DISCUSSES THE WORK OF PAS WITH SHARON McCORD,
DEPUTE SECRETARY RIAS.
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Q&A: Petra Biberbach

What is the background to Planning Aid for
Scotland?
It sits within a family of planning aid services which are unique to
the UK. In England it is run as a programme of the RTPI but the
Scottish and Welsh versions are independent charities. Planning
Aid for Scotland (PAS) was established in 1993. We’re now at
the stage where we have almost 15% of the planning profession
volunteering for us, almost 260 volunteers.
We have three key services. The first is an advice service
where a member of the public can call up and ask for advice on
any matter of planning or design. The second is training and
awareness-raising as, unfortunately, the planning service is not
understood – most people don’t even know it exists. We have 10
different types of training programme and they vary – you have to
use a different way to engage with 13-18 year olds than you would
with a community councilor who is very familiar with the language
around planning. We do elected members training; it’s important
that the elected member is aware of their role in the new planning
system. We also have a mentoring scheme, which helps with a
technical skills transfer – we can really demonstrate the enabling
role of planning, which is very exciting for us as it means we can
go to the community groups and identify a project which they
would like to do, e.g., through wind turbines or through change
of use of a house, and they can maybe get help from Planning
Aid to realise their project. Many have good ideas but haven’t got
the funding together or the knowledge of how to deal with the
planning system and if they haven’t then many of those projects
don’t come to fruition.

How is Planning Aid for Scotland funded?
We receive core funding from the Scottish Government, just
under 60% of our annual turnover of around £500,000. We
receive funding from various local authorities who either give
us a donation, purchase training or are corporate members. We
then receive funding from differing funding streams for specific
projects, such as the mentoring scheme. If you’re a charity you have
to start looking quite hard as a lot of external funds don’t really
understand what planning is and what the relevance is so you do
have to do quite a lot of background work. As a charity we are quite
unique in Scotland as our volunteers are all professionals – either
planners or architects. We currently have over 260 volunteers.

You have been piloting a project with primary
schools over the past year – what is the focus of
that project?
For the past year, in partnership with Learning Teaching Scotland,
Moray House Teacher Training College and two primary schools in
Niddrie we have been piloting our first primary schools programme,
for class four and five, as we think very strongly that planning and
design needs to be taught in classes. Under the Curriculum for
Excellence it fits in with the Active Citizenship; we work closely
with the teacher and the planner goes into the classroom. If we ask
the children what does an architect do they tell us ‘designs houses.’
What does a builder do? ‘Builds houses’. But if we ask them ‘what
does a planner do?’ there are blank faces. The way that we describe
it is that the planner puts all the little threads together and makes
it happen
We’re now seeking funding from the Lottery to roll the
programme out and we are hoping to do 10% of the primary schools
in Scotland. If we can engage the children we can also reach out to
the parents. If you are a teenager the last thing you want to do is
talk to your parents about what you have been doing at school but
at that age children love to involve their parents.

What impact have the planning reforms had on
your level of enquiries?
We were certainly overwhelmed with requests for training, that’s
gone up fourfold, and last year was the highest ever for casework
for the advice service – and that was against a backdrop of falling
planning applications, so it was quite interesting. The other impact
I see is that people from the different spectrums talk to each other
more. That’s good because underpinning the planning reforms is
the idea of culture change and I do think that that is happening.
Hopefully we can help more to facilitate a dialogue between the
communities and the different sectors so it definitely becomes a
shared thing.

Overall, have the reforms been positive?
For the planning reform to be successful it needs all of us to be
working in the spirit of what is intended. This is a major piece of
work and there will be a lot of teething problems, and there may
well be a bit of adjustment on certain things, technical aspects, but
the collaborative spirit is certainly much more alive and I do think
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Q&A: Petra Biberbach
that people directly involved in the planning system are working
together more.
In terms of awareness-raising we are running about 120
roadshows over the year. We’ve teamed up with Homebase, Tesco
and Asda and we are talking to two other major retailers about
using their shopfloors. They’ve been very successful, it’s all about
bringing planning to the people and not waiting for people to
come to the planning.
A query from RIAS Council - how do you see
mediation techniques being used within the
resolution of disputes and how might might RIAS
practitioners, in conjunction with PAS, be appointed
by developers to facilitate planning debate?
Two things are happening. First of all there is a greater willingness
to entertain the thought of mediation in planning, which is good
news, and, secondly, I know that the Scottish Government is
looking at how meditation can be used and applied for. The more
mediators available, the better. I’m conscious that there are few
very qualified and experienced mediators in Scotland who are
interested in planning matters so access to RIAS mediators would
be great for that purpose alone. We need to ensure that the skills
and experience are appropriate – i.e., whether they are Sacro or
Core trained. I would be very interested to explore all of this in
more detail with RIAS and others.

Where could there be synergy between what RIAS
does and what PAS does?
The most important thing is for people to understand design.
We go out every day to train and speak and be with people and
it is quite clear that on the one hand there is the planning system
but on the other hand the connection has not yet been made
between what constitutes good design and how we work together.
I know that A+DS do a lot around that for the professionals and
also going into schools and maybe this is an area where we could
dovetail. We would probably come in a lot earlier and in a much
less ‘sophisticated’ way – just raising awareness. It could be very
useful to have an environment where architects and planners
work together in front of the public and could be seen to be giving
information out. Mediation is one area where the professions
should come together better but also through design awareness
for the public, helping the public to understand what makes good
design and not to be afraid of it, in fact encourage them to demand
it.
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With increasing emphasis on community
consultation do you think that more people are
now more empowered?
I do think so and it is partly because of the new medium, because
of how quickly something can be communicated now. PAS uses
Twitter and Facebook – these new social networks can tap into
different people at different times, who in the past have perhaps
not been engaged enough. Communities are more fluid now. In
the past a community has always been defined by sectoral or by
geographical interest but we’re now transcending that. You will
always have interest groups who are vociferous, but that is part
of a democratic process. Interest groups have a role like everybody
else but we have to open up the dialogue. We want to have a public
meeting where everyone feels empowered to speak up, not a public
meeting where five or six people who understand the jargon speak
and the rest just leave.
On SP=EED (Scottish Planning = Effective Engagement and
Delivery), our tool for community engagement, we need to have
more confidence in separating process from decision. People tend
to attack the process when they do not agree with the outcome.
This is why PAS created SP=EED, to provide a tool that can give
greater certainty and transparency in managing the engagement
process and thus managing expectations.

PAS seems to have connections with a lot of
organisations?
This is one of the key strengths of PAS. We’re not just working
with Community Councillors, we’re not just working with the
planning professionals, we’re not just working with architects
or politicians. We work with everybody. We interact with a huge
spectrum of people. Through the mentoring programme we work
a lot with people who have received funding out of the Climate
Challenge Fund or social enterprises who want to set up things for
the community. We work with travellers because we recognize that
they have particular needs and with a variety of ethnic minorities.
It’s all about the empowerment agenda. That’s what Planning Aid
for Scotland does –it builds confidence.

for more information, visit
www.planningaidscotland.org.uk
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STUDENTS

2005 easa assembly, bergen, switzerland. photo easa-uk2010 ltd

an insight into glasgow’s pioneering, multi-disciplinary programme ‘interact’, manchester
hosts the 2010 european architecture students assembly and ruairidh moir reflects on student
connections with the rias.
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interact
Team 24 (architect Thomas Jankowski,
engineer Graham Stewart)

Team 81’s study through light & shade
(architect: Kugatashas Kuharajah, engineer: Grant Preston)

Are the opportunities for holistic design negotiations really
embraced by design teams - if not, why not? Do we value the input
that each member of the design team can offer in the joint pursuit
of the best architectural resolution, within the given constraints?
Are we good at communicating with each other? Indeed, do we
really know how?
As a young architect my memories of design team meetings
are not all positive - intimidation rather than collaboration are,
on reflection, my most poignant memories. Coming away from
design team meetings frustrated by the conversation, but more
regularly the lack of one regarding a true collaborative team vision
for the design proposal. With these questions in mind how can
we prepare the design teams of the future to work together in a
positive and empathetic manner?
Third year students of Architecture, Engineering and Quantity
Surveying in Glasgow and Paisley have recently been involved in
an innovative programme to address such issues. Interact is a
unique, cross-school programme that brings together students
from all three disciplines to work together on a collaborative
design programme. It introduces them to the highs and lows of
this challenge, preparing them for these inevitable encounters that
they will experience when out in practice.
Interact has now been running for 20 years and has, over this
time, developed into the successful programme that currently
now exists. The main principle of the programme is to provide a
controlled forum for the students from each discipline to come
together and work on a design brief, role-playing the ‘design
team’. Communication and collaboration is key, as the teams work
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towards refinement of proposals in a truly holistic manner, whilst
being respectful of each individual’s diverse challenges…. poetics,
cost and structure. Supported by tutors from each discipline and
consultants based in the studio, the teams work towards the
preparation of proposals where architectural design, structural
design and costs are worked though and finally presented for
critique by their peers and tutors.
This year saw almost 300 students embrace the principles of
the ‘Slow Food’ movement and develop a proposal entitled ‘Linger,
Savour, Touch’ for the design of a Cook House in Braco, near Perth,
Scotland’s first member of the ‘Citta Slow’ movement. Not just a
building, but one with a programme that demanded sensitivity and
craft and a response to regionality, and the challenge of a proposal
that is truly sustainable, from the energy requirements of the
facility to the handling of waste and water, and the growing and
managing of all the food required to sustain the small community
of 15, for whom the Cook House would be home.
Students from the Mackintosh School of Architecture, Glasgow
University, Glasgow Caledonian University and the University of
the West of Scotland came together, and through a rapid process
of self selection formed teams to work on what was described by
one of the consultants involved as “the nearest thing to reality” in
respect of design team meetings. Over a period of six weeks the
teams worked together to refine and apply appropriate structural
proposals, whilst preparing and negotiating costs to meet within
given parameters.
The Cook House was the major project for the architectural
students at the ‘Mac’ and became the vehicle for this interactive
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Team 24’s winning
dining room

programme. With the concept of ‘slowness’, food and the
celebration of cooking and eating at its centre the students
worked in self selected, multi-disciplinary teams to develop and
refine the architectural proposals, taking on board the meaning
and implication of all that these ideas bring to a project at both
a lyrical and a practical level. Through a series of tutorials with
multi-disciplinary tutoring teams, supported in the studio with
consultant teams from Buro Happold and Arup, the students
engaged with the challenge of inter-disciplinary collaborations.
Without the embedded cross-discipline baggage that often
appears once in practice, the students engaged and participated
with enthusiasm and through self organised, design team
meetings, formal tutorials and presentations the members of the
teams developed an empathy with each other’s disciplines. Some
teams initially began with an attitude of confrontation which over
the course of the programme, in most cases, grew into one of a
positive dynamic and understanding, allowing the proposals to
develop and refine with a growing depth of understanding into
each other’s discipline.
To begin, architectural students presented their design
concepts to the other team members, communicating a narrative
of an architectural idea alongside the many practical demands
of the programme. The architects explained the importance of
maintaining the poetics of their designs whilst grappling with the
imposed costs parameters insisted by the QSs and the very real
implications of a structure that not only had to work, but had to
embrace the aesthetics and concepts demanded by the architects…
sound familiar? Discussions, negotiations and compromise

A place of contemplation in team
45’s proposal (architect: Sinead
McGhee, engineer: Hannah Standen,
QS: James Kerr)

ensued, and this year also a few dismissals of non-performing
team members. The students embraced these challenges with a
professional attitude that is admirable, arguing their corner and
yet being accepting of the constraints of cost and gravity.
The climax of the programme is the Interact final. This annual
event show cases eight selected final teams who present their
design proposals, structural resolutions and costs to a public
audience. With all the pomp and ceremony that can be mustered,
chaired annually by Neil Baxter and judged by a panel of external
consultants, the teams make their presentations and a winner
is selected. Presenting teams are impressively professional,
particularly when one considers the very limited experience that
they have. With careful preparation under their belts, applied
wit and professionalism the teams make their presentation to a
captive audience of their peers, tutors and supportive consultants.
Unlike any architectural competition I am aware of, the winners
are those who have embraced the concept of good collaboration,
demonstrated by the resolution of the proposal by each
discipline.
Long may this innovative programme last - and if you happen
to be near the GSA next year on the middle Thursday of March at
5pm make your way to the Mac lecture theatre and enjoy a good
humoured and professional series of proposals by tomorrow’s
design teams.
Jo Crotch
Student Exchange Coordinator
Mackintosh School of Architecture
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30th european architecture
student assemblY
Next month the european architecture student
Assembly (easa) will be in Manchester for
easa10. The RIAS has sponsored a placement
for this year’s event. Sam Patterson, a student
at Glasgow School of Art, outlines the
background to EASA and urges practices to
support the EASA’s activities through donations
The EASA was established by students and tutors of Liverpool
University in 1981 as a way to bring talented students together
to discuss the issues facing both the profession and urban
environments. Every summer since then around 400 students,
from every part of Europe and beyond, have come together for
two intense weeks of workshops, lectures, exhibitions and events
in the name of exchange of ideas, culture and experience.
EASA is the only organization of its kind in Europe and
is fundamentally different to all other student architecture
organisations around the world. EASA is a network of students, by
students, for students. There is no central organisation or board
and no standing affiliation with any external establishments.
There are over 40 countries that cover the whole of the continent’s
student population. Each of these has two National Contacts
(NCs), who promote the network within their country’s student
population and maintain the link between individual students and
the other countries in the network.
The NCs come together once a year at the Intermediate
National Contacts Meeting to discuss any issues that are facing
the network and to choose the venue for the following INCM
and EASA summer event. At the INCM in 2008 the UK Team
successfully bid to host the 2010 event which will take place in
Manchester from the 31st July to the 15th August.
Since EASA was first conceived it has been held in ambitious
and inspirational situations, such as a train travelling across
Scandinavia, a renovated WWII destroyer moored to the banks of
the Danube in the centre of Budapest and even, in 1988, behind
the Berlin Wall in East Berlin. For 2010, EASA will descend on
two Mancunian mills and a number of city centre locations as
the students respond to the theme ‘Identity’ in a city that has
constantly reframed its image. This year’s UK team consists of
eight participants and two NC’s. The eight participants were
chosen from essay submissions on the theme ‘Identity’.

For further information regarding EASA and
for ways to make a sponsorship donation to
this year’s summer assembly, please visit
www.easauk.net

76

Sam Patterson
Sam is a UK National Contact with
Jenny Burns of the Manchester
School of Architecture. Currently
on his year out, post Part I, Sam is
on a RIBA Host Practice placement
with cameronwebsterarchitects in
Glasgow. The flexibility of the Host
Practice arrangement allowed Sam to
devote time to his voluntary position
as NC and support the easa2010
organisers in Manchester.
Sam first attended the EASA in 2008 when it visited Ireland
and explains: “My current involvement can be put down to a bit
of blind faith. At the end of a structures lecture the head of
second year read out an email from the then National Contact.
It sounded interesting. When I first signed up I had very little
idea where I was going in Ireland – I didn’t meet the rest of the
UK team until registration in Dublin and only after I was fully
committed did I find out what I was doing for two weeks”.
During the assembly in Dublin, Sam worked with a Slovenian
student of architecture in a design and build workshop called
Small Interventions which was run by Arvid Wolfel, a German
tutor. Over the two weeks the participating students attended
an array of lectures and events, including presentations by
Grafton Architects, O’Donnell + Tuomey Architects and Richard
Murphy, who was one of the original 1981 organisers. “The vibe
and intensity of the two week assembly is something that you
have to experience to appreciate,” notes Sam. “So many minds
from so many backgrounds, all responding to the assembly’s
theme.”
Sam became NC in June 2009 as his predecessor stood
down to organise easa2010. Since then he has attended EASA
Italy 2009 and the Intermediate National Contact Meeting
in Liechtenstein in October 2009, where all the NCs of the
participating countries met to discuss the future of the
network.
This summer as well as looking after the UK participants,
including fellow GSA student Sarah Riley and Scott Sutherland
student Will McKee, Sam is co-tutoring a workshop (one of
25) in Manchester entitled “Who is Joe Bloggs” a theoretical
workshop which will draw on international knowledge and
question current UK housing ambitions in an attempt to
identify the end user in housing developments.
Beyond this summer Sam and Jenny will be preparing for
EASA 2011 in Cadiz, Spain.

NEXT ISSUE
the a+ds and rias scottish student awards
for architecture 2010
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the next generation
Where are we, the students of architecture in Scotland? Where
is our standing on a national and international stage? Are we
achieving our full potential? Such self-evaluation is important - to
pause and reflect, and re-align our priorities for the future.
If we ask the questions of ourselves, what could the answers
be? Scotland has a global reputation for producing architectural
talent. The current trends do not show a stem to this tide. Our
schools are ranked among the best in the UK and even Europe.
Students flock from across the world to study in our schools. And,
recently, the RIBA silver medal was won by James Tait, the first
Scot to win this highest student accolade in decades.
Can we truly say that in Scotland we communicate enough, and
learn from each other across the six schools? Peer-learning plays a
crucial role in our studios why can’t we reciprocate this learning at
home and abroad? Our schools may compete but we are all aiming
toward the same ambition.
This is where a strong network of students in Scotland could
reap rewards. The RIAS is an excellent forum for learning from each
other and from professional architects. It is free, you get a copy of
the informative Quarterly magazine, and you are part of a network
of individuals who form the backbone of our future profession –
all of which make the benefit of joining more appealing.
Attending events like the annual convention is an unrivalled
chance to meet such eminent figures as George Ferguson, Louis
Becker, Charles Jencks, Ruth Reed, Peter Eisenman and Alain
de Botton. When each student is vying for that placement, such
events give you precious profile. You may learn a thing or two as
well especially from the very best architects, always as enthusiastic
as us students.
Besides, a better network of architecture students across
Scotland could give vital extra clout to our particular concerns of
the day. The threatened Scottish Funding Council cuts to pro capita
funding for architecture students is but one example. We recently

united across Scotland to fight against such cuts,cuts that could
have so damaged our schools they could well have been unable
to deliver the crucial ARB and RIBA criteria we need to become
architects.
Our campaign in this was effective and strong. Yet, properly
organised across the six schools, we could have been still faster and
more vocal in our approach.
Tomorrow’s architects are shaped by what we do today. We all
climb the same mountain, and from its summit seek to conquer
another beyond that, even as a new generation of students follows
in our wake. The day we stop learning is the day we should put
down the pencil and retire.
I believe as awards and accolades attest that, considering our
modest numbers, the standard of work from Scottish architecture
schools is remarkably high and compares especially well with that
on the Continent.
Scotland has an upcoming of architectural talent which, I
believe, will see a country with a renaissance of culture, an integral
part of which will be our architectural endeavours. As part of a
network of architects and students, we can earlier begin to fulfil
our potential as the designers of tomorrow. We can be so much
stronger as a united front.
Join the RIAS now. We can lay the foundations now for more
student involvement in the profession, for more peer-learning
and showcasing of talent across the six schools for the benefit of
ourselves and the next generation.
Ruairidh Moir

Ruairidh Moir is a student representative
on RIAS council. To contact him e-mail
ruairidharchitecture@gmail.com
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images taken from “richard holzer, architect “ by richard holzer,
published by the images publishing group
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charles rennie mackintosh
james macaulay
(photography mark fiennes)
ww norton company ltd
£42.00
Let it be said that the author of this handsome book set himself a near-impossible
task: to provide a unique perspective on the
life of Charles Rennie Mackintosh, architect
and artist. Extensive research on the part of
James Macaulay does ensure that the reader
will understand better the frustrations felt
by Mackintosh, the crisis of confidence he
experienced at the time of the partnership
break with John Keppie, and his reasons
for finally leaving Glasgow for Suffolk just
before the outbreak of war in 1914, but other
frustrations are in evidence here, those of
an author whose introductory passage is
prefaced by the conclusion that “Charles
Rennie Mackintosh is an enigma.”
In many ways, despite James Macaulay’s
determination to shed new light on the
career of Scotland’s most influential
architect, the acknowledged absence of
letters, diaries and reminiscences from
which information can be gleaned remains a
problem for biographers. Keppie is reported
to have refused to speak to Professor
Thomas Howarth during his stay in the city,
which is a tragedy for architectural history.
Having said that, Macaulay has made the
most of what he has found, and if there
is a (presumably deliberate) avoidance of
detailed architectural analysis, then there
is a real flavour of Glasgow, the business

of architecture, life at the Glasgow School
of Art, and Mackintosh’s relationships
with the remaining members of The Four,
all written in the same elegant style that
made the author’s The Gothic Revival, 17451845such an enduring read.
The book is for the most part laid out
chronologically. The background is set by the
first chapter in which the growth of Glasgow
is described, followed by a beautifully
illustrated section on the prevailing artistry
of the late nineteenth century. There follows
an analysis of the influence which John
Honeyman, James Herbert McNair and,
to a lesser extent, John Keppie, had on
the young Mackintosh, and a description
of the sketching tour of Italy he embarked
on as the recipient of the GIA’s Alexander
Thomson Travelling Scholarship. There is
extensive discussion of the work carried out
to the Glasgow Art Club in 1893, details of
the architect’s life as an outstanding evening
student at the Glasgow School of Art, and a
series of observations on the designs (and
their inspiration) for the early buildings.
Naturally, there are substantial chapters
devoted to the commissioning and lengthy
construction of the School of Art building,
and the tearooms for Kate Cranston, but
a little less detail than one might have
expected on The Hill House in Helensburgh.

The final chapter, on the other hand, is
beautifully judged: the information seems
genuinely fresh, and it tells movingly of
the depression Mackintosh felt as “hard he
found it to receive no general recognition.”
His plea from Walberswick in the summer of
1914 to a former patron to purchase some of
his watercolour drawings, indeed to “please
lend me one pound”, tells poignantly of how
far he had fallen since leaving the city where
he felt “many passed him by”.
Where this book succeeds is in dispelling
some of the myth but without entirely
removing the magic. Aspects of Mackintosh’s
personality that have fascinated other
authors are in this publication dismissed
without debate. It is recorded quite factually
that he drank to excess, and also that he
was fascinated by symbolism, but little is
made of either fact. Instead, Macaulay is far
more interested in questioning the extent
to which Mackintosh worked on buildings
hitherto attributed to John Keppie, and if as
many questions are raised by his research as
answers have been found, then that is no bad
thing. From a purely personal point of view, I
was myself disappointed that relatively little
was made of the former Conservative Club
Headquarters in Helensburgh (1894), where
the interior suggests that both architects may
have been involved, and where a good colour
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photograph would have better conveyed the
sinuous quality of the principal façade. In
fact, there are some curious omissions from
the contemporary illustrations – none of the
Daily Record building, which is represented
by an under-sized period drawing, and none
of the interior of the Glasgow Art Club,
whose importance Macaulay is at pains to
underline.
Long after reading this book, what
lingers in the mind are a series of
tantalising details that have been teased
from the author’s research and travel.
Macaulay notes that the famous perspective
of Scotland Street School may have been
set up in pencil by a young architect called
William Moyes (but who would himself
stress that Mackintosh added the “master
touches”); he expresses astonishment that
Mackintosh felt that “there isn’t much to
see” when visiting the twin-towered church
of Trinita dei Monti atop the Spanish steps
on his Italian tour; he is amused by the
discovery that some sketches Mackintosh
prepared of Maybole Castle in Ayrshire
illustrate an elevation best seen from a nearby
public house: and he records for posterity
that as a member of a student sketching
party, Mackintosh would often embark on
excursions in the company of James Salmon
and J Gaff Gillespie, “great friends”.
These facts and others build up a picture of
a young, sociable architect who, along with likeminded contemporaries, travelled throughout
Scotland and beyond, cramming pocket
notebooks with illustrations that ranged from
the barest of squiggles to precisely recorded
historical details and careful watercolour
studies. But there are also telling references to
exasperated clients who considered him wilful
and unreliable and found his fondness for
whisky unacceptable. These details go a long
way to humanising Mackintosh, portraying
him as more passionate than obsessive,
although ultimately, as observed by his onetime fiancée Jessie Keppie, “architecture was
to him the important thing in his life”, and
so when the opportunities to exercise his
creativity dried up, the passion was diluted by
despondency.
Responsible for much of this seems to
have been John Keppie, regarding whom
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Macaulay can trace no-one who spoke of him
with either “warmth or affection”. Initially,
their relationship was such that from Italy
Mackintosh would write to him, and they
spent time together in the same circle of
friends, but just as McNair rebelled “against
Keppie’s pedantry”, leaving the firm in
1895, so too would Mackintosh find himself
complaining to Hermann Muthesius in 1898
that “for the time being I am under a cloud….
although the building in Mitchell Street here
was designed by me the architects are or
were Messrs. Honeyman and Keppie… if you
reproduce any photographs of the building
you must give the architect’s name not mine.”
This was a recurring theme throughout
Mackintosh’s tenure with the practice, and
although it was as a named partner that he
left, he clearly felt that greater recognition
was owed him, and that Keppie had thwarted
his ambition. To add insult to injury, the ever
business-like Keppie steadfastly pursued
a debt Mackintosh owed the practice long
after he had left Glasgow.
If nothing else, Macaulay (following in
the footsteps of others) has done his bit
to help redress an historical imbalance,
although in so doing has posed a series
of hypotheses that demand further
investigation. His frequent use of question
marks invites the reader to indulge in a
degree of speculation, and so if “Like hens
in a dung yard scholars have picked over
Mackintosh’s lectures”, they will similarly
pick over this book. The reward is a wealth
of information well supported by stunning,
crisply reproduced illustrations. The book
may be spoiled for some by the hyphenation,
typographical errors, poor spelling of place
names, and most disturbing of all, the
Americanisation of the text, but the fluidity
of the prose rises above these. Importantly,
while the book contributes much to
building a fuller picture of Mackintosh, he
still remains the enigma introduced in the
opening pages, with just enough unwritten
and untested that the fascination lives on.
Fiona J Sinclair FRIAS
RIAS members can purchase James
Macaulay Hon FRIAS’s book on Mackintosh
for a discounted price of £35.00 + P&P. Call
RIAS bookshop on 0131 229 7545

smartcities + eco-warriors
cj lim & ed liu
Routledge
£29.99
Fed up with hearing the pious whine of tiny
windmills ‘saving the planet’? Exhausted by
endless analysis of the best way to extract
energy from effluent? Bored by draught
proofing? The people at Studio 8 may well
have the answer. Think bigger. A lot bigger.
Rather than tinker with the status quo
and pay lip service to sustainability CJ
Lim, Professor of Architecture and Cultural
Design at the Bartlett and his colleague
Ed Liu have come up with a manifesto to
deal with the eco-monsters stalking our
planet; overpopulation, climate change and
insufficient food supplies. And they prefer
to think big – hence the term Smartcity.
The authors have realised that a return
to an agrarian idyll of cottages and small
holdings is impractical in our increasingly
urbanised world and point out that a well
planned city can be incredibly efficient,
sociable and sustainable. Unfortunately the
cities we live in are relics of a pre-industrial
past whose layout is governed by the
economics of land values; how is it possible
to justify city centre farming when in 1982
the artist Agnes Denes planted a field of
wheat in Manhattan on land worth $4.5
billion and sold the crop for just $93?
The solution, logically enough, is to
develop a programme for new cities that
aims to satisfy the conflicting demands of
sustainability, economics and the sociological
interaction of their inhabitants i.e., a nice
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place to live with food on your doorstep and
the means to generate income. Drawing on
sources as diverse as Le Corbusier’s Radiant
City, Wright’s Broadacre City (effectively
dismissed for its sprawling car dependant
layout) and the optimism of Archigram,
Studio 8 have developed a mission
statement that is expressed in their projects
for Guangming, Daejon, Nordhavnen, et al.
It will come as no surprise to learn that all
of the above were competition entries and
heavy on the eye candy; computer graphics,
photo montage and rinky dinky diagrams
serve to illustrate every scheme.
What separates their mega schemes from
the norm is their skill in blending low and
high technology to provide a truly holistic
solution; think big, plan small. They cite the
closed sustainable eco-system of the Chinese
mulberry dyke fishpond system as an
inspiration – Mulberry trees are grown next
to ponds and serve to feed silkworms, the
silkworm waste is fed to the fish in the ponds
(as is waste from other farm animals) leading
to fat, healthy fish and productive silkworms.
Couple ‘small is beautiful’ thinking like this
with confident city scale master planning
and you have a challenging and optimistic
policy statement for the discerning architect
– we can change the world!
Peter Robinson ARIAS

richard holzer, architect
images publishing
£40.00
Most architects’ careers start with small
projects, and if they are good and lucky
larger projects follow. Eventually at their
flowering they may deliver a small number
of significant civic or commercial buildings.

Richard Holzer hit the ground running
with a theatre in 1950’s Panama City, and
is still delivering churches, hotels and office
blocks sixty years on. It is also remarkable
that his work has been concentrated in the
one city, having an immense impact upon
a built environment which in his time has
expanded from supporting a population of
100,000 to nearer one million.
This monograph is therefore fascinating
for its insight into a modernist architect who
has worked at a large scale through such a
long period of immense change. Holzer’s
own essay in the book is reflective and
eloquent, and written with modesty and
the benefit of hindsight. It is peppered with
gems which illustrate his approach: “There
can be no good architecture based on lies”,
and “[a] good design is...one that has found
the equilibrium that incorporates the poetic
and the rational in the plastic with the least
possible effort.” He describes his architecture
as to some extent vernacular which appears
as something of a contradiction for someone
whose starting point was the ‘international
style’. However, he proposes that “Climate
should be the starting point for developing a
vernacular architecture” and certainly as his
forms have emanated from the equatorial
climate with overhanging shady floor plates
and open ventilated facades they resonate
with a modernist aesthetic. However, Holzer
is now clearly long enough in the tooth not
to have to follow slavishly to any architectural
mantra.
His deft use of plastic form is
demonstrated in the elegant Mendelsohninfluenced concrete forms of the Esses
Building (1966) and the Church of San
Antonio de Padua (1971). Holzer was always
keen to use new materials and techniques and
this book illustrates that his shiny high rises
and strip malls of the 90’s and 00’s lack much
of the charm and structural texture of his
earlier work, such as the Hotel Continental
(1963) with 12 storeys of blank louvered
wall cascading with integrated greenery and
flowers. Holzer’s own input into this book
has ensured a good mixture of plans, photos
and sketches giving a thorough insight into
the man and his work.
Wil Tunnell ARIAS

dictionary of ecodesign
ken yeang and lillian woo
routledge
£40.00
Ken Yeang is an architect-planner and
ecologist whose pioneering masterplanning
and design work is soundly based on a
theoretical framework of ecological and
bioclimatic premises. A leader in his field,
Yeang has been at the cutting edge of
sustainable design for almost 40 years and
has worked and taught all over the world.
Yeang approaches each building as an
addition to the earth’s living, breathing ecosystem and, as the link between the health
of planet earth and what we have been doing
to it since the industrial revolution becomes
more and more obvious and undeniable, the
pressure to follow his example will grow.
There is every reason why new buildings
and the refurbishment of existing buildings
should comply with the principles of
sustainable design and all professionals
in the construction industry need to be
involved. The rapidly expanding range of
terms used to describe the various facets of
sustainable design is confusing and this is
exacerbated by different uses of the same
words in the USA and Europe, let alone other
parts of the world. This new dictionary has
been compiled by the authors as a response
to this growing problem and is claimed to
be the first guide to the terminology of
sustainable design. It provides over 1500
definitions and explanations together with
some very helpful illustrations and figures.
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As with any dictionary, the reader can
start reading at any point in the book and
then follow the cross references to other
words or terms. For example, the application,
operation, advantages and disadvantages,
not to mention mysteries of air-source heat
pumps and ground-source heat pumps are
defined and explained in a succinct way
and cross references are included which
lead to other parts of the dictionary where
further information on the same subject
is contained. The reader is free to use the
book to learn as and when they require and
to follow the pointers for further research
and learning where desired.
The Dictionary of Ecodesign will be of
invaluable assistance to all architects,
engineers, planners, environmentalists and
other construction professionals who are
involved in planning and design within the
built environment.
Roy Milne FRIAS

façades: building envelopes
for the 21st century
edited by dirk hindrichs &
winfried heusler
birkhauser verlag
£63.00
The book Façades: Building Envelopes for the
21st Century is a curious hybrid and occupies
a peculiar territory somewhere between
trade literature, company brochure and
end-of-year report. It’s a sizable tome (630
pages), measures 33 x 26 x 4.6 cm and, like
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so much of Birkhauser’s output, is bilingual
in German/English. This is its third revised
edition, so there must be a market for such
a massive publication. Indeed, you can still
purchase the previous two editions online
and it is particularly noteworthy that the
page count jumped from 384 to 653 between
the 2004 and 2006 editions.
Essentially, Façades is a promotional
vehicle for Schuco International, a major
cladding contractor with substantial
operations worldwide and annual turnover
(in 2008) in excess of 2 billion Euros. The
book is a miscellany, catalogued under
building uses including offices, commercial,
hotels, cultural, retail, leisure, educational
and the (curious catch-all) ‘high-end homes’.
Most projects are afforded a two-page
spread but coverage is cursory and limited
to a couple of glossy photographs, an
introductory paragraph and the occasional
freehand sketch.
Sadly, many of the featured buildings are
pretty pedestrian, especially when viewed
alongside some impressive projects such
as OMA’s Dutch Embassy (Berlin), Hadid’s
Ordrupgaard
Museum
(Copenhagen)
or Morphosis’ Hypo-Alpe-Adria Center
(Klagenfurt). Almost every major country is
represented including a hat-trick of Scottish
projects, namely: BDP’s ‘egg’ auditorium
for Napier University, Murray + Dunlop’s
Sentinel Building and 3D Architecture’s
‘Glasgow Herald’ revamp. The book also
explores some lesser-known corners of
the globe including projects in Gdansk,
Kiev, Sarajevo, Cadiz, Bratislava, Doha
and Amman. The editors proclaim that:
“Architecture strikes right at the heart of
our lives and defines an era for generations
to come.” However, there is an abundance
of curtain walling, clunky forms and
crashing geometries (particularly in the
Moscow examples) but a nadir is reached
in Kazakhstan’s only entry; twin towers
comprising 25 floors of curved, bilious yellow
glass capped by enormous golden skewers.
Obviously Schuco International wants
to promote itself as a pioneer in the
development of ecologically responsive
facades and this book trumpets its ‘green’
credentials. The need to reduce carbon

emissions is universally accepted and
the crucial role played by manufacturers,
suppliers and fabricators is self-evident.
Every effort to address the targeted 80% CO2
reduction in order to limit global warming to
below two degrees has to be commended but
surely this message could be précised into a
more tightly packaged publication?
Mark Cousins ARIAS

liverpool: shaping the city
stephen bayley
riba publishing
£19.95
I have been visiting Liverpool regularly since
2007. Since then I have got to know certain
parts of the city habitually well through job
related repeat meetings, repeat hotel stays,
hurried lunches and even more hurried trips
to Liverpool Lime Street before the journey
home. Like many business travellers I
therefore enjoy a comfortable familiarity
with a city yet compared to a local I have
hardly scratched its surface.
The 2008 Year of Culture did catalyse a
very obvious energy and for a while before,
during and indeed after those celebrations,
Liverpool appeared like one huge
construction site. Indeed in comparison
to my recollection of Glasgow’s Year of
Culture, Liverpool has benefitted from a
much larger wave of development either
as a direct consequence of the year round
events or because the public mood and
confidence has been catalysed to a much

paul mcmullin
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greater extent by those investments and
the city’s new found position on the world
stage.
Reviewing this book has therefore
been extremely enjoyable and has been
akin to discovering a prodigal and hitherto
relatively unknown relative. At one level
the book can almost be viewed as a pure
advertisement for the modern city, but
beyond that it offers a detailed overview of
the many important developments which
have taken place over recent years.
Although the speed and scale of
reconstruction has been quite obvious on
my visits, this book has revealed to me the
shear depth of those endeavours for the
first time. The book underlines that the city
now boasts buildings by McAslan, Cesar
Pelli, 3XN, Wilkinson Eyre, Dixon Jones,
and Allies and Morrison amongst many
others as well as a plethora of high quality
new buildings and refurbishments by local
regional architects.
Starting with a historical overview we
are quickly taken on a journey through
Liverpool’s 800 year history from its
humble beginnings through its emerging
importance as a port then its golden era
built on slavery and trade to the Americas.
That pre-eminence eventually allowed the
port to transform into Britain’s terminal

for the transatlantic liners, becoming surely
the UK’s blue riband city with the creation
of the world’s first skyscraper and with it
the three graces. The city’s decline after that
point started by World War II is well known,
but the photograph of the city centre’s utter
destruction is still hard to fathom. After the
war grandiose Haussmanesque rebuilding
plans were conceived until the developer
led rebirth of the city was kick started in
the 60’s. The author acknowledges the
cheapness and lack of ambition of many
of those schemes. Until my recent work
related visits to the city my opinion on
Liverpool was formed by memories from
a holiday visit in the 1970’s, a joyless place
of decay and grim concrete. At the time for
Liverpudlians the 1980’s probably seemed
worse, but with the benefit of hindsight it
was then that the Albert Docks were saved,
the Tate was created by Jim Stirling and the
Garden Festival visited the city.
It was a painful full stop but at the same
time the start of a new era, which if it has
not culminated in the Year of Culture has
been warmly applauded by it.
Liverpool: Shaping The City illustrates
the many vibrant cafes, restaurants, hotels,
bars and arts venues which the city now
enjoys, as well as highlighting the many
conversions of Victorian buildings around

the city, complimented by dramatic new
structures. Not unlike Glasgow, the Year of
Culture also appears to have been celebrated
by a new found desire to shop. Liverpool
One is the city’s new shopping temple and
must be one of the UK’s best shopping retail
developments.
The book proves that the city now
expects more. Its reconstruction is by no
means finished, but the authors prove that
the city’s confidence is such that a repetition
of low cost, low rise suburban development
in the heart of the city which took place in
the 80’s is no longer an option for its City
Fathers.
Liverpool has, as this book repeatedly
underlines through both the text and superb
photographs, achieved much in the last 20
years. It is a terrific example for other cities;
not least my home town of Dundee. Its
ongoing development shares many parallels
with activities on the Mersey. If I were to
hope for Dundee to emulate one thing from
Liverpool it is the latter obvious confidence
which is reinforced on every page. For those
involved in city redevelopment or with an
interest in Liverpool itself Shaping The City
is undoubtedly an informative and highly
illuminating read.
Willie Watt FRIAS
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ABERDEEN REGIONAL SPORTS CENTRE
Reiach and Hall Architects

Possibly elaborating on the now ubiquitous
‘Planning and Design Statement’ the
architects, in this full colour, beautifully
illustrated book, have published their
analysis of the challenges presented by this
brief and the site, and have rationalised
their design philosophy and architectural
ambitions for presentation to a wider
audience.
The initial challenge was how to generate
an appropriate contextual response for
such a large building on this site, described
by Scottish National Heritage as “rather
cluttered”. The building is located on heavily
contaminated ground with institutional
and residential neighbours, and open views
making it highly visible from the Links and
the Coast Road. A further challenge was to
address the huge spaces and spans required
to accommodate a full sized indoor football
pitch, 135m 6 lane running straight, specific
areas for long and triple jump, high jump
and pole vault, along with the more usual
fitness studios and multi-purpose games
halls.
A clear uncluttered plan form, notionally described as a ‘head’ and ‘body’ linked
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aberdeen regional sports
centre
reiach and hall architects
sleeper publications
£10.00
by a ‘spine’, provides a 4m wide central
circulation street from the main entrance.
This will ultimately lead through to further
future planned phases. At the ‘head’, the
entrance, foyer, and café bar are designed to
provide an interesting and lively frontage,
with full height sliding windows for use in
appropriate weather. The ‘spine’ links and
offers viewpoints into all the main activities
including the spectacular indoor football
pitch which incorporates the latest 3G FIFA
approved synthetic surface, reported to be
“…as close as science has so far come to
replicating grass.”
Observing that the sports industry has
generally pioneered uses of new materials
in clothing, shoes, rackets, etc. Reiach and
Hall Architects advocate similar enthusiasm
for new materials in sports buildings.
The architects consider that “a luminous
space will almost always be found to be
preferable to a murky one” and note that “…
lightweight light-transmitting materials…”
can also improve the performance of new
sports buildings.
On the Aberdeen project the architects
worked closely with manufacturers to

ensure the correct colours and consistency
in the polycarbonate cladding. The field
of colours used for the east elevation was
cleverly extracted from a photograph of
the typical Aberdeen sky, while the west
elevation comprises varying tones of grey
selected to harmonise with the adjacent
granite coloured buildings.
Identifying a generic link between the
design and construction of sport centres, and
factories, warehouses and supermarkets,
the architects eagerly promote ‘imagination’
and ‘determination’ as key tools to improve
the architecture of these building types
and thus potentially make the commercial
edges of cities more attractive. “Much of the
future of architectural endeavour will lie in
the design of industrial units, technology
parks, sewerage plants and supermarkets.”
predicts the author, noting that “Traditional
architecture is out of place in the new
environments.” The optimistic message of
the book therefore appears to be that high
quality results can be achieved, but only
where there is “a strong desire to do so”.
Ian Stuart Campbell
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space to heal: humanity in
healthcare design
reiach and hall architects
sleeper publications
£10.00
The completion of the New Stobhill Hospital
project in Glasgow has stimulated Reiach
and Hall Architects to produce this book
comprising six essays, to capitalise on their
experience and contacts gained through
the project. In his foreword, architect
Andy Law notes that students at the
Mackintosh School of Architecture in 1984
were dissuaded from studying hospitals
as “the architect was deemed to have little
creative control”. Arvid Ottar elaborates on
this, identifying what he calls ‘the hospital
trap’ - “demands on logistics and technical
infrastructure, medical procedures and
technology often tend to swamp all other
considerations resulting in buildings where
architecture is given second priority.”
Arvid Ottar examines a number of key
issues with reference to two of his projects
in Norway. In order to provide a satisfactory
human encounter and promote a sense of
safety and shelter large hospitals have to be
broken into recognisable and comprehensible
volumes. While defining how large a single
building should be Ottar offers charming
insight for architects. He observes that up
to 20-30,000 sq.m “we can lie down at night
and be able to walk through our design and
evaluate space and detail”.
He is also keen to promote natural flow
of space and ease of orientation, noting that

“yellow footprints and coloured lines are
a sure sign of architectural failing”. Views
of landscape, variety of colour, art and
architecture stimulate mental images, which
take the mind off problems, according to
Ottar, who is convinced that architecture can
help motivate the patient towards returning
to life.
Marek Dominiczak relates evidence
based science in support of the healing
properties of access to natural light and
nature. Likewise, the use of paintings
and sculpture in religion was historically
successful in creating a “state of
concentration and even spiritual ecstasy”.
The Chelsea and Westminster Hospital
(1993) is credited as a showcase of how art
can significantly improve the healthcare
environment, and the Maggie’s Centres are
commended, by him, for their “architecture
as part of the concept of relaxation, stress
management, and emotional support”.
Apparently encouraged by recent NHS
Design
Champions
Programmes,
Dominiczak believes it is time for healthcare
professionals to take more interest and to
be prepared for “informed collaboration
with architects”.
A more rancorous piece from Miles
Glendinning expresses his distaste of ‘iconic’
or ‘signature’ buildings, and his disapproval
of the private finance (PFI) programme of
social building. He blames relentless cost
cutting competition for “countless shoddy,
banal school buildings across the country”.
While crediting the New Stobhill Hospital
as suggesting a “radically different way out
of the quandary” he also notes as “a stroke
of luck” that only one of the original three
competing consortia ultimately entered the
bidding process. This he observes allowed
Reiach and Hall Architects to embark on
an ambitious programme of user research,
and gave the opportunity to propose the
abandonment of “the standard PFI solution
of sprawling, horizontal circulation.”
Advocating the total integration of art
within the building fabric, artist Thomas
A Clark offered the concept that the new
spaces should be considered as “a grove of
larch in a forest of birch”. Together with
four other artists he proposed ‘imaginative

interludes’ to comfort visitors or patients.
With reasoned logic architect Andy Law
argues, that “if a disturbed emotional
state can cause symptoms, then a settled
emotional state may help to dispel them.”
The architectural ambition throughout
New Stobhill Hospital has been to create
the most positive and pleasant experience
for all users. The designer’s sensitivity in
carefully defining ‘quiet’ as preferable to
‘silent,’ in both acoustic and visual terms,
is based on his understanding that gentle
stimulation is a positive experience which
can help healing.
The book fulfils its declared ambition
to present an interesting conversation on
issues surrounding healthcare architecture,
rather than a guide to hospital design.
Sparse graphics are reminiscent of the
Beatles White Album, while black and
white photography throughout is tasteful,
occasionally self-conscious, but always
thoughtful and relevant.
Ian Stuart Campbell

All these new titles are
available at the
RIAS bookshop, 15 Rutland
Square, Edinburgh; by mail
order (0131 229 7545); or
online at
www.rias.org.uk/ebookshop
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PRACTICE UPDATE

•

Changes to CSCS Cards for Construction
Professionals
CSCS cards have long been accepted as a way to quickly and simply
prove (to contractors, clients etc) that the holder’s health and
safety knowledge is up to date. Following significant consultation
with members of the professional bodies that are represented by
the Construction Industry Council (CIC), applying for CSCS cards
has been simplified. The CSCS site safety card for professionals
was re-launched this month.
Registered architects can apply for the Professionally Qualified
Persons (PQP) card after they have passed the Management and
Professional (MAP) health and safety test. All applicants must
satisfy their respective professional body’s competency tests and
should also be able to produce two years of CPD records.
Changes to the scheme have generally been welcomed as they
will make the process of applying for the appropriate cards much
less time consuming and more straightforward.
Further information can be found in CSCS cards for members
of professional bodies: an overview at the following web address:
http://www.cscs.uk.com/upload_folder/cs0011_pro%20cards.pdf

the bribery act
The law on bribery has been simplified to allow a more effective
response to bribery offences that occur either in the UK or abroad.
The Bribery Act 2010 will come into force in stages between June
and October 2010. It is an offence to:
• offer, promise or give a financial or other advantage to another
person to perform improperly a relevant function or activity,
or to reward a person for the improper performance of such
a function or activity. It does not matter whether the person
given the bribe is the same person who will perform the
function or activity concerned,
• receive or accept a financial or other advantage to perform a
function or activity improperly. It does not matter whether
the recipient of the bribe receives it directly or through a third
party, or whether it is for the recipient’s benefit or not.
• bribe a Foreign Public Official,

fail to prevent bribery. This is a new offence. A commercial
organisation could be guilty of bribery where a person
associated with the organisation bribes another person
intending to obtain or retain business for the organisation or
to obtain or retain an advantage in the conduct of business for
the organisation. Persons “associated” with the organisation
could potentially include employees, agents, sub-contractors
and joint-venture arrangements.
The onus is now on businesses to prevent dishonesty.
Companies should have adequate processes in place to prevent
bribery.

HSE in Scotland website
re-launched
The HSE in Scotland website has been re-launched with a new
design and features. As well as explaining HSE’s own work and
important issues for health and safety in Scotland, it also focuses
on their work with others across the Scottish health and safety
community. It can be found at www.hse.gov.uk/scotland
There is also a new DVD and toolkit for SMEs called Health
risks at work – do you know yours? The DVD aims to raise awareness
of common workplace health risks and how to control them.
This project is being piloted in Scotland as the toolkit was
developed by HSE in partnership with the Scottish Centre for
Healthy Working Lives, Scottish Chamber of Safety and RoSPA
Scotland.
For more information please go to: http://www.
healthyworkinglives.com/advice/minimising-workplace-risks/
HRatW.aspx

New Planning Application Fees
The Town And Country Planning (Fees For Applications and
Deemed Applications) (Scotland) Amendment Regulations 2010
came into force on 1st April 2010. These regulations increase fees
by approximately 10 per cent across the board (apart from marine
fish farming developments). View at: http://www.opsi.gov.uk/
legislation/scotland/ssi2010/ssi_20100141_en_1
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Consultation on Tree Preservation Order
This consultation invited views on the Town and Country Planning
(Tree Preservation Order and Trees in Conservation Areas)
(Scotland) Regulations 2010 and the Model Tree Preservation
Order (TPO).
The main changes proposed are:
• updating the regulations and Model Order to reference the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1997 and the Planning etc. (Scotland) Act 2006 rather then the
provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Scotland) Act
1972,
• the Model Order will no longer be contained within the
regulations rather the Model Order will be guidance with
the contents of a TPO ultimately a matter for the planning
authority,
• introducing a new procedure where a TPO is not confirmed.
The new procedure ensures that those with an interest and
those who made representations are informed that a TPO has
not been confirmed,
• introducing to the regulations procedures for varying and
revoking TPOs .
The Tree Preservation Orders (TPO) Consultation Paper can
be accessed at http://www.scotland.gov.uk/Publications/2010/04
/16114715/0

and demolition projects). They should also be aware of the various
types of surveys and be able to review asbestos.
You can access the full HSE guidance Asbestos: The Survey Guide
at the following web address: http://www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/
priced/hsg264.pdf

If you have issues you would like to discuss
please do noT hesitate to contact us.
Maryse Richardson, Practice Manager
0131 229 7545 mrichardson@rias.org.uk

Building Standards

TECHNICAL
HANDBOOKS 2010
The new 2010 Building Standards Technical
Handbooks are now available.
Amendments to building regulations come into force
on the1st October 2010 and the revised guidance
in the handbooks provides ways of complying with
the standards. There have been changes made to
all the sections within the handbooks and these will
apply to building warrant applications from that
date.

New guidance on asbestos
The Health & Safety Executive has published new guidance
on asbestos surveys as well as information on how to manage
the associated risks. The guidance will be useful to building
professionals, such as architects, designers, building surveyors
and particularly demolition and asbestos removal contractors.
For example, architects and building surveyors need to be aware
of the requirement to carry out asbestos buildings surveys (and
advise on the need for an asbestos survey before refurbishment
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To order your copy, please visit:
www.tsoshop.co.uk
or contact TSO:
t 0870 600 5522
f 0870 600 5544
e customer.services@tso.co.uk
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updates

Millers
Specialist Knowledge : Beautiful Flooring

RIAS Energy Design
Certification Update

The numbers of active certifiers is growing and to date the value
of Section 6 Certificates which have been issued covers more than
£33m worth of work.
Local Authorities are becoming increasingly conscious of
the complexity of designing to meet Section 6 of the Technical
Handbooks to the Scottish Building Standards and we predict
it won’t be long before warrant reports treat Section 6 much like
Section 1 and a certificate for all but the smallest project becomes
the norm.
In the next few weeks a comprehensive set of updated
documents will be added to the Scheme website www.RIASregs.co.uk, many of which will be available for download by all
architects and their clients. The documents will explain the role of
certification and the advantages, one of which may be a reduction
in architects’ insurance premiums to reflect the recognition of
another demonstrated skill.
Looking further forward RIAS Energy Design Certification
will be playing its part in the run up to the 1st October 2010
deadline for the new regulations, which includes substantial
changes to Section 6 (for more information, see feature page
90). It is absolutely essential that any design strategy takes into
account energy performance from the earliest point in the design
if you are to avoid costly redesigns and landing your client with
a requirement for expensive technology solutions rather than
economic passive ones.
Finally, the Scottish Government has issued a new logo
for all Certifiers of Design and Construction, who are all being
encouraged to include it on their stationary and vans, etc. Details
of the guidelines for its use and the logo itself are available from
Kirsty Ward at RIAS (kward@rias.org.uk). RIAS Energy Design
Certification will be adding the logo (pictured above) to the website
and design certificates in the coming weeks.
A J Hugh FRIAS, Richard Atkins FRIAS

Millers Specialist Floorcoverings
177 Leith Walk
Edinburgh
EH6 8NR

11 Olympia St
Glasgow
G40 3TA

Tel: 0845 2 171 712
www.millersflooring.com
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The latest 2010 editions of the Technical Handbooks come into force
on 1 October. These new versions include revisions to all technical
sections although some of the changes are more significant than
others. The handbooks were published in April and are available in
hardcopy through TSO (The Stationary Office) or electronically on
the Building Standards Division (BSD) website www.scotland.gov.
uk/bsd. Whilst most of the changes are to the guidance there are
changes to building regulations and technical standards.
The 2010 Technical Handbooks are the first complete reprint
since the Government took the decision, as part of their drive
to reform the public sector landscape, to reintegrate the former
Scottish Building Standards Agency into core government. BSD
is part of the Directorate for the Built Environment working
alongside Planning and Architecture and Place. By doing this, the
clear synergies and linkages that existed between various elements
of work have been strengthened and developed.
The key changes for October 2010 are to Energy, Structure, Fire
and Noise.
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Energy
One of the main changes for 2010 to Section 6 (Energy) is a 30%
improvement on reduction in carbon dioxide emissions over the
2007 standards.
Before exploring this it is worthwhile taking a look at what led
to these developments. In 2007 the current Government came into
power and appointed an expert panel to recommend measures to
improve the energy performance of buildings. This was against a
background of challenging targets that had been set earlier that
same year to limit the carbon emissions from buildings.
The result of that panel was A Low Carbon Building Standards
Strategy for Scotland or, as it is more widely known, The Sullivan
Report. The report contained 56 recommendations, most of which
have now either been implemented or are being progressed as
part of the Government’s wider Climate Change agenda, the most
ambitious legislation of its kind anywhere in the world.
One of the key recommendations of Sullivan was to drive a step
change in building practice and it sets out a vision for the way the
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building standard system and policies in Scotland should develop
well into the future. It also provides a route map that is intended
to lead to low and eventually total-life zero carbon buildings.
Whilst buildings can be designed and built to higher standards,
in the majority of cases, mandatory minimum standards set
through building regulations are adopted. So it is important that
these minimum standards are robust enough to address both the
needs of Scotland’s people and support the wider policy objective
of addressing Climate Change.
Section 6 (Energy) in the 2010 Technical Handbooks is the
first stage of introducing eventual and staged standards in line
with The Sullivan Report. It incorporates a large number of
changes whilst retaining the existing methodology introduced
in 2007. The majority of these changes relate to improvement in
specified performance to deliver the intended 30% improvement
on reduction in carbon dioxide emissions over the 2007 standards
announced by Ministers in February of last year.
It aims to achieve buildings which are more economical to
operate due to a reduced energy demand for heating, hot water,
lighting, ventilation and other fixed services. It also encourages
the development and uptake of construction solutions, including
incorporation of building-integrated low carbon equipment, which
will further the delivery of buildings with lower carbon dioxide
emissions and energy demand. It also introduces a robust postcompletion testing regime for air-tightness thus recognising the
effect workmanship has on the performance of buildings.

From the end of March the British Standards (BS) are no longer
being supported by the British Standards Institution and through
time will become progressively more outdated. There is a risk that
continuing to reference British Standards could lead to confusion
over liability should a structural problem arise as a result of using
a withdrawn BS containing an error.

Structure
The changes to guidance in Section 1 (Structure) have been brought
about by the requirement to reference structural Eurocodes in
compliance with UK obligations under European Directives. The
Construction Products Directive implemented in the UK through
the Construction Products Regulations 1991, has permitted the
introduction of a wide range of standards and specifications recognised
throughout the European Economic Area. Standards of safety,
suitability and fitness measured against factors common throughout
Europe are intended to avoid unnecessary barriers to trade.
The European Organisation for Standards (CEN) produces
harmonised European Standards (EN) and will replace standards
used throughout Member States. It has taken over 20 years to
develop a series of Structural Eurocodes in the field of structural
and civil engineering design.

Noise
Section 5 (Noise) is completely new and introduces a significant
increase in the sound insulation performance of separating walls
and separating floors and now covers some non-domestic residential
buildings such as hotels and care homes. It also introduces a
robust post-completion testing regime thus recognising the effect
workmanship has on the performance of separating floors or
separating walls.
The last major review of noise standards was carried out more
than 20 years ago. Over this time period, lifestyles have changed
and people’s expectations have risen, which has resulted in a
dramatic increase in noise complaints. Several research studies
have shown that noise can cause health problems and can be a
nuisance to those living or sleeping, not only in domestic but also
in non-domestic buildings.

Fire
The latest edition of Section 2 (Fire) has, as one of its key changes,
introduced guidance to cover automatic suppression systems
(sprinklers) in schools. Concerns about fire have traditionally
centred on life protection rather than asset protection. There are
on average over 150 fires in Scottish schools each year and these
result in significant costs in terms of damage and disruption.
A primary objective of the building standards system however
is to ’further the achievement of sustainable development.’ The
sustainability of communities could be served by the protection
against both deliberate and accidental fires in schools that also in
many occasions serve as social assets and components of the local
economic network.
There has been no substantive review of means of escape in
the case of fire since 1994; therefore guidance has been partially
rewritten to better explain the stages of escape following the
outbreak of fire. Improved guidance on fire detection and fire
alarm systems and a greater choice between active and passive fire
safety measures have also been included.
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Services such as mechanical plant and lifts, where they are
located adjacent to dwellings and sleeping accommodation, in
residential buildings have also generated many complaints.
2010 onwards
Looking beyond the changes coming into force on 1 October BSD
is committed to developing sustainability standards under the
auspices of a new Section 7 and is looking at what can be done
to improve the existing non-domestic building stock in terms of
energy efficiency.
Sustainability
BSD, in response to industry demand is currently developing
with stakeholders a system for the sustainability labelling of new
buildings as part of the building standards system, using the
Scottish building regulations and a new Section 7 (Sustainability).
The intention is that new buildings should be designed to
achieve a specified level of sustainability and that a statement of the
level of sustainability is achieved through a ‘sustainability badge’.
Criteria would cover a wide range of sustainability issues such as
home working, accessibility, provision for cycling, daylighting,
water conservation as well as various energy efficiency related
issues.
Existing Buildings
New build contributes only 1% to the overall building stock.
Significant gains towards meeting the Government’s challenging
climate change targets lie with improving the existing building
stock. The property and construction industry will play a vital
part in realising the substantial reduction in energy usage and
greenhouse gasses that are necessary.
BSD are presently, under the Climate Change (Scotland) Act
2009, developing with stakeholders measures that will improve
non-domestic buildings in the most cost effective way. Housing is
being tackled by another Division of Government. It is intended
that regulations will be brought forward in the future and it is
hoped that industry will react positively to the proposed changes
and develop innovative and economic techniques to deliver the
necessary level of improvement.
The Sullivan Report and its transition to the Government’s
climate change agenda has ensured that the route to low carbon
buildings and the drive to continually raise the standard of
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buildings generally will keep everyone at BSD gainfully employed
well into the future.
BSD arranged a number of dissemination events to be held at
their office in Livingston between July and October which are now
fully booked – a reserve list is in operation and more details are
available on the BSD website. However BSD has also partnered with
RIAS to present dissemination events in Stirling and Aberdeen –
for more information see page 93.
BSD also intends to publish on their website a list of the changes
to help users easily identify them throughout the handbooks.
Jonathan Astwood
Assistant Head of Building Standards

The 2010 Technical Handbooks are available
on the BSD website www.scotland.gov.uk/bsd.
Hard copies of the Technical Handbooks are
available through TSO.
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cpd

Bsd RIAS Building Standards Update Events
On 1 October 2010, the new 2010 versions of the Technical
Handbooks will come into force (see feature page 90). Prior to
their introduction, Building Standards Division and RIAS have
co-organised two events which focus on the major changes in the
guidance.
These events cover essential information and are invaluable
CPD, contributing to four hours towards your annual CPD, and
we advise early booking. The programme will include a general
overview, expert presentations from BSD technical authors on all
six Sections and Q&A sessions.
the seminars
The seminars will be held at the Pathfoot Lecture Theatre at the
University of Stirling on Thursday 29th July and at Aberdeen Arts
Centre on Wednesday 11th August. Both events will begin at noon
with a networking lunch and are scheduled to conclude at 5.15pm
A delegate charge will be applied to cover venue hire, catering
and administration expenses but RIAS has endeavoured to keep
the cost to members as low as possible.
The cost, including lunch, afternoon refreshments and update
materials, will be £30 + VAT (£35.25) for RIAS members and £50 +
VAT (£58.75) for non members.
A number of places for RIAS members on the reduced income
membership rate will be reserved at a cost of £15 + VAT (£17.62)
and will be assigned on a ‘first come first served’ basis.

pathfoot lecture theatre
university of stirling
thursday 29th july

Early Booking Advised	
A series of dissemination events from July to October which were
scheduled at BSD in Livingston were fully booked within days. We
anticipate a high demand for these forthcoming BSD/RIAS events
and advise early booking.
To secure your place please complete the booking form which
is available on the RIAS website under RIAS CPD, and return with
payment to events@rias.org.uk, fax to 0131 228 2188 or call Sonja
Rosendahl at the RIAS on 0131 229 7545 to make a telephone
booking.

aberdeen arts centre
wednesday 11th august
events start at noon.
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Any size, Any shape, Anywhere
®
Wake up to Flushglaze Rooflights
Triangular Flushglaze

Circular Flushglaze

The Flushglaze product is a fixed flat glass skylight.
The concept is based on an innovative design that helps to
achieve maximum daylight, longevity and high performance,
in various shapes and sizes to enhance any building.

• Maximise the light
• Uncompromised style
• Enhance your living space

Call for a brochure on: 0333 8000 881
Fax: 0333 8000 882
Rectangular Flushglaze

DERS N

Modular Flushglaze

www.glazingvision.co.uk

ECOBLOCK

Forticrete have a reputation for innovative
thinking and the Hi-Light Masonry range is
testament to this. Another piece in this highly
innovative system is the new Quoin external
angle. Up to 25% lighter than solid masonry, the
Quoin, at under 20kg fulﬁls all the necessary
Health & Safety concerns. What’s more, the
impressive environmental beneﬁts of the
Hi-Light system are evident in its cellular design,
which uses up to 24% less material than a solid
block. This is why we have promoted the block
using our ECOBLOCK logo. The Hi-Light system
has well and truly got the product cornered.

For more information
visit www.forticrete.co.uk
email us at masonry@forticrete.com
or call Forticrete on 01429 838001

Introducing the Hi-Light Quoin.
Now we’ve got the product cornered.
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Hand Built in the UK
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FINANCE

june BUdget summary
Frame A. Broadfoot of RIAS PFS provides a summary of George’s Osborne’s recent
emergency budget, highlighting how it may impact on RIAS members.

George Osborne described his first Budget as ‘the unavoidable
Budget’ in which spending cuts outweighed tax increases by a ratio
of 77% spending cuts to 23% tax increases. The capital gains tax
changes were less harsh than many feared. The new top rate of 28%
is much less than the 40% or 50% rates that had been threatened
and it was a relief that the annual exemption will stay at £10,100.
The increase in the lifetime limit for entrepreneurs’ relief from £2
million to £5 million will be welcomed by business owners.
On pensions tax relief, the Government is reviewing the
complex provisions that were to limit higher rate tax relief for
people with high incomes from April 2011 and seems to be
considering reducing the annual allowance from £255,000 to
between £30,000 and £45,000. The Government will also abolish
the current rules that effectively force people to buy annuities with
their pension funds at age 75 and will consult on the details. The
big revenue raiser will be the VAT increase in the new year, but the
main part of the package – the spending cuts – will be announced
in the autumn.
Budget highlights
• the standard rate of VAT will be 20% from Tuesday 4 January
2011,
• the personal allowance will rise by £1,000 in 2011/12, but
higher rate taxpayers will not benefit because the basic rate
limit will be cut,
• from 23 June 2010, the rate of capital gains tax will increase to
28% for higher and additional rate taxpayers, but will remain at
18% for basic rate taxpayers,
• entrepreneurs’ relief will continue at 10% and from 23 June
2010 the lifetime limit will be raised to £5 million per person,
• the main corporation tax rate will fall to 27% from 1 April 2011

•
•

•

and be reduced by 1% a year in the following three years,
The small profits corporation tax rate will reduce to 20% from
1 April 2011,
The annual investment allowance will be cut to £25,000
from April 2012. The writing down allowances for plant and
machinery will also be reduced,
The effective requirement to buy an annuity at age 75 will be
scrapped from April 2011.

RIAS PFS hopes that this summary proves useful. If any of the
areas discussed seem likely to have an impact on your personal or
corporate plans we would urge you to contact us so that we can
help guide you.
RIAS PFS
Tel 0141 226 8866
Email info@riaspfs.com
Web www.riaspfs.com

A detailed version of the RIAS PFS budget
summary for RIAS members is available in the
Resources section of the members-only area
on the RIAS website.
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6 Barnes Close, Brandon, Suffolk IP27 0NY

Tel:
Fax:
Email:

+44 (0) 1842 816080
+44 (0) 1842 813598
sales@glazinginnovations.co.uk

INSURANCE MATTERS

www.glazinginnovations.co.uk

A TOTAL SOLUTION FOR ARCHITECTURAL GLAZING
The team at Glazing Innovations specialise in the design,manufacture and installation
of bespoke and modular architectural glazing. We pride ourselves upon the services
we offer from pre-contract planning to site completion and subsequence maintenance.

• Atriums
• Partitions
• Facades • Rooflights
• Canopies • Balustrade

• Conservatories • Framed Glazing
• Walk On Floors • Structural Glazing
• Shuffle Glazing • Frameless Glazing

Lothian Valuation Appeal Committee
seeks members
LOTHIAN VALUATION APPEAL COMMITTEE seeks
Members to sit on appeals dealing with Council Tax
and Rateable Value for property in Lothian Region.
Appointments are made by the Sheriff Principal and
references may be required. This is an opportunity to
serve your community. The post is unpaid.
The Panel of about 20 Members meets in a quorum of
between three and six once or twice weekly between
the end of September and early December and the
end of April to the end of June and there are usually
another six or eight meetings in January and February.
A List of the dates is put out about two months ahead
to know who will be available.
Further information from and written applications only
please to:
Scott H. Miller, Secretary,
Lothian Valuation Appeal Committee,
3 Coates Crescent, Edinburgh EH3 7AL
Tel: 0131.225 2121
e-mail: scottmiller@allanmcdougall.co.uk

The problem
The architect notified his insurance company that his developer
client was having a problem with a contractor who was not
following his layout plans - but that it should not reflect on him.
After nine years, the total costs of extrication applicable to the
architect were well into six figures. What could have gone wrong?
The project
Client and architect were near neighbours and shared the same
tennis club. The client owned considerable ground which he hoped
to turn to profit by laying it out for housing plots. Since much
of this commission remained unclear, or had not been recorded
(perhaps because architect and client had begun as friends), the
architect’s supervisory duties remained wholly unclear – none
were charged for in the fee account. Planning permission had been
straightforward, but since vehicular access was relatively tight,
and had to negotiate a steep slope, the architect agreed a solution
with the Local Authority roads engineers. As the contractor had
proceeded to site works, it is not at all clear what role the architect
had at this stage. The client wanted to sell plots without a design,
to allow purchasers to do their own thing.
Unfortunately, the contractor did not follow the architects’
drawings in location, alignment or levels, and that had two results:
first, he had to excavate far more than he had allowed for - with
disposal and landfill issues; and second, the access road now clipped
a number of the plots, making them all distinctly smaller, and once
the purchasers realised that their sites had been diminished, they
withdrew.
The client, however, had been relying on the sale of early plots
to repay a bank bridging loan to fund the costs of laying out. Thus,
as the contractor’s costs had hugely increased, the client no longer
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A slippery slope
Charles McKean continues his popular series highlighting the
background and outcome of claims made to RIASIS

had the funds to pay either him or the architect. The case first went
to arbitration, with the architect’s assistance but once the latter
submitted fees, the client, now wholly without resources, obtained
Legal Aid to proceed to law against him.
Expert witnesses proliferated, and when the case went to court,
it was sisted, court again, and sisted again: and thus the years
passed. Despite the plethora of expertise, it proved extraordinarily
difficult to achieve a common view amongst roads engineers and
others; or indeed to find much in the way of contemporary record
of what the client or architect had said at any given time. The affair
was compounded by the architect’s ill health.

could far exceed the claim for damages. Moreover, given the
shortage of paperwork, the court would have to rely on witnesses
to a larger degree, and the company concluded that the lack of
precision and record might damage the credibility of the architect.
So it instructed its agent to open negotiations. The client then
backtracked and increased his claim significantly. Negotiations,
however, were assisted by the discovery that the site might have
been less of a total write-off than had been claimed, and the
company finally agreed to settle on the best terms available – a
six-figure sum with, in addition, about the same sum for the legal
expenses.

Suit for recompense
As is customary in such cases, the lawsuit, like the goddess Kali,
grew arms and legs. The principal arm became the claim by the
client, regardless of what the Roads Engineers had agreed to, that
the site had never really been developable, and that the architect’s
original design for access to the development site had been
doomed from the start. He sued therefore, for payments in cash
and kind to the contractor, a certificate issued for materials on site
(uncertain under what authority), costs of remedying defects, the
costs of arbitration, wasted legal fees and loss of profit. Underlying
the process, however, was the contention that if the site had never
been developable, the architect had led the client on by producing
a design implying that it could be.

Lessons
• it is never simple doing a plot layout - especially for a friend,
• approval from Roads Engineers does not necessarily provide a
sufficient defence for an arguably defective design,
• imprecision over the architect’s role led to him exercising
insufficient authority at a crucial stage of site works. Had he
been there, he might have been able to spot whether his plan
had some fundamental difficulties,
• the consequence was that the vast burden of costs caused by
an errant builder fell upon the architect.

The next steps
The costs were rising to such a degree that the insurance company
at one point felt it might be cheaper to purchase the contested
site than carry on. Its forecast was that if the case came to court
it could last well beyond four weeks: in which case the court costs

Moral
No matter how close or friendly the client, or how simple a
project, proper records are essential. Insufficient ones can make a
legitimate case impossible to defend.
RIAS INSURANCE SERVICES
Tel 0131 311 4292 Fax 0131 311 4280
Email ian.mccallum@marsh.com
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Winner of New Buildings in Highland Central Area, IAA Design Awards 2010:
Highland Archive Centre, Inverness, LDN Architects.
photographer: Ewan Weatherspoon

the rias is a federation of six local chapters.
chapter activity is central to the life of the
incorporation and our services to our members.
these updates illustrate the breadth and
quality of chapter activity.

98

Last year we profiled ASA President Gordon G
Smith and DIA President Willie Watt in Chartered
Architect. In this issue of RIAS Quarterly we
profile the other Chapter Presidents.
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Edinburgh architectural Association
Ken Ralston
Education: University of Edinburgh and 1 year of Landscape
Architecture at Edinburgh College of Art.
Employer: Lewis & Hickey Ltd
Presidency Commenced: April 2010
Manifesto: During the Presidency period I aim to review and
update the EAA Constitution, set up a Conservation Fund and
source funding from other sources to consolidate the volumes in
the EAA Collection, make the Collection more accessible and get
the rarer / more interesting volumes put on our website, improve
links with the Edinburgh Schools of Architecture, seek sponsorship
for CPD events ( if possible getting a major sponsor to subsidise
the annual programme), resurrect the Annual Ball combined with
the presentation of the EAA Awards (subject to the sponsorship
climate improving), improve links with the RIAS including better
communication of Committee activities back through Chapter
representatives, build on the dynamism of EAA Council and
encourage greater involvement from the membership and finally
maintain the standards set by previous Presidents.

sandy dawson

calum maclean

fiona sinclair

ken ralston

president profiles
to its parent body through whom the interests of its members are
ultimately most effectively promoted.
firemaster27@btconnect.com

Inverness Association of Architects
Calum Maclean
Education: Edinburgh College of Art
Practice: Thomas Munro & Co, Inverness
Presidency commenced: March 2010
Manifesto: We need to raise the profile of architects at a local level,
within our communities and become more engaged with the public
sector and the construction industry in the formulation of policy.
We also want to create more opportunities for our members to
promote their skills and expertise. We will therefore be focusing
on communications over the coming months, both to get our
message into the public consciousness and also using technology
to enable more members to get involved in IAA events.
If we are to become recognised as the profession that delivers
solutions, we will need to be sensitive and responsive to the issues
that are important to the community and industry.

kenneth.ralston@lewishickey.com or via mail@eaa.org.uk

c.maclean@thomasmunro.co.uk

Glasgow Institute of Architects
Fiona Sinclair
Education: Strathclyde University’s Department of Architecture
and Building Science (bit more room in the building back then).
Practice: Fiona Sinclair Architect (sole practitioner since 2006).
Presidency commenced: first time around 2004-2006, resumed
Presidency in April 2010.
Manifesto: Glasgow Institute of Architects exists to promote the
strengths and specialisms of its Chapter members, and Council
has traditionally done so through a long-established committee
structure whose core activities focus on communicating with the
membership and celebrating excellence in architecture both at
academic level and in practice.
Inevitably, effective methods of communication change year
on year, and the current Council require to address the need to
refresh the Chapter website in order that is easily maintained
and used regularly to post updates and to advertise awards,
competitions, seminars and CPD events. Furthermore, given
the wide geographic spread of the Chapter, it is important that
it can be used as a vehicle by the membership to communicate
their needs and interests back to Council. GIA also requires to be
represented and/or consulted across as wide a range of relevant
organisations as possible, allowing it to make a useful contribution

Stirling Society of Architects
Sandy Dawson
Education: Mackintosh School of Architecture
Employer: Facilities Management, Clackmannanshire Council
Presidency commenced: March 2009
Manifesto: It is too easy in times of difficulty to sit back and
complain or withdraw into yourself. As the smallest of the six
RIAS Chapters, it would have been easy for the Stirling Society
of Architects to do just that but even with our limited resources
we have tried to react to the current difficulties to the benefit of
our members. That is why we organised our last two CPD events
around techniques to look at the market and develop practices to
rise to the challenges associated with this. As President I have tried
to steer our CPD down this route rather than free, manufacturerproduced CPD.
Looking back over the last year, the Chapter Council has been
very positive, with some young, very dynamic members of the
RIAS joining up. There are a great many challenges out there and
with the new national government’s budget cuts I am fearful that
these will continue for some time. I am confident however that
the SSA can look forward positively given the mix of experience
and youth on its Council. Hopefully I will be able to continue to
foster this.
sdawson@clacks.gov.uk

99

R I A S Q U A R T E R LY S U M M E R 2 010

aberdeen

www.aberdeenarchitects.org

ASA Annual Dinner
Held on the 12 March 2010 at The Copthorne Hotel in Aberdeen the
event was deemed to have been a successful evening and continued
to be well supported by the local membership even during the
current economic times. We were grateful to sponsorship from
AC Yule’s, glazing + window suppliers, and Camstruction, a local
building company. Proceeds from the Dinner Prize Draw of £720
were donated to ABS.
AGM
The ASA GM was held on 22nd April 2010 at Scott Sutherland
School of Architecture. Unfortunately, due to the volcanic ash
cloud flight disruption the speaker arranged for the preceding 5710
lecture was cancelled and numbers of members were limited as a
result. A cheese and wine reception followed the AGM.
5710 Lectures
The 5710 series of Lectures continued throughout the Spring
semester, with an excellent mix of speakers. Due to our
sponsorship ASA members were provided with free entry. Recent
speakers have included Ruth Reed President RIBA, John Meagher
of de Blacam + Meagher), Keith Bradley of Fielden Clegg Bradley,
Niall McCullough of McCullough Mulvin and Shelley McNamara
of Grafton Architects. The Chapter recently made a decision to
continue its sponsorship of the event for 2010/11.

Aberdeenshire Awards
I was a representative on the Awards Panel. A total of 161 entries
were received in various categories. Having completed Stage 1
judging the site visits were scheduled for mid-July.

Urban Design Review Panel
Further meetings continued with representatives of Aberdeen
City Council. An article detailing the background to the Aberdeen
Design Review Panel is contained in the Spring 2010 issue of RIAS
Quarterly. We have established a core of 20 Architects who have
agreed to take part. It is hoped that inductions and training will be
carried out in June.

Chapter President Diary
On behalf of the Chapter I have attended the Dundee Construction
Question Time event in March, the RIAS Convention (see feature
pg 54), the above mentioned awards and an Alumni Lecture and
Architectural Student Reception in April where the Chapter signed
up 50 new RIAS student members.

Chapter Awards
Fully aware that the ASA remained the only Chapter without an
Award Scheme, a previous scheme having been allowed to lapse,
the Chapter launched a new awards scheme at the Annual Dinner.
Full details are to be issued to the architectural community
throughout Scotland to collate entries and to engage the public.
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Civic Society Awards
I was a representative on the Awards Panel. A further call for
entries has been made for buildings completed up to July 2010
Aberdeen City, final judging August 2010.

Forthcoming Events
CIOB Sports Challenge: Clay Pigeon Shooting 2nd September
2010
Gordon G Smith FRIAS
President Aberdeen Society of Architects
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This has been another busy quarter for the DIA. In the last edition
of RIAS Quarterly we noted that we had arranged a Question Time
style hustings on the run up to the general election. The event was
attended by over 100 people from across the construction industry.
The consensus of the audience appeared to be that the event
was very worthwhile, particularly as it raised the profile of the
profession on STV news, but that, worryingly, none of the political
parties really understood our profession’s concerns, or our desire
for public good. Many commented that this style of event should
take place far more frequently, which underlines the worth of the
steps Neil Baxter has taken to engage with the political world.
We also arranged a meeting with John Swinney MSP, Scotland’s
Cabinet Secretary for Finance and Sustainable, which was attended
by a cross-section of local practices and Neil Baxter. The meeting
focused upon the ‘coal-face’ issues experienced in architectural
practice, including procurement, project funding (both public
and private) and the process of architecture, particularly the
planning, building control, SEPA and Historic Scotland regimes
which, although very worthwhile, are often so slow as to deter
development.
In order to be politically even-handed the DIA has secured the
services of Murdo Fraser MSP (the deputy leader of the Scottish
Conservatives) as the key speaker for the Chapter Dinner, scheduled
for November. The RIAS President, David Dunbar, has also
graciously agreed to attend. A major component of the dinner is our
annual awards and we now call for entries. If you have completed
suitable projects please contact Rodger Brunton by email rodger@
bruntondesign.com. Due to the effects of the recession we have
launched an ‘On the drawing board’ category in recognition that the
number of built projects is likely to see quite a decline.
The Chapter has continued to liaise with the various local
authorities in Tayside and North-east Fife at a grassroot level
and has commented on the delivery of the planning and building
control service. Dundee City Council has been helpful in setting
up both planning and building control focus groups. We wish to
expand such liaison to the other Councils.
The DIA has also worked closely with the Tayside Construction
Forum which has now been fully established. We have also liaised
with the Scottish Construction Centre to ascertain whether SCS
can facilitate the DIA CPD programme, now that Rodger Brunton
intends to step down from that role. The DIA warmly thanks
Rodger for all of his hard work in this regard over the years. In an

effort to freshen up our approach to CPD we also intend to launch
CPD suppers in the autumn in both Dundee and Perth. More will
be announced in the near future.
Although the Chapter’s 125th anniversary was celebrated
in 2009, events marking that milestone continue, including a
retrospective exhibition of the DIA Awards in Arbroath Art Gallery.
The exhibition will review the awards during the period 2005 to
2010 and opened on Monday 12th July.
The promised 125th anniversary publication, featuring
favourite Tayside and North-east Fife buildings by senior figures
from public life, including the DIA Past Presidents, is now also
coming together. If you are a DIA Past President and have not
yet replied we look forward to receiving your submission in the
near future as the graphics for the book are advancing. DIA Past
Presidents should send their submissions to Rodger Brunton
rodger@bruntondesign.com.
The chapter also continues to participate in the Dundee
Waterfront Design Advisory Group, and we look forward to seeing
the first proposals for the V&A. Development of the enabling
works which will underpin the masterplan is now well advanced
and it is heartening that detail will now be added to that vision,
which has up until now been rather sketchy.
In recent weeks we have awarded the annual best student
prize at the Dundee School of Architecture. The degree show
was very enjoyable and we hope that the talent on show will find
employment despite the recession.
Should any members have ideas which they feel we should
pursue or if you wish to assist the DIA Council we would be
delighted if you contact us.
Willie Watt FRIAS
President DIA
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EAA Council
The EAA Annual General Meeting took place on 13th April. Ian
Stewart and Gloria Lo stood down as Council Members, each having
served three years. We are grateful to Gloria for agreeing to continue
in her role as CPD diary organiser. Ian was elected as Junior Vice
President, Dermot Patterson became Senior Vice President and Ken
Ralston President. Ken Lochrie agreed to continue as Honorary
Treasurer and David Waugh as Honorary Librarian. Robert Black
becomes Past President. Angus Eitel, Andrew Leslie and Andrew
Stavert joined Council and Colin Gilmour became a co-opted
member representing the Borders Architecture Group (BAG).
CPD
Following the presentation of the EAA Awards at the Balmoral
Hotel, as reported last issue, all category award and commendation
winners subsequently took part in a presentation of their projects to
a keen audience of architects at the Scottish Storytelling Centre.
In June there was a Practice Management session covering
risk management, guidance for architects appearing in court and
Professional Indemnity risk areas. In addition, Nick Paterson of
Foster and Partners conducted a building visit to the Quartermile
development, when we were able to look round some of the
commercial office space as well as one of the residential tower blocks.
A visit to the new John Hope Gateway building at the Royal Botanic
Gardens is being planned for later in the summer when it is hoped
that Roddy Langmuir and Alex Abbey, the project architects from
Edward Cullinan’s office, Ian Hargreaves from Buro Happold and a
representative from the clients will give us a talk before showing us
around. Details will be announced on our website in due course.
Awards
The 2010 J R Mackay Medal, for the best third year student from
the Edinburgh College of Art School of Architecture, was awarded to
Fraser McQuade. The award was judged by EAA council members
Kieran Gaffney, Robert Black and Angus Eitel. The 3rd year work was
based on one large project in Dundee’s waterfront which went from
a Masterplan scale of the waterfront to a Museum (of Dundee Life)
detailed at 1:5. The range of scale and scope of work was impressive
and the judges in particular enjoyed the 1:50 part models that were
developed by all students. The tutors were strongly commended
for this approach. The standard of work was found to be very high
and Aum Uangudom, Gorgios Tsorman and Ross Aitchison also
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deserve a mention. The medal was presented at the opening of the
Edinburgh College of Art degree show on 11th June.
The EAA was also pleased to sponsor an accompanying
publication, illustrating the degree projects, which this year
developed responses to the city of Berlin, creating a lively and
diverse range of buildings and spaces on a variety of sites. Both
reinforce the Association’s drive to develop a closer relationship
with the schools.
EAA Library
The EAA Collection has now been catalogued and reorganised and
we are very grateful to Louise Clark for her invaluable input to
completing this long overdue piece of house-keeping, alongside
David Waugh, our Honorary Librarian. A valuation has also been
done for insurance purposes and items in need of conservation
have been identified. As quite a few volumes are in poor repair
funding is being sought for this purpose.
Edinburgh Urban Design Panel
Council and Chapter members continue to represent the interests
of the profession on the monthly Edinburgh Urban Design Panel.
Recent projects for discussion have included Haymarket Station,
Brunswick Road, the Festival Theatre extension, Craigmillar
Neighbourhood Offices and Library and the Edinburgh Open
Space strategy. EAA representatives will also share their skills
and experience in discussions with members of the Planning
Committee on a tour of affordable housing in the city.
Forthcoming Chapter Council Meetings
Tuesday 10th August; Tuesday 14th September
Kenneth C Ralston RIAS
President EAA
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With the Annual General Meeting on 22 April 2010 came my
(temporary) return to the Presidency. With strong support in the
form of three Vice-Presidents - Michael Jarvis, Sandy McMillan
and Ian Hamilton – I anticipate that Council will enjoy another year
of lively debate and commitment to the pursuit of the Institute’s
core activities.
Past-President Martin McKay will continue to play an active
role as a member of the GIA Architecture, People and Places
Committee, and recently presided over the judging of the Queen’s
Park Arena Competition. This saw the Institute collaborate with
the four community councils local to Glasgow’s Queen’s Park area
to secure a design for a modern, multi-purpose performance and
activity space at the site of the former park bandstand.
From in excess of 75 entries, shortlisted and other selected
schemes were exhibited as part of the Southside Festival weekend,
during which the views of the visiting public were gathered.
Finally, on the evening of 1st June, five practices (including two
from London), presented their projects to an invited audience,
with the judges making the decision to award first place to
Glasgow practice ZM Architecture. The original Queen’s Park
Performance Project Steering Group (funded under the Scottish
Government’s “empowering Communities” agenda), will now
constitute themselves as Queen’s Park Arena Ltd for the purposes
of realising the winning scheme. GIA hope to remain involved in
the process, and plan to launch a further competition in the near
future using a similar organisational model.
The Institute’s remaining Committees – Communications,
Education and Practice/CPD – have begun work on the new session’s
tasks. These include preparing to re-launch the Annual Design
Awards – now, unbelievably, in their thirty-second year and, despite
a slowdown in construction, continuing to attract a growing number
of entries from across the Chapter area. GIA Awards have long acted
as a barometer, an indicator of the nature of projects being funded
by government, by institutions and by private individuals. This
year we can expect both the number and nature of entries to reflect
what are uncertain times and reduced funding across many sectors,
but the uniformly high standard of design set in previous years is
confidently expected to be maintained. In addition to their work
on the Awards, the members of the Communications Committee
also plan to re-visit the design of the GIA website as well as the
travelling exhibition, and will contribute to Glasgow’s Doors Open
Day programme of events later in the year.

zm architects

glasgow

For the Education Committee, one of the highlights of the year
is the judging of the GIA Student Awards. With two schools of
architecture in the Chapter area, and awards given at every level,
this represents a concentrated effort on behalf of the judges, albeit
one they find rewarding and, indeed, energising. The winning
students will be presented with their award certificates (and modest
cheques) at a celebratory event to be held in October at the House
for an Art Lover. At around the same time, GIA will also re-launch
the triennial Alexander Thomson Travelling Scholarship, first won
by William J Anderson in 1887 (with the proceeds from which he
spent five months in Italy) and on its last outing awarded for a
dissertation on the work of architect and artist William Leiper.
This session, in acknowledgement of the RIAS Accreditation
schemes, a new Committee – Con-Sus – has been created to
deal specifically with issues relating to conservation architecture
and sustainability. This promises to be an ambitious initiative,
with the members working side by side with the Practice/CPD
Committee to develop a full programme of building visits and
events. At the same time, it is intended to establish links with a
range of organisations across Scotland dedicated to best practice
in conservation and sustainability. Positive responses have been
received from SEDA, SFGB, SSLG and Historic Scotland.
Lastly, GIA Council has revived the tradition of having student
representation at meetings, and joining the 17 architect members
are Mena Kubba (Mackintosh School of Architecture) and Tom
Warren (Strathclyde University).
Fiona J Sinclair FRIAS
President GIA
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The IAA Awards are now underway and media coverage in local and
national press is whipping up anticipation of the coming exhibitions
and events throughout the summer and autumn. The awards have been
well received by the media which has helped to stimulate interest in the
role of architecture within the community.
The quality of submissions is very high indeed right across the
IAA Area. Local exhibitions will be taking place in Inverness, Portree,
Elgin, Stromness and Golspie with the Awards Finals taking place
at the Strathpeffer Pavilion in November. The Awards Finals will
also incorporate a regional CPD conference with this year’s theme
being ‘Northern Edge’ focusing on design issues such as identity and
environment as well as practical issues dealing with practice in the
Highlands and Islands.
Shetland is also hosting a series of events throughout the summer,
under the banner ‘The Power of Place’. The events include arts,
educational and community workshops for all ages, themed articles
in Shetland Life, an international conference (Building Resilience in
Island Communities, 16th-18th September), open forums for debate
and discussion, youth street events, ‘Bricks in Flicks’ - an architecture
film festival and events in community buildings across the islands.
The autumn will also see the completion of the Housing Expo on
the outskirts of Inverness. This will be eagerly anticipated and will be
of great interest to both architects and the general public. As well as
demonstrating a number of new sustainable design and technology
strategies, the planning of the site explores new ideas which will be of
great interest to architects, planners and the public.
Developing links with the public sector, developers and the community
will become a feature of our activities. Within the Highlands and Islands
there is a willingness to explore greater partnership and co-operation
within all of these groups. This is an opportunity to get involved and get
our message across, that design matters, but there is also an obligation
on us to understand the constraints that other bodies must work within.
This will be a gradual process, with difficult lessons for us all to learn, but
the potential benefits for local communities and architects will make it
worthwhile.
Staying with the theme of communications, the IAA is also
developing the use of video conferencing technologies. This has proved
very effective in enabling our colleagues from Shetland to participate
in IAA Activities and we intend to develop this further.

Calum Maclean
IAA President
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Tha duaisean an IAA a-nis fo sheòl agus tha còmhdach bho na meadhanan
anns na pàipearan ionadail is nàiseanta a’ brosnachadh fiughair ris na
taisbeanaidhean agus na tachartasan a tha ri thighinn tron t-samhradh
agus tron fhoghar. Tha na meadhanan air gabhail gu math ris na duaisean
agus tha sin air ùidh a spreigeadh anns an dleastanas a tha aig ailtireachd
an taobh a-staigh na coimhearsnachd.
Tha gnè nan tagraidhean àrd dha-rìribh fad is farsaing air feadh Sgìre
an IAA. Bidh taisbeanaidhean ionadail a’ gabhail àite ann an Inbhir Nis,
Port Rìgh, Eilginn, Sròm Nis agus Goillspidh le Farpais Crìochnachaidh nan
Duaisean a’ gabhail àite ann am Pàillean Shrath Pheofhair san t-Samhain.
Bidh na Duaisean cuideachd a’ gabhail a-steach co-labhairt roinneil CPD
agus ’s e ‘An Oir a Tuath’ cuspair na bliadhna seo, a bhios a’ cuimseachadh
air cùisean dealbhaidh leithid dearbh-aithne agus àrainneachd a thuilleadh
air cuisean practaigeach a’ dèiligeadh le cleachdadh anns a’ Ghàidhealtachd
’s na h-Eileanan.
Tha Sealtainn cuideachd a’ toirt aoigheachd do shreath de thachartasan
tron t-samhradh, fo bhratach ‘Cumhachd Àite’. Am measg nan tachartasan,
bidh ealain, bùithtean-obrach oideachail agus coimhearsnachd airson
gach aois, nithean cuspaireil ann am Beatha Shealtainn, co-labhairt
eadar-nàiseanta (Togail Fulangas ann an Coimhearsnachdan nan Eilean
16mh -18mh Sultain), fòraman fosgailte airson deasbad is deasbaireachd,
tachartasan sràide òigridh, ‘Breigichean sna Flicks’ – fèis fiolm ailtireachd
agus tachartasan ann an togalaichean coimhearsnachd tarsainn nan
eileanan.
As t-fhoghar, chithear crìoch a’ dol air an Taisbeanadh Taigheadais
(Housing Expo) air iomall Inbhir Nis. Bithear a’ dèanamh fiughar mhòr ris
an seo agus bidh e na chùis-ùidhe mhòr don dà chuid, na h-ailtirean agus
don phoball san fharsaingeachd. Cho math ri bhith a’ taisbeanadh àireamh
de ro-innleachdan dealbhaidh is teicneòlais ùra seasmhach, tha am planadh
a tha an lùib na làraich a’ rannsachadh bheachd-smuaintean ùra a bhios
ùidheil dha-rìribh do dh’ailtirean, luchd-planaidh agus don phoball.
Bidh leasachadh cheanglaichean leis an earrann phoblaich, luchdleasachaidh agus a’ choimhearsnachd glè chudromach am measg ar
gnìomhachdan. An taobh a-staigh na Gàidhealtachd ’s nan Eileanan, tha
deòin ann com-pàirteachas agus co-obrachadh nas motha a rannsachadh
an taobh a-staigh nam buidhnean sin uile. ’S e cothrom a tha seo a dhol an
sàs agus ar teachdaireachd a lìbhrigeadh, gu bheil dealbhadh cudromach,
ach tha dleastanas oirnne na cuingealachaidhean a thuigsinn leis am feum
buidhnean eile a bhith ag obair. ’S e pròiseas mean air mhean a bhios an
seo le leasanan duilich a dh’fheumas sinn uile ionnsachadh, ach is math is
fhiach e a thaobh nam buannachdan a bhios ann do choimhearsnachdan
ionadail agus do dh’ailtirean. A’ fuireach leis a’ chuspair conaltraidh,
tha an IAA cuideachd a’ leasachadh cleachdadh air teicneòlasan cholabhairtean bhideo. Tha seo air a dhearbhadh èifeachdach dha-rìribh ann
an toirt comas do ar co-oibrichean à Sealtainn a bhith com-pàirteach ann
an Gnìomhachdan an IAA agus tha sinn an dùil tuilleadh leasachaidh a
dhèanamh air an seo.

Calum MacGilleathain
Ceann-suidhe an IAA
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In the Spring 2010 edition of RIAS Quarterly, I told the story of the
Stirling Chapter’s President’s chain of office. Unfortunately stolen
about three years ago and never recovered, our Council saw its loss
as more of an opportunity rather than a disaster. Replacing it would
give the chance to create a contemporary design that would be
unique. Following the period of intense discussion, contemplation
and cross-curricular activity that is picking a name out of a hat,
we settled upon approaching the Edinburgh College of Art. At the
end of 2009 I met with Stephen Bottomley, head of Jewellery and.
Our brief was simple, a new chain that would be contemporary in
design, but would draw it’s inspiration from architecture familiar
to our members. I left Stephen with a brief presentation on our
geographical area and its history as well as copies of the available
RIAS Guides on Falkirk and Clackmannanshire.
We were more than pleasantly satisfied with the quality of
the designs submitted by five final year students. One however
stood out and Heather Woof was commissioned to make the piece.
Heather worked hard and met our deadline of the chain being
available for RIAS Conference in May. In making my welcome to
RIAS members, speakers and guests to Stirling on 14th May I had
the honour of wearing the new chain.
Early in June, I was invited the opening evening of the
Edinburgh College of Art’s Degree Show and was able to have a
chat with Stephen and Heather.Talking to Stephen it was clear
that there are beliefs within his department that architects can
clearly identify with. To him, the philosophy of the Jewellery and
Silversmithing department is balancing innovation with old and
new approaches to traditional craft techniques. He confirmed
that the course’s objective is to design and create personal and
individual work that integrates ‘thought’ and ‘practice,’ sharing
a common sensitivity to the complex relationships that humans
form for objects. We support a reflective understanding of the
subject within the contexts of contemporary society and its wider
industry - to this end the department embraces working with new
technology alongside traditional time-honoured techniques and
processes.
Heather Woof discussed the inspiration and influences upon
her work in general including the materials and methods that
she works in, explaining “I take much of the inspiration for my
jewellery from my drawing and the two practices are very closely
related for me. My fine line drawings often start as doodles that
develop intuitively through exploring complex pattern and

heather woof

new chain of office

repetition. In my jewellery I often use methodical techniques with
both sheet and wire and combine these controlled processes with
those that can yield unexpected results such as fusing, enamelling
and oxidisation. Working predominantly with silver and gold I try
to construct my jewellery in the same way I build up a drawing,
working intuitively and responding to the piece as it develops. My
work is about this balance between obsessive control and chance.”
I asked her about the inspiration for our piece. “For the design
of the medal I took inspiration from old maps of Stirling and aerial
photography of the town”, she told me, adding, “I spent some time
researching in the map library and was particularly drawn to 17th
century maps of Stirling Castle. I looked to the structures present
in these to inform the shape of the medallion and the patterned
insert. The piece is made in sterling silver which has been oxidised
with wirework inlay in 22ct gold. The chain is made of sterling
silver with 18ct gold links. The design allows the piece to be worn
as either a pendant or a brooch.”
As a parting comment Stephen Bottomley spoke not only on
his high hopes for Heather, but for all his students. I certainly
would also wish all the students a long and profitable career. As
for our chain of office, perhaps a future president of the Stirling
Society of Architects will be on Antiques Roadshow many years in
the future with his valuable example of an early Woof!
If you are interested in seeing more of Heather’s work you can
visit her website at www.heatherwoof.com.
Sandy Dawson RIBA RIAS
President, Stirling Society of Architects
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chartered architect // PRESIDENT’S DIARY

MAY 2010
04 Eve of University Day Dinner, Ross
Priory
05 Civic Reception, Glasgow
07 RSA President’s Supper & Reception
14 RIAS Convention, Stirling
20 Lunch with Convenor of Membership
Committee, Edinburgh
RIBA Awards Reception and Exhibition
Launch, The Lighthouse, Glasgow
27 Charles Rennie Mackintosh Book
Launch, Glasgow Art Club
david dunbar prias and richard gibson frias

june 2010
01 Creating Places Seminar, The Palace of
Holyroodhouse
02 RIAS PPC
03 GSA Design Consultation, Glasgow
04 RIBA Validation Lunch, University of
Strathclyde
10 RIAS Scottish Design Tutor Award
paterson architects

malcolm fraser architects

Judging, Glasgow,
Degree Show, GSA
16 RIAS Council, RIAS Fellows Reception,
RIBA Awards Presentation
24 RIBA Council

july 2010
13 Royal Garden Party, The Palace of
Holyroodhouse
15 A+DS and RIAS Scottish Student
Awards for Architecture Judging

new stobhill hospital, reiach and hall
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chartered architect // COUNCIL REPORT

The Management Accounts to the end of
the first quarter indicated a positive balance
of £1,794 and a small increase on the budget
of £1,657 approved by Council in March.
Within those figures there have been a
number of pluses and minuses with a greater
increase in the reduction in subscriptions,
bookshop turn-over, CPD income and room
hire down, offset by positive figures from
accreditation, bank interest, membership
costs, postage and storage. Council noted
the Management Accounts and approved
the revised budget of £1,794.
A simplified mechanism for the
nomination of Fellows and Honorary
Fellows was approved, along with an increase
in Affiliate membership subscriptions, the
introduction of monthly admissions for
new members, dropping of the ‘Associate’
suffix and an amendment to the retiral
provisions for Members and Fellows who
have been forced to retire early by illness.
On membership matters Council noted
with regret the death and resignations
of a number of Members and Fellows.
The retirals, re-instatements, elections
of Members, Affiliates and Students and
nominations to Fellowship and Honorary
Fellowships were approved.
Following on from recent internal
improvement works Council approved
the expenditure of a further £15,000
to undertake the redecoration and recarpeting of the basement and subbasements to improve the amenity for staff
and members.
The Convention 2010 was noted as a
success with comment to that effect being
received from one of the eminent speakers,
Louis Becker. Despite generous sponsorship
from VELUX and SELECT the Convention
made a small loss.

Following the launch of the first
issue of RIAS Quarterly in April a detailed
breakdown of the costs was submitted to
Council and further sponsorship is being
pursued to ensure a break-even.
A member’s query about duplication
of judges between the Doolan and RIBA
Awards was discussed at length by
Council. It was agreed that the past year’s
events were highly unusual and that we
would ensure no such overlap in future.
A complaint from a member against a
local Chapter’s objection to a planning
application was discussed and it was agreed
that such objections should be notified to
A+DS in the future.
Amalgamation
of
Membership
Committee into the Awards Committee
was approved by Council and the present
Convenor and Vice Convenor of the former
will continue to review applications for
membership within the expanded remit of
the Awards Committee.
Council approved changes to the
process for the nomination of RIAS
representatives to RIBA Council to avoid
conflict with the RIBA’s standing orders.
Adjustments were also agreed to ensure
that members were not over-charged for
the first year of membership.
Members had indicated concerns over
pressure on architects by banks to extend
their liability into certifying a supervisory
role in small domestic projects. Council
approved measures for countering this
behaviour.
Council noted that the RIAS, under the
Arbitral Appointments Referee (Scotland)
Order 2010, had been authorised to act
as an Arbitral Appointments Referee.
Training and assessment procedures will
now be developed. RIAS will also examine

the development of proposals for similar
training for mediators.
Council considered an invitation by the
Prince of Wales Philanthropic Medal to the
President to nominate a candidate for the
award and the sponsor for a recent project
was agreed to be contacted to ascertain
their interest in being put forward.
A long running dispute with Yell Ltd
over their breach of copyright in using
the RIAS crest in its printed directories
was discussed and Council approved the
strengthening and clarification of RIAS
guidance on the use of the crest and the
taking of appropriate action against Yell.
The RIAS objections to the proposed
Aberdeen Civic Square Competition were
discussed and it was agreed to monitor
the situation and agree further action, as
required.
Council noted progress on the drafting
of further documentation and amendment
of existing documents for the RIAS Energy
Design Certification scheme following the
April re-audit, and this was confirmed as
nearing completion. Further work will be
necessary to take into account the revisions
to Section 6 of the Building Regulations to
be implemented in October. There are now
40 Approved Certifiers of Design of which
21 are producing Section 6 Certificates.
A recent Practice Essentials CPD
event at the Scottish Storytelling Centre
was a sell-out and a further similar event
took place at the Eden Court Theatre
in Inverness in early June. A talk by Dr
James Macaulay at the RIAS on 9th June
to launch his new biography on Charles
Rennie Mackintosh was also a success and
enjoyed by participants.
AJ HUGH frias
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chartered architect // MEMBERSHIP

COuncil regretted the
following deaths:

The Following Transfers
to the Category of Retired
Chartered Associate were
Approved:

The following Student
Memberships were approved:

Mr Arthur J E Barton arias Edinburgh

Mr William T Connal arias International

Mr Graham Barry Aberdeen

Mr George Black arias riba Edinburgh

Mr Humphrey Day arias riba Edinburgh

Mr Stuart M Binnie Aberdeen

Mr James P Landels arias riba Edinburgh

Mr John A Fox arias riba Edinburgh

Mr Charlie Charlie Aberdeen

Mr Thomas W Logan Glasgow

Mr Ron Galloway arias Edinburgh

Mr Timothy Devine Aberdeen

Mr James Henry Randell Ret arias Edinburgh

Mr Ian B Hickey arias riba Glasgow

Mr Alexander Murdo Dickson Aberdeen

Mr Walter Scott cbe frias Edinburgh

Mrs Clare Lawrence arias Edinburgh

Ms Erin Durno Aberdeen

Mr John A Simpson arias riba Aberdeen

Mr Kenneth McIntosh arias Glasgow

Ms Stephanie Ezra-Dieude Aberdeen

Mr Alfred Myles arias riba Glasgow

Ms Lynne Fenton Dundee

Mr James C Pettigrew arias riba Glasgow

Mr David Fleck Aberdeen
Mr Gordon John Gibson Glasgow

The Following Resignations
Were Accepted:
Mr Thomas Lee Chalmers arias riba
Edinburgh

The following Retired
Members transferring back
to full membership were
approved:

Mr Mark Andrew Kelly Glasgow
Mr Eoin Kavanagh Aberdeen
Mr Rory Kennedy Aberdeen
Ms Stefana Iaschevici Aberdeen
Ms Dervla Larkin Aberdeen

Mr William Clarke arias riba Edinburgh

Mr Glynn L Shackleton arias riba Glasgow

Mr Padraic Larkin Aberdeen

Mr John A Cornelius arias Glasgow

Mr Peter D Turner arias riba Edinburgh

Mr Steven Lockhart Aberdeen

Mr Alistair Cruickshank arias Glasgow

Mr Fraser Michael McQuade Edinburgh

Mr James J Fenton arias riba Glasgow

Ms Heather MacSween Glasgow

Campbell K Fleming arias riba Glasgow
Ms Lindsay Johnston arias riba Edinburgh
Mr Alan R MacGregor arias Edinburgh

The following
reinstatements to Associate
Membership were approved:

Mr Norman R MacGregor arias Glasgow
Ms Karen M Smith Edinburgh
Dr Steven Tiesdell arias riba Glasgow

Ms Kristy Moir Aberdeen
Ms Kirsti Oygarden Aberdeen
Mr Darren Park Aberdeen
Mr Karl Porter Aberdeen

Mr John Hamilton arias Edinburgh
Mr Ainslie Scott arias riba Aberdeen
		
		

Mr Adel Mohammad Remali Glasgow
Mr Stuart Robertson Aberdeen
Mr Benjamin Luke Rowe Aberdeen
Ms Carolyn Ruxton Aberdeen
Ms Natasha Szczyglowska Aberdeen
Ms Jennifer Shewan Aberdeen
Mr Craig A Steven Dundee
Ms Niamh Treacy Stirling
Mr Georgios Tsorman Edinburgh
Mr Stephen Webb Aberdeen
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caption competition

The Following Associate
Memberships were Approved:

The Following Fellowships
were Approved:

Mr Craig Amy Edinburgh

Mr Ian L Alexander arias riba Glasgow

Mr Alexander John Anderson Edinburgh

Ms Karen E W Anderson arias riba Glasgow

Ms Fiona Beedie Edinburgh

Mr Andrew R M Bruce arias riba Inverness

Maura Bissett Edinburgh

Mr James P Landels arias riba Edinburgh

Ms Joanne Boyle Edinburgh

(posthumous)

Mr Peter Buchanan Edinburgh

Mr Alisdair MacDuff arias riba Stirling

Mr Scott Calder International

Mr David Page arias riba Glasgow

Jonathan Cheyne Aberdeen

Mr Jonathan Speirs arias riba Edinburgh

Mr David Chisholm Edinburgh

		

Mr Stephen Brian Corry Inverness
Mr Fergal Feeney Glasgow
Mr Kenneth Fraser Edinburgh
Mr William Gunn Glasgow
Ms Jacqueline Jellema Glasgow
Ms Ruth Lonsdale Dundee
Ms Louise McLaren Dundee
Ms Irene Louise Catherine Matheson
Inverness

Pictured above are Ruth Reed priba
and Gordon A Smith, Convenor of the
RIAS Education Committee, at the RIAS
APEAS drinks reception for successful
Part III Candidates, held during the RIAS
Convention in Stirling in May. Captions
are invited – please email smcccord@rias.
org.uk. At the Editor’s discretion amusing
responses may be published in the next
Quarterly. The wittiest suggestion will
win a copy of the forthcoming RIAS
publication on Matt Steele.
No one won the photo competition
in the last issue. The detail depicted was
from the doorway at the RIAS HQ at 15
Rutland Square Edinburgh.

correction

Mr Gavin Monachan Glasgow

Apologies to Nicoll Russell Studios – the
practice name was incorrectly spelt in
the last issue.

Ms Ann Nisbet Glasgow
Mr George Frederick Oldham Glasgow
Mr Steven Davison Poliri Glasgow
Mr Dominic Quigley Glasgow

marathon update

Mr Martin Quirke Edinburgh
Mr Christopher Rae Dundee
Mr John Fennick Rae Glasgow
Mr Christopher James Rhodes Edinburgh
Ms Julie Slorach Edinburgh
Mr Steven John Thomson Glasgow
Mr Steven Turtle Glasgow
Mr Mark Walker Dundee
		

if you have changed your
home, practice or email
details, please contact sydny
brogan at sbrogan@rias.org.uk

On the 28th April the Secretary undertook the London Marathon on behalf of
Shelter under the banner “fending off
fifty” with a fundraising target of £5000.
He successfully completed the 26 miles
(4 hours, 54 minutes and 58 seconds) but
reports, with regret, that the “fending off
fifty” bit didn’t work!
The run raised £5365.76. With Gift Aid
that amounts to a grand total of £6441.62.
That total reflects the generosity of the
architectural profession in Scotland.
Many thanks to all who contributed.
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OBITUARIES

Obituaries which are
supplied to RIAS Council are
published in RIAS Quarterly

Bryan Munford ARIAS RIBA

june council
Arthur J E Barton ARIAS

Arthur James Barton, always known as Jim,
was born in 1925 and died in February of
this year. Prior to his architectural studies
he saw wartime service in the Royal Signal
Corps in India and Burma. His studies in the
late 1940’s and early 50s’ were undertaken
in London and Newcastle. His subsequent
career was in London and Newcastle. He
spent his later career working for the City
of Edinburgh at a period when the Council
architects’ office was working on a number
of significant housing projects, including
the redevelopment of the Pleasance area of
central Edinburgh, along with sports and
community facilities.
Throughout his long life, Jim Barton
had a keen interest in sport, walking,
climbing and in supporting the Scout
movement and a number of other
charitable causes.
Kindly supplied by Mrs Jean Barton
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Born in 1968 in Renfrewshire, Bryan’s
tertiary education was initially at the
Glasgow College of Building and Printing
before he joined the part-time course at
the Mackintosh School. While undertaking
his studies he worked variously at Wylie
Shanks Architects before moving on to WS
Atkins and eventually to Parr Architects
which subsequently became part of the
Archial Group.
With Archial, Bryan worked on
office and industrial projects, as well as
secondary schools in Milngavie, Bearsden,
Bishopbriggs and Kilmarnock. His most
recent major project was the extension
of the Edinburgh Airport Terminal, still
ongoing.
Bryan married Sandra in 1991 and in
the same year they moved to Kilmacolm
where they and subsequently daughters
Kate and Beth became closely involved in
the life of the local community. His wife
and daughters survive him.
In the obituary written for Bryan by his
colleague Kevin Cooper, Kevin highlighted
Bryan’s care, his support and mentoring of
younger colleagues, his considered wisdom
and his irreverent humour.

Kevin comments that Bryan; “took
great pleasure in creating laughter and in
other people’s happiness!”. He adds “If the
true measure of a successful life is the love,
fulfilment and happiness that one person
brings to the life of others then Bryan’s
was undoubtedly a rich and sparklingly
successful life”.

James Henry Randell ARIAS
James Randell arrived in Edinburgh from
London in 1930 at the age of five. After
wartime service in the Indian Army, he
studied architecture at Edinburgh College
of Art, starting his first job as an assistant
in 1954. In 1956 he moved to London and
joined Tripe and Wakeham, for whom he
was to run an office in Aden, South Yemen
from 1960 to 1963. On his return he joined
WS Atkins & Partners as a senior architect
and for them ran an office in Addis Ababa in
Ethiopia, the start of a lifelong connection
with that country.
On his return to the UK James joined
Costain Construction as a senior architect.
On being made redundant by them he
set up his own practice, but subsequently
joined Damond Lock Grabowski in London
on a part-time basis. He finally retired at
the beginning of 2006.
James Randell married Sheila
Fairgrieve in 1950 and they had one son,
David in 1956. He and his wife were keen
Liberals and members of the National
Liberal Club and of the Anglo-Ethiopian
Society for whom he served as Secretary,
Chairman and ultimately, President.
His son David describes him as “a true
gentleman of the old school”. James is
survived by his son David.

S U M M E R 2 010 R I A S Q U A R T E R LY

Jim Landels FRIAS
10.05.54-14.06.10

The Edinburgh architect, Jim Landels, who
has died aged 56, was a highly talented and
much loved man. As a mark of admiration
and respect his professional body, the Royal
Incorporation of Architects in Scotland,
has awarded him only their second ever
posthumous Fellowship.
James Paxton (Jim) Landels was the son
of James Paxton and Ellen Landels (nee
Bannon). His father, Jimmy, had a butchers
shop in Joppa. Jim won a Scholarship
to Edinburgh Royal High School and
subsequently studied architecture at
Edinburgh College of Art. He joined Kneale
and Russell Architects in 1978 becoming a
partner in 1982. His first significant project
was Deanery Close, a sheltered housing
scheme on a tight and difficult site at
Restalrig. An even more demanding task,
was a major tenement refurbishment at
Caledonian Crescent. Forthright in dealing
with contractors, owners and tenants
Jim’s humour and determination helped
achieve a successful completion. Other
Housing Association work included many
new-builds and a large mixed private and
social housing development at Morrison
Street, Edinburgh. In the early 1980s his

skills in conservation were demonstrated
in restauration works at the historic Fort
George, near Inverness.
One, particularly traumatic, event was
the death, in June 1985, of Stuart Russell
in a diving accident. Jim’s immense
emotional strength helped maintain the
equilibrium of the practice during the
traumatic aftermath of that tragedy.
Jim’s experience ranged across an
impressive breadth of different building
types. Projects for the University of
Edinburgh, included laboratories, teaching
facilities and, the Small Animal Hospital
at the Bush Estate. One much praised
success was the new Leith Academy (1990).
Jim also worked on banks, including new
buildings for the Bank of Scotland in
Portobello and Peebles and refurbishments
in Southampton, Bristol and Edinburgh.
Leisure developments included holiday
homes at the Atholl Hotel, Pitlochry,
a re-fit at the Scotsman Hotel and the
Edinburgh Airport Hotel.
In 1991 the practice won the major
competition for Haymarket goodsyard in
association with international practice,
the Percy Thomas Partnership. Sadly, the
project was later largely abandoned. Jim
subsequently helped merge Kneale and
Russell with Percy Thomas Partnership.
In 2004 the practice was renamed
Marland Consulting Group. The proudest
achievement of his whole career was the
superb new Broughton High School (2009)
an outstanding place of education and a
building full of delight.
Jim Landels’ work in tertiary
education has informed generations of
students on the courses at Napier, HeriotWatt and Edinburgh Universities. His
work as a professional practice examiner

is frequently quoted as exemplary. He
invariably dealt with often nervous
candidates with calm and supportive good
humour, helping many “over the line “ but
trusting to his very sound judgment when
tough decisions had to be made.
Jim Landels passionately believed that
well designed buildings improve people’s
lives. A lifelong interest in photography
was demonstrated in his design for the
famous Stills Gallery on Edinburgh’s High
Street and in his huge effort towards
creating a museum of photography in the
old Royal High School - a goal which, sadly,
eluded him.
An avid outdoorsman Jim Landels
excelled in skiing, fishing and sailing. He
liked nothing more than “going like the
clappers” down a ski slope. Although he
didn’t sail competitively, he was a keen
yachtsman and owned a GP14 sailing
dinghy, appropriately named “Swift
Current”.
In 2002 Jim received a devastatingly
short cancer prognosis. He very nearly died
on two occasions but rallied remarkably.
His campaign for the cancer drug Sutent to
be made available on the Scottish NHS even
saw him appearing on TV news bulletins.
His persuasive charm won the day, to the
benefit of many fellow sufferers.
Jim’s fight back against cancer won
him nearly a decade in which he continued
to enjoy the company of his very many
good friends and to work in the field
of architecture which he loved. Most
importantly he gained precious time to
enjoy the company of his family. Jim
Landels is survived by his mother Ellen,
wife Lorraine and their adored daughters
Jennifer and Rebecca.
Neil Baxter

111

R I A S Q U A R T E R LY S U M M E R 2 010

The royal incorporation of architects in scotland

ANNUAL REPORT

2009

the joyce b. deans members’ room, refurbished 2009

the following report details the achievements
and performance of the incorporation over the
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past year and the financial review and results
for the year ended december 2009.
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reference and administrative details

Scottish Charity reference

Council Members

Staff Members during the year

SC 002753

Chapter Representatives/Nationally
Elected/Co-options

Secretary & Treasurer
Neil Baxter

From May 2009
Gordon Anderson, Richard Atkins,
Stuart Bagshaw, Andrew Bruce,
Stuart Campbell, Donald Canavan,
David Chouman, Ian Connolly,
Hugh Crawford, Frank Crichton Wood,
Allan Cumming, Jim Cuthbertson,
Iain Dickson, Keiran Gaffney,
Euan Geddes, Mike Goudie,
Sholto Humphries, Gloria Lo,
Sandy McAllister, John M MacLean,
Roy Milne, Adrian Neville,
Dermot Patterson, Doug Read,
Shiela Riddell, Shane Rodgers, Joan Scott,
Gordon Smith, Paul Stephen, Ian Stewart.

Depute Secretary
Sharon McCord

Address of Principal Office
15 Rutland Square
Edinburgh eh1 2be

Members of Council (Trustees)
President
David Dunbar PRIAS from May 2009
Arnie Dunn PRIAS to May 2009
Past President
Arnie Dunn PPRIAS from May 2009
Doug Read PPRIAS to May 2009
Hon Treasurer
George Wren PPRIAS

Chapter Presidents
Stirling Society of Architects
Sandy Dawson from May 2009
Paul Stephen to May 2009
Aberdeen Society of Architects
Gordon G Smith from May 2009
Allan Cumming to May 2009
Dundee Institute of Architects
Willie Watt from May 2009
Ged Young to May 2009
Glasgow Institute of Architects
Martin McKay
Edinburgh Architectural Association
Robert Black
Inverness Architectural Association
Scott Donald

To May 2009
Gordon Anderson, Richard Atkins,
Andrew Bruce, Stuart Campbell,
Rob Campbell, Donald Canavan,
Ian Connelly, Hugh Crawford,
Frank Crichton Wood, Jim Cuthbertson,
Jo Dagen, Iain Dickson, David Dunbar,
Sandy Dawson, Kieran Gaffney,
Tim Gray, Mike Goudie, Gillian Hanley,
Sholto Humphries, Gloria Lo,
Sandy McAllister, John M McLean,
Roy Milne, Adrian Neville, Ken Ralston,
Shiela Riddell, Shane Rodgers, Joan Scott,
Gordon G Smith, Gordon Smith,
Ian Stewart, Willie Watt.

Depute Secretary
Andrew Leslie to June 2009

Bankers
The Royal Bank of Scotland plc
Edinburgh West End Office
142 – 144 Princes Street
Edinburgh, EH2 4EQ.

Auditors
Springfords LLP
Dundas House
Westfield Park, Eskbank
Edinburgh eh22 3fb

Accountants
Norman, Downie & Kerr Ltd
The Courtyard
130 Constitution Street
Edinburgh eh6 6aj

Investment Managers
Murray Asset Management
39 Castle Street
Edinburgh eh2 3bh

Legal Advisors
Simpson & Marwick
Albany House
58 Albany Street
Edinburgh eh1 3qr
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president’s introduction

As an autonomous membership organisation

we can work with A+DS on joint initiatives

problem and endeavouring to find solutions.

whose key role is to promote the benefits of

which will reinforce our respective roles and

This is an ongoing challenge. The danger that

architecture within Scotland, the Incorporation

strengthen both voices.

talent will be lost to the profession through

relies upon the endeavours of its members

For our own part, the last year has seen

architects pursuing alternative careers or

and on key relationships within Scotland and

a number of significant political meetings

departing these shores is an issue which we

beyond. Since its foundation in 1916 the RIAS

with ministers and leaders of the various

are impressing upon Government. It is also

has worked effectively with its sister institute,

opposition parties. Our Cross Party Group

an issue which connects with our concerns

the RIBA, to deliver services on behalf of

which we share with the RTPI, hosts lively and

over architectural procurement and the

its members and to work proactively in the

constructive meetings within the Parliament.

absurdity of the hurdles within current public

fields of education, practice, public/political

In 2009, for the first time, the Group also

commissioning.

relations, events, publications and legislation.

masterminded an event within the Festival

One very positive strand of RIAS

Our new agreement with the RIBA results

of Politics. All of these activities ensure that

activity over recent years has been the

from lengthy and constructive negotiations.

Scotland’s politicians are regularly reminded

visibly improving standard of submissions

Among much else the agreement establishes,

of the breadth of involvement and the crucial

to architectural awards. This was particularly

for the first time, a joint committee which

role of architects within our small nation.

evident in the seven RIBA Awards within

will review membership matters and the

A further aspect of continuing political

Scotland last year and the fantastic standard of

respective roles of the Incorporation and

involvement is the RIAS’ participation in

the Doolan Award submissions. International

the RIBA to ensure that our activities are

public and professional consultations over new

assessor Ian Ritchie commented that many

mutually supportive and that the architectural

legislation and other Government proposals.

of these submissions stand comparison with

profession within the UK speaks with a united

Within the last year the Incorporation

the very best currently being built in Europe.

voice on key issues.

has advised on numerous aspects of the

This is a strong argument for encouraging

One of the most crucial tasks of the

Government programme, key among which

Scottish endeavour and further support from

Incorporation is to ensure that we have a

are the sustainability agenda, the new

the public purse to assist Scottish architects

voice at the heart of Government. The process

technical standards which will come into force

both at home and in achieving international

of engaging politicians and persuading them

in October 2010, planning and proposed cuts

commissions.

of the importance of sensible procurement

in student funding. Happily the reduction

The Doolan winner, Archial Architect’s

mechanisms and indeed giving them a better

in educational funding has for the moment,

Small Animal Hospital in Glasgow, is an

understanding of the role of our profession

been held at bay.

extraordinary achievement. This is a building

in, quite literally, building a better society, is a
slow and at times painful process.

Architectural education is a continuing

which is almost the antithesis of recent

strand of RIAS activity. The contribution

so called “signature architecture” in its

The loss of The Lighthouse at the end of

of the profession to the tertiary education

understatement and its integration within its

2009 was a significant blow, removing what

of architects is insufficiently recognised

parkland setting.

could have been a highly effective vehicle

by

for public and political communication and

financial

international

The role of RIAS Consultancy in providing

consequent

good procurement practice continues. While

participation in the process of architecture

difficulty of supporting student placements

the RIAS team is involved in a limited number

from the Scottish scene. Over the same period

within Scottish architectural practices have

of projects, these do provide good evidence on

A+DS was being rebuilt from the ground up

highlighted this very substantial and relatively

PQQs and fee structure which will feed into

with a new board and new senior executive

unsung contribution by architectural practices

the RIAS procurement initiative which has

structure. A+DS now has a new Chair and a new

in bringing on the next generation. Our

been launched and will proceed through this

Chief Executive and has taken responsibility

Education

year.

for a considerably slimmed down Lighthouse.

increased liaison with ASSA and APEAS have

Among the more notable and high profile

We are hopeful that once the dust fully settles

all contributed to focussing on this specific

projects undertaken over the last year by RIAS
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Consultancy were competitions for Stornoway,

process of building public awareness is a slow

for the Nuclear Archive at Dounreay and for a

one, this PR endeavour reinforces our standing

new pavilion at Ardrossan. Although relatively

with politicians and in the wider public

modest in scale the emphasis on quality in each

forum. A continuing series of monographs

of these processes demonstrates priorities

and new/updated guides is also helping to

which should be more widely applied to the

reinforce public awareness of architecture

long term benefit of Scotland. Each of these

and the understanding of the work of specific

projects provides a case study, contributing to

historic Scottish architects. Our re-launched

the evidence in support of an improved and

Quarterly magazine is also proving effective

more cost effective procurement regime.

in this regard.

eleanor mcallister hon frias

It has taken some time but the RIAS

The Annual Convention and participation

Accreditations in Sustainability, Conservation

in other conferences connects with the

and

Certification

profession and with senior representatives

programme all now have clear and workable

our

Energy

Design

of partner bodies. The Dundee Convention,

mechanisms in place. The number of accredited

while playing to reduced numbers was rich in

practitioners within each is steadily increasing

ideas. This event reinforced the reputation of

which should deliver significant benefits to the

the Annual Convention as a highlight of the

profession. There are of course aspects of the

calendar, both stimulating and rewarding for

Sustainability and Energy Design programmes

all who attended its plenary and social events.

which connect with Building Standards

The Incorporation’s contributions to Historic

legislation. Our improved liaison with BSD

Scotland’s listed buildings conference and

will deliver enhanced CPD for architects and

the Mackintosh Centenary celebrations gave

strengthens our role in ensuring cogent and

further weight to the Incorporation’s standing

effective Building Standards for the future.

as a learned society.

archial win doolan award 2009

The Incorporation is a coming together
of its Chapters. Its constitution empowers
Chapter Presidents and Councils and ensures
that there is good proportional representation

David Dunbar PRIAS

from members from throughout the whole

April 2010

of Scotland’s spread geography. The Chapters

convention 2009, dundee

continue to provide local CPD programmes.
In 2009/2010 for the first time ever, all of
the RIAS Chapters had awards programmes
of their own which feed in to the Doolan
and RIBA processes. This will ensure that the
best endeavours of Scottish architects are
both recognised and well publicised. This and
Chapter social programmes deliver crucial
outreach and member engagement.
On the PR front, the Incorporation
continues to have a significant presence in
the Scottish press and media. Although the

dr joyce b. deans cbe pprias

115

R I A S Q U A R T E R LY S U M M E R 2 010

REPORT OF THE COUNCIL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2009

The Council of the Royal

set out in the Byelaws. The names of officers

Directory of Practices, a regular members’

Incorporation of Architects in

and other members of Council who served

newsletter and produces learned society

Scotland is pleased to present its

during the year are shown on page 113 above.

publications.

report for the year ended 31 December
2009. This report is prepared in
accordance with the Charter and

The Council is required to meet at least four
times each year and has overall responsibility
of the Incorporation (including governance

Bye-Laws of the Incorporation and

responsibilities under charity law). A formal

complies with applicable law.

induction for Council members is given at the

The Council has applied the

beginning of the first meeting each year, which

provisions of the Statement of

includes training on relevant regulations and

Recommended Practice (SORP)
“Accounting and Reporting by
Charities” issued in March 2005, in

Achievements and Performance

for the strategic management and operations

the responsibilities of trustees. Management
in specific areas is overseen by means of subcommittees and day to day management is
delegated to the Secretary & Treasurer and

preparing the annual report and

staff of the Incorporation. Senior members

financial statements.

of staff during the financial year are listed on
page 113 above.

Member Services
At the end of 2009 the RIAS and the RIBA
signed an historic new agreement. This
recognises the autonomy of each organisation,
strengthens

their

respective

roles

and

provides a more equitable division of income.
The new agreement will ensure more effective
collaboration and bring significant member
benefits. The RIBA’s new appointment
documents have been legally “kilted” and will
shortly be available in Scotland, alongside the
RIAS’ suite. We are also working to improve

Structure Governance and
Management

Objectives and Activities

both databases and align our information

The Incorporation is operated under the rules

The principal object of the Incorporation

communications.

of its Royal Charter and Byelaws, originally

is to promote the value of architecture and

granted in May 1922, and most recently

architects in Scotland. The full list of Objects

Politics and PR

revised in December 2003. It is a registered

is set out in paragraph 5 of the Charter. There

The Incorporation’s media profile is steadily

Scottish charity (reference SC 02753).

have been no changes in objectives since the

increasing with significant television, radio and

The Incorporation is a membership body with

last annual report.

press coverage in general media and specialist

six Chapters and six categories of membership:

Much of the activity supporting the objectives

journals. Ministerial meetings with Mike

honorary fellow, fellow, associate, honorary

is undertaken by the subsidiary trading

Russell and John Swinney and meetings with

affiliate, affiliate and student membership.

company, RIAS Services Limited which pays

leading opposition MSPs, including Annabel

Applications for membership are approved by

its profits over to the charity by gift aid.

Goldie and Tavish Scott, have ensured that

with the RIBA’s, towards improving member

the Council and members sign a declaration

RIAS Services Limited provides a range of

the Incorporation’s role and member concerns

confirming adherence to the RIAS Charter

services to individual members, architectural

are more widely understood at Holyrood. We

and Byelaws.

practices and other organisations. This

have also held meetings with COSLA and

Management of the Incorporation is the

includes a subscription service for architectural

STUC towards enhancing the standing of the

responsibility of the members of the Council,

practices, CPD for members, a bookshop,

profession and improving opportunities. UK

who are elected or co-opted under the terms

running events and other client services

and International liaison has included the

of the Byelaws, and who are charity trustees

including architectural competitions. There

President’s attendance at a reception at 10

for the purposes of charity law. Members of

is also a publishing arm, which publishes the

Downing Street, a Presidential dinner for the

Council may be appointed by election from the

RIAS/Landmark Trust Series of Illustrated

Dutch Ambassador to the UK and meetings

membership, by Chapter nomination or by co-

Architectural Guides and other titles. The

with other consular and governmental

option by Council, in accordance with the rules

Incorporation also publishes a biennial

representatives.
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endeavour has been the RIAS Community

Education/CPD

Chapters

Projects Fund which has contributed to a

A limited number of major CPD events have

Local CPD and Chapter events continue to

further fourteen projects over the last year.

been well attended, including a joint meeting

play a crucial part in the Incorporation’s

with Swiss energy design experts and Practice

endeavours for its members. The inaugural

Essentials CPD. The Incorporation continues

Stirling architectural prize has now been

The Dundee Convention was a notable success

to work closely with APEAS and ASSA and has

presented and Aberdeen has also launched a

at a time when many organisations opted to

helped the latter to greatly reduce its annual

Chapter award. This will ensure that, for the

cancel similar annual events. The summer

financial liabilities. The Incorporation has

first time, all RIAS Chapters present their

and winter Fellows’ receptions and the annual

played a central role in a concerted reaction

own awards which then feed into the annual

dinner marked the significant role of this

against proposed funding cuts.

Doolan prize.

Events

professional forum in advising and informing
the Incorporation’s activities. Other notable

Awards

events were the inauguration of the new

The

previously

The RIAS has been consulted by Government

members’ room, named in honour of Dr Joyce

administered by The Lighthouse, are now jointly

and Public Authorities on: Active Travel,

B Deans CBE PPRIAS and the RIBA awards

coordinated. The Incorporation’s Lifetime Ach-

Ancient

evening at Rutland Square, a significant

ievement for 2009 went to Bob Steedman

Architectural Derivatives, BSD Technical

celebration of Scottish architectural success

FRIAS, one of our most distinguished European

Standards, CEC Parking Standards, Energy

with no less than seven awards for 2009.

modernists. The Doolan Award, which prompt-

Efficiency Action Plan, Fair Access to the

ed judge Ian Ritchie to comment on a Scottish

Professions, Scottish Planning Policy, SFC

HQ and Governance

annual

Consultations
student

awards,

Monuments/Listed

Buildings,

architectural renaissance, was won by Archial

Proposed Funding Cuts (to architectural

The major works programme has ensured that

and has been the subject of a successful

education) and Building Control Verifiers.

15 Rutland Square is more welcoming with

Scotland-wide touring exhibition.

Honorary Fellowships

improved facilities for members. The recession
has resulted in significantly reduced income

Consultancy/Competitions

The Incorporation’s fellowship has been

and imposed four redundancies. Inevitably,

Successful competitions have been organised

awarded to Stefan King, Tom Macartney and

the workload continues to be very substantial.

for Stornoway Inner Harbour, for the

Ian Ritchie CBE.

The Strategic Plan has been adopted by

Dounreay Archive at Wick and for Ardrossan.

Council and a new Council handbook has

Alongside these, Consultancy has been

Future Plans

been published.

involved in significant education, health and

On-going work includes the production of a

housing procurement initiatives.

new RIAS quarterly, tendering towards the

Practice

total renewal of the RIAS on-line presence and

Work on Conservation and Sustainability

Publishing

the production of a new on-line and published

Accreditation continues towards a major

A new guide to Glasgow’s Merchant City,

architectural directory to offer unprecedented

re-launch. The RIAS-regs scheme has been

highlighting its connections with slavery, was

flexibility

renamed RIAS Energy Design Certification.

published in the autumn. It Wisnae Us has

input from practices. The Incorporation

Closer liaison with the Building Standards

been very well received. The London launch

is also working on a major procurement

Division and much work on the process

of David Mackay’s A Life in Cities formed part

initiative, gathering information for review

has greatly improved its efficacy. The

of a major Spanish season at the Building

and consulting with practices. A group of

Incorporation has promoted Strathclyde

Centre. Historic royalty liabilities for most

senior industry figures has been invited by

University’s Standard Assessment Procedure

RIAS publications were fully settled in 2009

the President to present their findings to

(SAP) training to reinforce the Energy Design

with new, fee-based, payments introduced to

Government. The continuing improvement

scheme.

reduce administration and on-costs.

of the Incorporation’s historic HQ will include

and

adaptability

with

direct
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the re-cataloguing of the Library and a second

and these decreased by just over 5% to provide

Scottish Community projects fund (SCPF).

dedicated large meeting room which will be

income of £457,624, representing 44% of the

Further grants totalling £30,000 were received

available for hire and for use by members.

gross income for the year.

from the Robertson Trust for the SCPF, and

The Incorporation also relies on profits

grants totalling £38,837 were awarded from

Acknowledgements

generated by its trading subsidiary, RIAS

the fund during the year. A total of £68,044 is

RIAS members who participate in Chapter and

Services Ltd, which are paid over to the

carried forward for restricted funds (see note

HQ committees, the RIAS PPC and Council,

charity under gift aid, and which contribute

14, page 129).

Secretary Neil Baxter and the staff team are

to expenditure on membership activities.

commended for their hard work through

The results for the subsidiary company are

Investments

2009.

summarised in note 2 on page 17 and show a

The Incorporation relies on advice from

net profit of £14,522 from this source. This is a

external investment advisers in managing

comparable result to the previous year, when

its listed investments. There was a net gain

there was a profit of £16,481.

of £8,644 on listed investments over the year

Financial Review and Results for
the Year
The results for the year are set out in the
Statement of Financial Activities (SOFA)
on page 123, which shows the consolidated
income and expenditure for the charity and
its subsidiary trading company, RIAS Services
Ltd. Separate results for the charity alone are
shown in the Income & Expenditure account
on page 124 and results for the subsidiary
company are summarised in note 2 on page
126.
The result for the year, as set out in the SOFA,
shows net outgoing resources of £206,540
before investment gains. However this
includes exceptional expenditure of £229,746
on refurbishment of the external fabric of the
building at 15 Rutland Square. Leaving aside
this exceptional item, there were net incoming
resources of £23,206 on normal activities and
this breaks down into a surplus of £31,659 in
unrestricted funds and a decrease of £8,453 in
restricted funds. This compares to an overall
surplus on normal activities of £42,685 in the
previous year, after adjusting for exceptional
refurbishment expenditure in that year. This
is a better result than was anticipated in the
present economic climate.
The main source of income for the
Incorporation is membership subscriptions
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Generally

administrative

expenditure

has decreased compared to the previous year,

reflecting some improvement in the value of
the stock market.

reflecting the move to a smaller, but more

Also included is an unlisted investment

focussed, staff team during the year and

in Scottish Buildings Contract Committee Ltd

awareness of the need to reduce expenditure

(SBCC) at an estimated valuation of £11,508, a

wherever possible without compromising the

reduction of £3,024. The Incorporation owns

service to members. This is evidenced by a 12%

one sixth of the share capital of SBCC (see

reduction in membership costs, which includes

note 9 for further details).

an allocation of staff costs and administrative
overheads.

Funds & Reserves Policy

Governance costs have increased due to

The various funds of the Incorporation and

expenditure of £28,303 on termination payments

movements over the year are detailed in note

arising from the staff reduction exercise.

14 on page 21. A total of £209,429 is held in

Consequently a reduction in governance costs

designated funds, representing fixed assets

can be expected in future years.

which are not readily realisable. The balance

The building refurbishment cost of

of £286,555 in the general fund represents the

£229,746, expended in the SOFA, represents

free reserves of the charity and these have

the major part of a contract for external fabric

reduced by £25,305 over the past year due to

repairs to the building at 15 Rutland Square,

additional costs of the refurbishment work.

which was started in the previous year. In

Generally it is the policy of the trustees to

addition a contract for internal improvements

build up the level of these free reserves to

to the building has been carried out during

provide a reasonable cushion for unknown

the year and the cost of £130,055 has been

contingencies and enable the Incorporation

added to fixed assets. An amount of £287,500

to participate in opportunities for the benefit

for the refurbishment work was designated

of the profession.

in the 2008 accounts and this has now been
transferred back to general reserves.

Asset Valuation

The restricted funds comprise the awards

The book value of tangible fixed assets is

and prize funds, the benevolent fund and the

represented by the revaluation reserve of
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£201,229 with the balance of £197,921 in the
designated fixed asset fund (£399,150 in
total). This includes written down amounts of
£340,323 and £30,336 for the heritable property
and antique and fine art furnishings, which
were revalued in 1987 and 1988 respectively.
In the opinion of the trustees the current
market value of these assets is considerably
in excess of the current book values shown
in the accounts. A valuation for the heritable
property in July 2007 indicated a market value

Statement of Responsibilities of
the Council Members in Relation
to Financial Statements and
Accounting Records
The members of Council, as trustees, are
responsible for preparing the Report of
the Council and the financial statements
in accordance with applicable law and
regulations.
The Council members have elected to

in the range £1.2 to £1.3 million at that time.

prepare the financial statements in accordance

Future Funding

Accounting

Given the difficult economic climate, the
Incorporation budgeted for a significant
reduction

in

income

from

members’

subscriptions in 2009. The actual reduction
was considerably less than feared, but there is
expected to be a continuing knock on effect
in 2010. A further reduction of 10% in gross
subscription income has been budgeted
for 2010, though a revised membership
agreement with the RIBA should mitigate the
effect to some extent. Balancing the budget in
the year ahead will continue to be a challenge
but the efficiencies put in place during 2009

with United Kingdom Generally Accepted

Risk Management
The President and senior members meet with

performance based on the agreed budget for
the year.
The members of Council confirm that
the major risks to which the incorporation is
exposed have been reviewed and that systems
have been established to mitigate those risks.

the financial position of the Incorporation
and enable them to ensure that the financial
statements comply with the Charities and
Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the
Charities Accounts (Scotland) Regulations
2006 and the provisions of the Incorporation’s
constitution. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Incorporation
and hence taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud and other
irregularities.

Statement of Disclosure to
Auditors

prepare financial statements for each year

So far as the members of Council are aware,

which give a true and fair view of the state

there is no relevant audit information of which

of affairs of the Incorporation, including

the Incorporation’s auditors are unaware.

its wholly owned subsidiary, and of its net

Additionally, the Council members have taken

incoming or outgoing resources for the year.

all the necessary steps that they ought to have

In preparing those financial statements,
the Council members are required to:

taken as trustees in order to make themselves
aware of all relevant audit information and to
establish that the Incorporation’s auditors are

•

select suitable accounting policies and

•

aware of that information.
Approved by the members of Council and

then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles in the

signed on their behalf by:

Statement of Recommended Practice for
charities;
•

make judgements and estimates that are
David Dunbar

reasonable and prudent;
•

accounting

President

standards have been followed, subject

17 March 2010

state

whether

applicable

to any material departures disclosed and

and to ensure that objectives are met. At each
are presented with a report on the financial

Kingdom

Scottish charity law requires the trustees to

staff on a regular basis to review the activities
of their meetings, the members of Council

(United

Accounting Standards and applicable law).

mean that the Incorporation is well placed to
meet this challenge.

Practice

disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time

explained in the financial statements;
•

prepare the financial statements on
the going concern basis unless it is
inappropriate to presume that the
Incorporation will continue to operate.
The Council members are responsible

for keeping proper accounting records that
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AUDITOR’S REPORT
Independent Auditors’ Report to the Council of the Royal Incorporation of
Architects in Scotland for the year ended 31 December 2009

We have audited the financial statements

Act. Our responsibility is to audit the financial

policies are appropriate to the Incorporation’s

of The Royal Incorporation of Architects in

statements in accordance with relevant legal

circumstances,

Scotland for the year ended 31 December 2009,

and regulatory requirements and International

adequately disclosed.

which comprise the statement of financial

Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland).

consistently

applied

and

We planned and performed our audit

activities, the income and expenditure

We report to you our opinion as to whether

so as to obtain all the information and

account, the balance sheet, the statement of

the financial statements give a true and fair view

explanations which we considered necessary

total recognised gains and losses, the note of

and are properly prepared in accordance with the

in order to provide us with sufficient evidence

historical profits and losses and related notes.

Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act

to give reasonable assurance that the

These financial statements have been prepared

2005 and regulation 8 of the Charities Accounts

financial statements are free from material

under the accounting policies set out therein.

(Scotland) Regulations 2006.

misstatement, whether caused by fraud or

This report is made solely to the members

We also report to you if, in our opinion,

any other irregularity or error. In forming

of Council (the charity’s trustees), as a body,

the information given in the Annual Report of

our opinion we also evaluated the overall

in accordance with section 44(1)(c) of the

the Council is not consistent with the financial

adequacy of the presentation of information

Charities and Trustee Investment (Scotland)

statements, if the charity has not kept proper

in the financial statements.

Act 2005 and regulation 10 of the Charities

accounting records, if the charity’s statement

Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006. Our

of account is not in agreement with these

audit work has been undertaken so that we

accounting records, or if we have not received

might state to the charity’s trustees those

all the information and explanations we

matters we are required to state to them in

require for our audit.

an auditor’s report and for no other purpose.

We read the other information contained in

To the fullest extent permitted by law, we

the Annual Report, and consider whether it is

do not accept or assume responsibility to

consistent with the audited financial statements.

anyone other than the Incorporation and the

The other information contains only the Annual

Incorporation’s trustees as a body, for our

Report of the Council and the President’s

audit work, for this report, or for the opinions

Statement. We consider the implications for

we have formed.

our report if we become aware of any apparent
misstatements or material inconsistencies with

Respective Responsibilities of
the Council and the Auditors

the financial statements. Our responsibilities

The responsibilities of the Council members,

Basis of Opinion

as trustees of the charity, for preparing the

do not extend to other information.

Opinion
In our opinion:
•

the financial statements give a true and
fair view, in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice, of the state of the affairs of the
charity and the group at 31 December
2009 and of its incoming resources and
application of resources for the year then
ended; and

•

the financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the Charities
and Trustee Investment (Scotland) Act
2005 and regulation 8 of the Charities
Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006.

Annual Report and the financial statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with

in accordance with applicable law and United

International Standards on Auditing (UK

Dundas House

Kingdom Accounting Standards (United

and Ireland) issued by the Auditing Practices

Chartered Accountants and Statutory

Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting

Board. An audit includes examination, on a

Auditors

Practice) are set out in the Statement of

test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts

Westfield Park, Eskbank

Responsibilities of the Council members.

and disclosures in the financial statements. It

Edinburgh

We have been appointed as auditors under

also includes an assessment of the significant

17 March 2010

section 44(1)(c) of the Charities and Trustee

estimates and judgements made by the

Eligible to act as an auditor in terms of

Investment (Scotland) Act 2005 and report in

trustees in the preparation of the financial

section 1212 of the Companies Act 2006.

accordance with regulations made under that

statements, and of whether the accounting
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Accounting and
Consolidation

Trading Activities

Resources Expended

The trading activities in the subsidiary

All expenditure is accounted for on an

The financial statements have been prepared

company, comprising in the main services to

accruals basis. Wherever possible costs are

under the historic cost convention, as

architects, conferences and events and the

attributed directly to membership activities,

modified by the revaluation of certain fixed

sale or production of publications related to

trading activities or governance costs. The

and current assets, and in accordance with

architecture, are considered to be ancillary

remaining administrative support and central

applicable accounting standards in the

to the primary purpose of the charity.

management costs are allocated on the basis

United Kingdom, the Charities and Trustee

Consequently the income and expenditure

of estimated staff time and use of facilities,

Investment (Scotland) Act 2005, the Charities

from these activities has been classified as

which amounted to the following proportions

Accounts (Scotland) Regulations 2006 and

“charitable activity” in the Statement of

in 2009:

the Statement of Recommended Practice

Financial Activities (the SOFA).

Accounting and Reporting by Charities, issued
in March 2005 (SORP 2005).
The financial statements are a consolidation
of the Royal Incorporation of Architects in
Scotland (‘the charity’) and its wholly owned
subsidiary company, RIAS Services Limited
(see note 2). No separate statement of
financial activities is shown for the charity,
in accordance with the exemption afforded
by paragraph 397 of SORP 2005, but separate
results are shown for the charity in the income
& expenditure account.
The Group meets the size exemption
criteria of Financial Reporting Standard
No 1 (revised 1996) ‘Cash Flow Statements’.
Accordingly, no cash-flow statement is
required.
Some of the expenditure in note 6 to
the accounts has been allocated differently

Incoming Resources

Membership activities
Trading activities
Governance costs

55% (2008 – 55%)
40% (2008 – 40%)
5% (2008 – 5%)

Grants and donations are included when
receivable unless there are imposed pre-

Grants payable to projects are fully charged

conditions on use of the funds or the income

in the period when the award is made, unless

is for a future accounting period. Any grants

the offer is conditional in which case the grant

or donations received for a particular purpose

is recognised once the conditions have been

are allocated to restricted funds.

fulfilled.

Membership subscriptions are included in
the year for which they are due.

The Incorporation is registered for VAT
and expenditure excludes VAT. Irrecoverable

Turnover from trading activities is stated

VAT, arising from exempt membership

at invoice value, excluding VAT, and is included

activities, is shown as a separate item under

in the period when a service is delivered, goods

membership costs.

are made available or an event takes place.
Investment income and other income is
included when receivable.
Income referable to future periods or
events is deferred (see note 13 for details).

in 2009, in order to reflect more accurately
the activities of the charity, and the 2008
comparatives have been adjusted accordingly.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Tangible Fixed Assets and
Depreciation
From 1 January 2000 all new tangible fixed
assets are recorded at historic cost less
accumulated depreciation and any provisions
for impairment. Prior to that date, the
company’s heritable property, and its antiques

Generally assets costing less than £250 are
not capitalised in the balance sheet.
An amount equal to the excess of the
annual depreciation charge on revalued assets
over the notional historical cost depreciation
charge on those assets is transferred annually
from the revaluation reserve to the general

Fund Accounting
The Unrestricted general fund is available to be
used for any of the charitable objects at the
discretion of the trustees.
Designated funds are set aside by the
trustees out of unrestricted funds for specific

fund. Refer to note 16.

purposes or projects.

Fixed Asset Investments

particular purposes within the objects of the

subsequently reduced by depreciation on

Listed investments are stated at market value

terms of an appeal for the funds.

those new values. Under the transitional

at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses

arrangements of Financial Reporting Standard

on revaluation or disposal of investments are

15 ‘Tangible Fixed Assets,’ the property,

recognised in aggregate in the Statement of

antiques and fine art furnishings continue

Financial Activities.

and fine art furnishings had been restated at
their open market values at January 1987
and January 1988 respectively and had

to be treated on that basis. The assets are

Unlisted investments are stated at trustees’

stated at open market value at the respective

valuation, based on the net asset value shown

valuation dates less accumulated depreciation

by the most recent annual accounts.

to date, and those valuations have not been
updated.
The heritable property is depreciated at
2% per annum on a straight line basis and
the antique and fine art furnishings at 2%
per annum on a straight line basis. The land
associated with the property and improvement
work in progress have not been depreciated.

Stocks and Work in Progress
Stocks and work in progress of publications,
products and stationery are stated at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

Pension Costs

Other furniture, fittings and office equipment

Pension costs represent contributions payable

are stated at cost less depreciation which

for the accounting period under defined

is charged by the straight line method over

contribution schemes.

the estimated useful life of each asset at the
following rates:
Furniture & Fittings 10%-25% per annum
Office Equipment
10%-20% per annum
Computer Equipment 25%-50% per annum

Taxation
As a registered charity, the Incorporation is
exempt from corporation tax on its charitable
activities. Profits of the trading subsidiary
are paid over to the charity as gift aid and
consequently no provision for corporation tax
is required.
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Restricted funds can only be used for
charity as specified by the donor or by the

S U M M E R 2 010 R I A S Q U A R T E R LY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 december 2009
The notes on pages 126 to 129 and the accounting policies on page 121 form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Financial Activities
			
Unrestricted
Restricted
Total
Incoming Resources
Notes
Funds
Funds
2009
			
£
£
£
Incoming Resources from charitable activities:					
Membership subscriptions
1
457,624
457,624
Membership activities		
17,367
17,367
A. Doolan Best Building in Scotland Award		
40,110
40,110
Incoming Resources from generated funds					
Trading activities:					
Services to architects
2
246,378
246,378
Publications & products
2
132,803
132,803
Consultancy & other
2
93,901
93,901
Voluntary income:					
Grants & donations
3
5,000
36,020
41,020
Investment income
4
6,378
408
6,786
Total incoming resources		
999,561
36,428
1,035,989
					
Resources Expended					
					
Charitable activities:					
Membership activities
6
362,217
362,217
A. Doolan Best Building in Scotland Award
6
40,452
40,452
Other grants & awards
5
38,451
44,881
83,332
Building refurbishment
6
229,746
229,746
Costs of generating funds					
Trading activities:					
Services to architects
2
191,580
191,580
Publications & products
2
170,163
170,163
Consultancy & other
2
96,817
96,817
Governance costs
6
68,222
68,222
Total Resources Expended		
1,197,648
44,881
1,242,529
					
Net Incoming / (Outgoing) Resources before					
other recognised gains and losses		
(198,087)
(8,453)
(206,540)
				
Other recognised gains and losses					
Net (losses) / gains on investment assets		
5,517
103
5,620
Net Movement in Funds		
(192,570)
(8,350)
(200,290)
Funds brought forward 		
889,783
76,394
966,177
Funds carried forward
14
697,213
68,044
765,257

Total
2008
£
482,800
18,312
39,240

299,196
182,590
54,518
15,020
38,808
1,130,484

414,105
40,187
53,087
28,900

221,676
224,920
73,227
60,597
1,116,699

13,785

(23,839)
(10,054)
976,231
966,177
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 december 2009
The notes on pages 126 to 129 and the accounting policies on page 121 form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated and Charity Income and Expenditure Accounts
			
Group		
Charity
		
Notes
2009
2008
2009
2008
			
£
£
£
£
Income:					
Membership subscriptions
1
457,624
482,800
457,624
482,800
Membership activities		
17,367
18,312
17,367
18,312
A. Doolan Best Building in Scotland Award		
40,110
39,240
40,110
39,240
Turnover from trading activities
2
473,082
536,304
Grants & donations
3
41,020
15,020
41,020
15,020
Gift aid donation due from subsidiary		
14,522
16,481
Recharge of support costs to subsidiary		
107,037
111,236
Investment income
4
6,786
38,808
6,786
38,808
Total income		
1,035,989
1,130,484
684,466
721,897
					
Expenditure:					
Membership activities
6
362,217
414,105
362,217
414,105
A. Doolan Best Building in Scotland Award
6
40,452
40,187
40,452
40,187
Other grants & awards
5
83,332
53,087
83,332
53,087
Building refurbishment
6
229,746
28,900
229,746
28,900
Expenditure on trading activities
6
458,560
519,823
107,037
111,236
Governance costs
6
68,222
60,597
68,222
60,597
Total expenditure		
1,242,529
1,116,699
891,006
708,112
					
Net operating income / (expenditure) for the year		
(206,540)
13,785
(206,540)
13,785
					
Net realised gains on sale of fixed asset investments		
1,635
1,635
					
Net income / (expenditure) for the financial year		
(204,905)
13,785
(204,905)
13,785

										
All income and expenditure is attributable to continuing operations in each financial year.					

Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses
		
2009
Group and Charity:
£
Net income / (expenditure) for the financial year
(204,905)
Net unrealised (losses) / gains on fixed asset investments
3,985
Net recognised (losses) for the financial year
(200,920)
			
Note of Historical Cost Results
2008
Group and Charity:
£
Reported net income / (expenditure) for the financial year
(204,905)
Realisation of fixed asset investment gains of previous years
1,219
Difference between the historical cost depreciation charge and the actual depreciation
charge of the year calculated on the relevant amount
3,129
Historical cost net surplus / (deficit) for the financial year
(200,557)
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2008
£
13,785
(23,839)
(10,054)
2007
£
13,785
3,129
16,914
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 december 2009
The notes on pages 126 to 129 and the accounting policies on page 121 form part of these financial statements.

Consolidated and Charity Balance Sheets at 31 December 2009
			
Group		
Charity
		
Notes
2009
2008
2009
2008
			
£
£
£
£
Fixed assets					
Tangible assets
8
399,150
275,891
399,150
275,891
Listed investments
9
58,176
49,831
58,176
49,831
Unlisted investment
9
11,508
14,532
11,508
14,532
Investment in subsidiary at cost
2
100
100
			
468,834
340,254
468,934
340,354
				
Current Assets					
Stocks and work in progress
10
76,844
75,900
7,666
7,415
Debtors
11
110,566
105,121
21,442
32,625
Cash at bank and in hand		
444,278
676,871
437,547
676,871
			
631,688
857,892
466,655
716,911
					
Creditors					
Amounts falling due within one year
12
335,265
231,969
170,332
91,088
					
Net Current Assets
296,423
625,923
296,323
625,823
					
Net Assets		
765,257
966,177
765,257
966,177
					
Funds:					
Unrestricted Funds:					
General fund
14
286,555
311,860
286,555
311,860
Revaluation reserve
16
201,229
204,358
201,229
204,358
Designated funds
14
209,429
373,565
209,429
373,565
Total Unrestricted Funds		
697,213
889,783
697,213
889,783
					
Restricted Funds:					
Restricted income funds
14
68,044
76,394
68,044
76,394
Total Restricted Funds		
68,044
76,394
68,044
76,394
					
Total Funds		
765,257
966,177
765,257
966,177

							
			
The accounts on pages 123 to 125 were approved by the Council members on 17 March 2010 and are signed on their behalf by:			
		

					
David Dunbar				Douglas Read					
President				Member of Council				
			
Date: 17 March 2010

Neil Baxter
Secretary & Treasurer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 31 december 2009

2009

1. Membership Subscriptions

Current Assets
2009

Joint subscriptions with RIBA
RIAS only subscriptions

2008

Stocks and work in progress

2008

£

£

69,178

68,485

£

£

Amount due from the Incorporation

13,970

-

290,879

293,853

Other debtors

89,124

95,517

166,745

188,947

Cash at bank

457,624

482,800

6,731

-

179,003

164,002
(23,021)

Current Liabilities

2. Trading Activities and Subsidiary Company

Amount due to the Incorporation

-

Bank overdraft

-

(5,005)

The trading activities of the Royal Incorporation of Architects in

Other creditors

(181,392)

(138,365)

Scotland are run by its wholly owned subsidiary company, RIAS Services
Limited, which pays over its taxable profits to the Incorporation by

Net Liabilities

(2,389)

(2,389)

Net deficiency in shareholder’s funds

(2,389)

(2,389)

gift aid. The Incorporation owns the entire issued share capital of
Unrestricted Restricted

RIAS Services Ltd, comprising 100 ordinary shares of £1 each, which is
shown at its cost of £100 in the balance sheet of the charity.
The Incorporation has undertaken to provide financial support to

Funds

the investment, which is included in creditors in the charity balance
sheet (see note 12).

Total

Total

2009

2008

3. Grants & Donations Receivable

the subsidiary to meet the deficiency in its funds (see below). In view
of this, a provision of £2,489 has been made against the valuation of

Funds

£

£

£

£

Community projects grant (Robertson Trust)

-

30,000

30,000

15,000

James Millar award
Donations & sponsorship

-

6,000

6,000

-

5,000

20

5,020

20

5,000

36,020

41,020

15,020

The summarised results of RIAS Services Limited for the year are
4. Investment Income

as follows:
Services to Publications Consultancy

Total

Total

architects

& products

& other

2009

2008

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

£

Income from UK listed investments

2,331

408

2,739

4,164

Bank interest

4,047

-

4,047

34,644

6,378

408

6,786

38,808

					
Turnover

246,378

132,803

93,901

473,082

536,304

Direct expenditure

136,925

140,703

75,987

353,615

406,412

54,655

29,460

20,830

104,945

113,411

191,580

170,163

96,817

458,560

519,823

Profit for the year				

Administrative support costs
Total expenditure

14,522

16,481

Gift Aid payable to the Incorporation				 (14,522)

(16,481)

-

-

Retained by subsidiary company				

The assets and liabilities of the subsidiary company at 31 December
2008 were as follows:
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5. Grants & Awards Costs
Chapter grants
Architectural awards
Awards medals & other costs
Community project grants & expenses

£

£

£

£

35,000

-

35,000

35,000
2,500

-

6,000

6,000

3,451

-

3,451

1,460

-

38,881

38,881

14,127

38,451

44,881

83,332

53,087
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6. Resources Expended

7. Staff Details

Membership

Trading Governance

Activities Activities
£

Total

Total

Costs

2009

2008

£

£

£

£

The average numbers of staff and costs (including consultant staff) in
each area during the year were as follows:
2009

Membership costs:
Promotion & publications

21,386

-

-

21,386

13,964

Corporate costs

18,623

-

4,446

23,069

34,429

-		

Events & projects
Membership staff costs
Membership support costs

6,857
122,526
12,711

6,857

6,471

-		 122,526

151,149

16,925

24,294

-

4,214

Direct trading expenditure:			
Services to architects

-

136,925

- 136,925

158,406

Publications & products

-

140,703

- 140,703

186,308

Consultancy

-

75,987

75,987

61,698 3

18,101 162,101

181,178

28,303

10,000

-

Administrative support costs:			
Management & admin staff
Termination payments

84,223

59,777

-

-

28,303

Office admin costs

32,814

13,941

2,461

49,216

45,019

Occupancy costs

40,642

24,996

3,455

69,093

70,708

-		

6,650

6,650

6,550

-

986

9,761
24,876

Audit fee
Legal & financial consultancy

986

-

13,306

-

-

13,306

8,143

6,231

592

14,966

9,714

362,217

458,560

68,222 888,999

994,525

A. Doolan Best Building in Scotland award			

40,452

40,187

Other grants & awards (note 5)				

83,332

53,087

Building refurbishment (see note below)				 229,746

28,900

Irrecoverable VAT on overheads
Other administrative costs

		

2008
Cost

Number

Cost

£		

£

Trading activities

5

128,051

Membership activities

4

130,526

5

139,787

Management & administrative support

5

162,789

6

178,178

16

473,263

Termination payments		
Totals

14

5

28,303

145,298

10,000

449,669

Total staff costs are analysed as follows:		

£		

£

Salaries		

378,438		

376,746

Social security costs		

36,609

Pension costs		

5,310

33,943
4,090

Total employed staff		

420,357		

Consultant staff		

14,012		

40,867

Redundancy payments		

8,372		

10,000

414,779

Other staff costs		

6,928		

7,617

		

449,669		

473,263

In 2009, one member of staff had emoluments between £60,000 and
£70,000 and payments of £3,125 into a defined contribution pension

			

Total resources expended				1,242,529 1,116,699

scheme. There were no such higher paid employees in 2008.
Travel expenses of £3,649 (2008 - £2,846) were reimbursed to
members of Council during the year.
No remuneration was paid to members of Council.

Resources expended includes the following costs:

		

Auditors’ remuneration:				
for audit work			

Number

6,650

6,550

for other services (accountancy and consultancy)			

-

19,635

			

6,650

26,185

Depreciation charge			

18,219

17,296

Loss on disposal of tangible fixed assets			

284

1,751

The Building refurbishment comprised major repairs to the external

8. Tangible Fixed Assets
Office
Heritable Equipment &
Property Furnishings

Fittings

Total

£

£

£

£

Cost or Valuation
At 1st January 2009

272,657

47,400

78,034

398,091

fabric of 15 Rutland Square during the year. In addition an amount of

Additions

130,055

-

11,707

141,762

£130,055 was expended on internal improvements to the building and

Disposals

-

-

(9,606)

(9,606)

402,712

47,400

80,135

530,247

this has been added to fixed assets (note 8). Both costs include a share
of irrecoverable VAT amounting to £20,366 in total.
			

At 31st December 2009

Depreciation				
At 1st January 2009
Charge for year
On disposals
At 31st December 2009

122,200

56,734

16,116

49,350

5,655

948

11,616

18,219

-

-

(9,322)

(9,322)

62,389

17,064

51,644

131,097

Net Book Value				
At 31st December 2009
At 31st December 2008

340,323

30,336

28,491

399,150

215,923

31,284

28,684

275,891

Details of revaluations are given in note 16 below.
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for the year ended 31 december 2009

9. Fixed Asset Investments

11. Debtors
2009

2008

£

£

Group

Listed UK Securities:
Market value at 1 January 2009
Add: Acquisitions at cost
Less: Disposals at opening book value
Net gain / (loss) on revaluation

49,579

71,268

Charity

2009

2008

2009

2008

£

£

£

£

Due within one year:

8,513

-

Amount due from subsidiary company

-

-

-

23,021

(12,880)

-

Trade debtors

36,256

30,955

8,453

727

7,009

(21,689)

Accrued income

61,999

65,038

1,020

-

52,221

49,579

1,906

3,934

1,564

3,683

Cash at bank awaiting investment

5,955

252

Market value at 31 December 2009

58,176

49,831

Historical cost at 31 December 2009

63,076

60,595

Prepayments
Other debtors

10,405

5,194

10,405

5,194

110,566

105,121

21,442

32,625

12. Creditors
The following investments are considered material, having a market

Group

value in excess of 10% of the total value of the portfolio:
Market Value
£
20,000 Threadneedle Invs Equity Alpha Income ‘B’ Inc

8,706

20,000 Schroder Income Maximiser Fund A Inc

8,598

4,500 Aberdeen Asian Inc trust ord NPV

6,143

Unlisted investment:
14,532

Valuation at 1 January 2009
(Loss) on revaluation

(3,024)

Valuation at 31 December 2009

11,508

The unlisted investment comprises 2,500 shares, at a historical cost of

of the company according to its latest available audited balance sheet

2008

2009

2008

£

£

£

£

Amounts falling due within one year:
Provision for deficiency
in subsidiary funds (note 2)

-

-

2,489

2,489

Amount due to subsidiary company

-

-

13,970

-

Bank overdraft

-

5,005

-

-

Trade creditors

34,372

38,135

3,832

9,591

27,605

11,967

29,223

12,060

Accruals

102,084

59,933

76,628

58,151

Deferred income (note 13)

167,066

108,132

40,052

-

Taxation and social security

Amount held for
Martin Jones Award Trust

£2,500, in Scottish Building Contract Committee Ltd, representing a
one sixth share. The valuation has been based on the net asset value

Charity

2009

4,138

8,797

4,138

8,797

335,265

231,969

170,332

91,088

13. Deferred Income

at 30 April 2009.

Group

10. Stocks & Work in Progress

2008

2009

2008

£

£

£

£

108,132

146,009

-

-

Amount released to incoming resources (42,149)

(80,026)

-

-

Amount deferred in year

101,083

42,149

40,052

-

Closing Balance at 31 December

167,066

108,132

40,052

-

Opening Balance at 1 January
Group

Charity

Charity

2009

2009

2008

2009

2008

£

£

£

£

Bookshop stock for resale

22,962

23,270

-

-

Publishing stock - completed titles

36,418

36,327

-

-

Deferred income at 31 December 2009 comprises income received in

Publishing stock - work in progress

9,798

8,888

-

-

Stationery & other stock

7,666

7,415

7,666

7,415

advance for publishing, prepaid membership and practice services

76,844

75,900

7,666

7,415
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subscriptions and funding received in advance for projects and
events.
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14. Movements in Funds

15. Analysis of Net Assets Representing Funds
Net

Restricted			Revaluation

At Incoming Resources Investment Transfers

At

Funds Designated

1/1/09 Resources Expended Gain/(Loss)		 31/12/09
£

£

£

£

£

£

Restricted Income Funds:			
6,020

(6,000)

-

-

7,334

Benevolent fund

51,135

408

-

103

-

51,646

Community Projects

17,945

30,000

(38,881)

-

-

9,064

Total Restricted

76,394

36,428

(44,881)

103

-

68,044

Designated Funds:
Refurbishment fund
Fixed asset fund
Unlisted investment
General Fund

287,500

-

-

71,533

-

(18,503)

14,532

-

-

373,565

-

(18,503)

311,860

-

- (287,500)

-

-

144,891

197,921

-

(3,024)

11,508

- (145,633) 209,429
5,517

148,762

286,555

-

-

(3,129)

201,229
697,213

999,561 (1,179,145)

Revaluation Reserve 204,358

Reserve

Funds

£

£

£

£

£

Tangible fixed assets

-

197,921

-

201,229

399,150

Investments

-

11,508

58,176

-

69,684

Stocks and work in progress

-

-

76,844

-

76,844

Debtors

-

-

110,566

-

110,566

Cash at bank and in hand

103,794

-

340,484

-

444,278

Creditors due in one year

(35,750)

-

(299,515)

-

(335,265)

68,044

209,429

286,555

201,229

765,257

Fund balances at 31 December 2008
are represented by:

7,314

Awards and prizes

Total

General

Total Unrestricted

889,783

999,561 (1,197,648)

5,517

-

Total Funds

966,177 1,035,989 (1,242,529)

5,620

- 765,257

Net Assets

16. Revaluation Reserve
The revaluation reserve represents the following:
		Excess over
		 book value
		

£

Heritable property at 15 Rutland Square revalued at open market			

Notes on Restricted funds:

value of £240,000 in January 1987.		

The awards and prize funds, arising from donations, are applied

Antique & fine art furnishings valued at open market value of

for designated areas of architectural achievement. The Benevolent
Fund is for the assistance of architects or their dependents who are

225,473

£46,050 in January 1988.		

43,722

Less accumulated depreciation charged on revalued amount.		

(67,966)

Balance on revaluation reserve at 31 December 2009		

201,229

in financial need. The Scottish Community Projects Fund (SCPF)
provides assistance with feasibility studies for projects intended to

Since the original revaluations, the trustees have adopted a policy

benefit local communities.

not to revalue fixed assets which are for the Incorporation’s own use.
However, in their opinion, current valuations are considerably in

Notes on Designated funds:

excess of those included in the accounts. The fixed asset figures (note

The Refurbishment fund was set aside to cover the estimated cost of

8) also include the cost of improvements and acquisitions since the

refurbishment and improvement works to the building at 15 Rutland

revaluations were carried out.

Square. These works were completed during the year.
The fixed asset fund represents the net book value of tangible
fixed assets, net of the revaluation reserve. This distinguishes the
book value of these assets from the more readily realisable assets
represented by the General fund (being the value of net current
assets and unrestricted listed investments).
Annual depreciation is charged to the fund and adjustments made
by transfers for additions and disposals in the year and the movement

17. Related Party Transactions
Fees and expenses of £2,528 for consultancy work were paid to Richard
Atkins, a member of Council, during the year.
Publications for resale at a cost of £3,750 were purchased from Neil
Baxter Ltd, a company controlled by the Secretary & Treasurer, Neil
Baxter.

in the revaluation reserve.
Likewise the unlisted investment fund represents the valuation
of the unlisted investment (see note 9), which is held in a designated
fund, as not representing a readily realisable asset.			
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CONTACTING RIAS
To contact RIAS call 0131 229 7545 or fax 0131 229 7545. For general enquiries email info@rias.org.uk

senior management
Neil Baxter Secretary & Treasurer
nbaxter@rias.org.uk
Joined: March 2008. Oversight of RIAS policy, governance, business planning
and budgets. Overall responsibility for the Incorporation’s membership services,
Consultancy, Practice Services, accreditation schemes, events, publications, outreach,
political liaison, CPD, educational initiatives and awards.

Sharon McCord Depute Secretary
smccord@rias.org.uk
Joined: January 2008. Editor of RIAS Quarterly, production of internal and external
communications, press and public relations, awards and event management and
marketing. Responsible for online strategy and development, e-bulletins, web
content and RIAS bookshop.

Staff
Sydny Brogan Acting Membership & Consultancy Manager
sbrogan@rias.org.uk
Joined: January 2009. Administration of Membership, RIAS Consultancy, Scottish
Community Projects Fund, Architect in the House, RIBA Awards and the RIAS Clients
Advisory Service.

Charlene Byrne Membership & Consultancy Manager
Joined: March 2002. On maternity leave until January 2011.

Carol-Ann Hildersley Acting PA to the Secretary & Treasurer
childersley@rias.org.uk
Joined: April 2010. Management of the Secretary’s schedule, organising travel and
accommodation, handling incoming calls, emails, documentation. Administration
and minuting of committee meetings and Council. Research and assistance on
projects.

Maureen Johnstone Finance & Administration Assistant
mjohnstone@rias.org.uk
Joined: March 2003. Support for finance and central services, financial processing
and filing, coordination of internal room bookings and meeting set-ups, assisting
membership, post and mail, management of office recycling.

Marilyn Leishman Receptionist (part-time)
reception@rias.org.uk
Joined: June 2009. Dealing with incoming calls, meeting and greeting, opening and
logging mail for distribution, ordering stationery and monitoring stock, dealing with
suppliers, maintaining press cuttings file, bookshop cover.

Louise McLeod Finance & Administration Manager
lmcleod@rias.org.uk
Joined: November 1986. Responsible for central services function including finance,
audit, salaries, pensions, member pensions, annual contracts, insurances, personnel,
recruitment, membership, staff management, IT, health & safety, the building.

Maryse Richardson Practice Manager
mrichardson@rias.org.uk
Joined: April 2003. Manages Practice Services, secretariat support to six RIAS
committees and production of quarterly Practice Information, legal and contractual
queries, maintaining the RIAS suite of Standard Forms and managing dispute
resolution expert panels.

Nicky Regan Senior Bookshop Assistant
bookshop@rias.org.uk
Joined: August 2009. Managing RIAS Bookshop, including sales of architectural
appointments, certificates, administrations forms and up-to-date and archived
building contracts. Telephone, website and direct sale to members and the public of
RIAS publications and a wide range of architectural books.

Sonja Rosendahl Communications and Events Assistant
srosendahl@rias.org.uk
Joined: March 2009. Event support and administration, website updates, awards
administration, media monitoring, picture research and RIAS Quarterly book reviews
co-ordinator. Responsible for online Directory of Architects, Special Skills Directory
and job ads.

Lorraine Sutherland Senior Receptionist (part-time)
reception@rias.org.uk
Joined: June 2005. Dealing with incoming calls, meeting and greeting, opening and
logging mail for distribution, ordering stationery and monitoring stock, dealing with
suppliers, maintaining press cuttings file, general administration duties.

Kirsty Ward Practice Administrator
kward@rias.org.uk
Joined: March 2005. Practice Services support, administers conservation and
sustainability accreditation schemes and the RIAS Energy Design Certification
Scheme, coordinates the e-PI bulletin, Practice Services website updates and online
research.

Lily Office Dog
ldog@rias.org.uk
Joined: March 2008. Works to maintain a stress-free working environment,
occasionally enliven meetings and ensure a focus on the key agenda priorities
(biscuits and sandwiches). Introduces a Zen-like calm by generally wandering about
and sleeping under desks.

ADVISORS
Jack Hugh Special Advisor to the Secretary
jhugh@rias.org.uk
Joined: November 2007. Advises on financial matters, collation and drafting of PPC/
Council papers, preparation of agendas; maintenance of 15 Rutland Square, Head of
Certification and manager of RIAS Energy Design Certification Scheme.

Pat Lally Political Consultant
c/o childersley@rias.org.uk
Joined: June 2008. Liaison with Scottish Government and local authority politicians,
encouraging political participation in CPG and other RIAS events, chairing of RIAS
government committee, external relations with COSLA, STUC and quasi-government
organisations.

Brian Moore Director of Consultancy
bmoore@rias.org.uk
Joined: 1995. Manages all aspects of architectural competitions, deals with
procurement issues for architects and improving procurement in architecture by
ensuring value-based selection procedures in all RIAS Competitions.

John Norman Consultant Accountant
jnorman@rias.org.uk
Joined: April 2008. Annual budget, quarterly accounts, annual statutory accounts for
RIAS charity and RIAS Services Ltd, VAT returns, ledger management/supervision,
RIAS/RIBA membership reconciliations, annual audit, payroll issues, other tax and
financial issues, as required.
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PRODUCTS & SERVICES
Komfort’s new Confluence™ product
Confluence™ comprises a comprehensive
range of patented pre-cast solid plaster
components. It provides a seamless
finish to a multitude of on-site abutment
requirements, in particular between
gypsum and glass walls.
Komfort Workspace plc, Livingston Tel 0131 661 7010
scotland-sales@komfort.com www.komfort.com

proven fire protection for timber
Arch Timber Protection offers a choice
of proven pressure impregnated
fire retardent treatments that allow
timber to be used safely in new build
projects, for both interior and exterior
applications.

Tel 01977 714 000 advice@archchemicals.com www.archtp.com

malcolm cochrane photography
Malcolm specialises in interior and
exterior photography, 360 degree
panoramas and interactive flash virtual
tours. He has 15 years experience
working for a wide range of clients and
publications all over Scotland.
Tel 0131 466 6799 Mob 07971 835 065
mail@malcolmcochrane.co.uk www.malcolmcochrane.co.uk

david ingram architectural and art services
An artist/ illustrator producing
detailed, handcrafted watercolour
illustrations from plans or
photographs for visualisation,
marketing or planning purposes.

Mob 07745368576 djingram82@yahoo.co.uk www.dingram.net

absmax
Web sites for architects, engineers
and contractors
Attractive, easy-to-use sites built to your exact
requirements that allow you to upload your own
projects and change text and images as often as
you like.
Tel 0131 339 7036 info@absmax.com www.absmax.com

ECHOES Ecology Ltd
Echoes Ecology specialise in development projects
where bats, barn owls, badgers and other protected
species need to be considered. Our experienced team
has a track record for the delivery of high quality
survey programmes, reporting, mitigation and
compensation strategies, all of which complying with
recognised guidelines and best practice methodology.
Tel 0870 234 0002 enquiries@echoesecology.co.uk
www.echoesecology.co.uk

context interiors
Award winning homeware boutique offering
a unique collection of distinctive furniture,
traditional lighting, mirrors, ironmongery,
classic home accessories, earthborn ecological
paint and inspirational gift ideas. Online shop
now open, or visit us at 79 Morningside Road,
Edinburgh EH10 4AY.
Tel/Fax 0131 447 6384 info@contextinteriors.co.uk www.contextinteriors.co.uk

keith hunter photography
...photographing Scotland’s architecture.
High quality architectural exterior and
interior photography.
Member of Arcaid picture library.

Tel 0141 886 4503 Mob 07831 117980
keith@khp.demon.co.uk www.arcblue.com/keith-hunter/

electrosonic
A global company working within the
Audio Visual, Videoconferencing market
spaces providing Meeting, Training and
Board Rooms, Auditoria, IP TV Solutions,
Digital Signage, Broadcast Studios, and
Telepresence Solution, including service
and maintenance.
Tel 0131 447 6211 Mob 07785 392 595
dario.walker@electrosonic.com www.electrosonic.com

natty glass
Siobhan Healy is a designer/maker who
works with glass and metal. Clients include
the RIAS, the Scottish Government and North
Lanarkshire Council. She also collaborates
with artists and architects to create glass for
architectural settings. Image of Alloa Public
Library courtesy Alisdair Gray Foundation.
Mob 0790 6543215 (day/eve) mail@nattyglass.co.uk www.nattyglass.co.uk

peace
of
mind

For indemnity cover that offers complete peace of mind,
make RIAS Insurance Services part of your plans.
For further information contact:
Ian McCallum
RIAS Insurance Services
Orchard Brae House
30 Queensferry Road, Edinburgh
EH4 2HS
Tel:
0131 311 4292
Fax:
0131 311 4280
Email: ian.mccallum@marsh.com

RIAS
Insurance Services

